
CITY OF WILDOMAR PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

6:30 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

JULY 3, 2013 
 

Council Chambers 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite #111 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Stan Smith, Chairman 
Michael Kazmier, Vice-Chairman 

Veronica Langworthy, Planning Commissioner 
Robert Devine, Planning Commissioner 

Bobby L. Swann III, Planning Commissioner 
 
 
 
 

Matthew C. Bassi Erica L. Vega 
Planning Director Assistant City Attorney 

 
 
  



City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission Agenda 

July 3, 2013 
 

2 

 
WILDOMAR PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
JULY 3, 2013 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Public sessions of all regular meetings of the Planning Commission 
begin at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
REPORTS:  The Commission agenda packet/reports are available for review at Wildomar 
City Hall, located at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite #201 and on the City’s website, 
www.cityofwildomar.org. Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning 
Commission regarding any item on this agenda (other than writings legally exempt from 
public disclosure) will be made available for public inspection at City Hall during regular 
business hours.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Prior to the business portion of the agenda, the Planning Commission 
will receive public comments regarding any items or matters within the jurisdiction of the 
governing body.  The Chairman will separately call for testimony at the time of each public 
hearing.  If you wish to speak, please complete a “Public Comment Card” available at the 
Chamber door.  The completed form is to be submitted to the Planning Commission Clerk 
prior to an individual being heard.  Lengthy testimony should be presented to the Commission 
in writing (15 copies) and only pertinent points presented orally.  The time limit established for 
public comments is three minutes per speaker. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  Consent Calendar items will be acted on by one roll call vote 
unless Council members, staff, or the public request the item be discussed and/or removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate action. 
 
 
PLEASE TURN ALL DEVICES TO VIBRATE/MUTE/OFF FOR THE DURATION OF THE 
MEETING.  YOUR COOPERATION IS APPRECIATED. 
 
 
 
  

http://www.cityofwildomar.org/


City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission Agenda 

July 3, 2013 
 

3 

 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Planning Commission receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission that do not appear on the 
agenda.  Each speaker is asked to fill out a “Public Comments Card” available at the Chamber 
door and submit the card to the Planning Commission Secretary.  Lengthy testimony should be 
presented to the Commission in writing (15 copies) and only pertinent points presented orally.  
The time limit established for public comments is three minutes per speaker.  Prior to taking 
action on any open session agenda item, the public will be permitted to comment at the time it is 
considered by the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Planning Commission to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it the desire of 
the Planning Commission, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted 
by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members 
of the Commission, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are removed from the 
Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Minutes - March 6, 2013 Regular Meeting 

Recommendation – Staff Recommends that the Planning Commission approve the 
Minutes as submitted. 
 

1.2 Minutes - April 17, 2013 Special Meeting 
Recommendation – Staff Recommends that the Planning Commission approve the 
Minutes as submitted. 
 

1.3 Minutes - May 15, 2013 Special Meeting 
Recommendation – Staff Recommends that the Planning Commission approve the 
Minutes as submitted. 

  



City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission Agenda 

July 3, 2013 
 

4 

 
2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
2.1 Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301): 

Planning Commission consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring Program and a Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 30522) for the subdivision 
of 10.26 acres into seven (7) parcels for future commercial/retail development located 
on the SEC of Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-
032). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Department recommends the Planning Commission take the following 
actions: 

 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 

 
PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING & 
REPORTING PROGRAM FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 
30522 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 10-0301) LOCATED AT 
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORANGE STREET AND BUNDY 
CANYON ROAD (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032) 

 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 

 
PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE 
PARCEL MAP NO. 30522 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 10-
0301) TO SUBDIVIDE A 10.26 ACRE SITE INTO SEVEN (7) 
LOTS FOR FUTURE COMMERCIAL/RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORANGE 
STREET AND BUNDY CANYON ROAD (APN: 367-100-026 & 
367-100-032), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
 

2.2 Change of Zone/Plot Plan/TTM No. 36497 (Planning Application No. 12-0364): 
Planning Commission consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring Program, Change of Zone, Plot Plan and Tentative Tract Map (TTM 36497) 
for the subdivision of 23.2 acres into 67 lots and development of 67 single family 
residential dwelling units located on the SWC of Elizabeth Lane and Prielipp Road 
(APN: 380-280-004 and 380-280-09, 010, 011 & 012). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Department recommends that this agenda item be tabled and re-noticed 
for a future Commission meeting. 



City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission Agenda 

July 3, 2013 
 

5 

 
2.3 Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning Application No. 12-0392):   

Planning Commission consideration of Categorical Exemption per Section 15332 (In-
Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines and approval of Tentative Tract 
Map No. 36519 for the subdivision of 5.0 acres into 10 lots for future single family 
residential development located at 34915 Orange Street (APN: 367-170-029). 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Department recommends the Planning Commission take the following 
actions: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 

 
PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A 
CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION PER SECTION 15332 (IN-FILL 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS) OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES AND 
APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 36519 (PLANNING 
APPLICATION NO. 12-0392) FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF 5.0 
ACRES INTO 10 LOTS FOR FUTURE SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 34915 ORANGE 
STREET (APN: 367-170-029), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 There are no general business items for this agenda. 
 
 
 
PLANNING DIRECTOR REPORT 
This item is reserved for the Planning Director to report on items not on the agenda.  No action by 
the Planning Commission is needed. 
 
 
 
ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
This item is reserved for the Assistant City Attorney to report on items not on the agenda.  No 
action by the Planning Commission is needed. 
 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
This item is reserved for the Planning Commission to make comments on items not on the 
agenda, request information and/or provide direction to the Planning Department staff. 
 
 
  



City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission Agenda 

July 3, 2013 
 

6 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
The City of Wildomar Planning Commission hereby adjourns to the regularly scheduled Planning 
Commission meeting on August 7, 2013 beginning at 6:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
RIGHT TO APPEAL: 
Any decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the Planning Commission provided the 
required appeal application and the $964 filing fee is submitted to the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar 
days proceeding the Planning Commission’s action on any given project. 
REPORTS: 
All agenda items and reports are available for review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, 
Suite 201, Wildomar, California 92595.  Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning 
Commission regarding any item on this agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) 
will be made available for public inspection at City Hall during regular business hours.   If you wish to be 
added to the regular mailing list to receive a copy of the agenda, a request must be made through the 
Planning Department in writing or by e-mail.   
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: 
Items of business may be added to the agenda upon a motion adopted by a minimum 2/3 vote finding that 
there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the City 
subsequent to the agenda being posted. Items may be deleted from the agenda upon request of staff or 
upon action of the Planning Commission.    
ADA COMPLIANCE: 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Any person 
who requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in 
order to participate in the public meeting may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by 
contacting the Planning Department either in person or by telephone at (951) 667-7751, no later than 
10:00 A.M. on the day preceding the scheduled meeting. 
POSTING STATEMENT: 
On or before June 28, 2013, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at the three (3) designated 
places: 1) Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road; 2) United States Post Office, 21392 Palomar 
Street; and 3) Mission Trail Library, 34303 Mission Trail Road. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA SECTION 1.0 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 



 Agenda Item #1.1 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 

OFFICIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
FROM THE REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OF MARCH 6, 2013 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The regular meeting of the Wildomar Planning Commission was called to order by 
Planning Commission Chairman Smith at 6:30 P.M. at Wildomar City Hall, Council 
Chambers. 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Stan Smith, Chairman, Robert Devine, Commissioner, Veronica 

Langworthy, Commissioner 
 
Absent:  Bobby L. Swann III Commissioner; Michael Kazmier, Vice-
Chairman, 
 
Staff Present  Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
   Erica Vega City Attorney 
   Mark Teague, Environmental Planner 

Alfredo Garcia; Assistant Planner 
  Dan York, City Engineer  

 
FLAG SALUTE 
Chairman Smith led the flag salute. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Sheryl Ade, resident, provided public comment.  
 
Patti Hatch, resident, provided public comment.  



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

March 6, 2013 
 

2 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS SUBMITTED 
 
Chairman Smith asked the Commission for a motion.  Commissioner Devine motioned 
to approve the agenda as submitted.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Langworthy. Motioned Carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Devine, Smith; Langworthy 
NOES:   
ABSENT: Swann; Kazmier, 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 

All maters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Commission, the public, or staff request specific items be 
removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion and/or separate action.  
 
None 

 
2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2.1 Oak Creek Canyon Project (Planning Application No. 11-0261): 
A proposal by Sunbelt Communities, Inc. (Applicant) to amend The Farm 
Specific Plan for the development of the Oak Creek Canyon 
Residential/Commercial project consisting of an Environmental Impact 
Report, General Plan Amendment No. 11-0261, Change of Zone No. 11-
0261, Specific Plan Amendment No. 4 to Farm Specific Plan No. 116-C/W 
and Tentative Tract Map No. 36388 for the subdivision into 275 lots for future 
single family residential development with private parks/recreational 
amenities, open space/trails, including an approximate 5.0 acre parcel for 
future commercial/retail development located within Phase/Planning Areas 
Nos. 9, 17A, 18 & 19 of the Farm Specific Plan No. 116-C/W. 

 
Director Bassi made a presentation to the Planning Commission.  
 
Chairman Smith opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Larry Markham, representing the applicant, gave a power point presentation 
regarding the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Gary Andre, resident commented about the project.  
 
Ms. Gayl A. Taylor, resident spoke in favor of the project. 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

March 6, 2013 
 

3 

 
Ms. Geri Zona, resident spoke in opposition to the project. 
 
Ms. Sheryl Ade, resident, with donated time from Gil Rasmussen, commented 
about the project.  
 
Mr. Rocky Jackson, President of the Farm Property Owners Association 
commented about the project.  
 
Mr. Glenn Neal, resident, spoke in favor of the project.  
 
Ms. Anna Hoover, Pechanga Band Luiseño Indians, donated her time to Ms. 
Michele Fahley.  
 
Ms. Michele Fahley, Pechanga Band Luiseño Indians, commented on the project.  
 
Mr. Mike Sayer, resident, submitted a speaker request form but did not comment.  
 
Mr. Christopher Nelson, resident, spoke in opposition to the project.  
 
Ms. Martha L. Bridges, resident, commented about the project.  
 
Mr. Ken Hamilton, resident, commented about the project.  
 
Mr. George W. Taylor, resident, spoke in favor of the project.  
 
Ms. Lynne Hamilton, resident, commented about the project. 
 
Mr. Larry Markham, representing the applicant, spoke in rebuttal to the public 
comments. 
 
With no further public comments, Chairman Smith closed the public hearing and 
asked for any further comments or questions from the Commission. 
 
With no further discussion, Chairman Smith asked for the following motions to be 
taken in order as follows: 

 
1. A motion to approve the amended PC Resolution No. 13-05 entitled: 

 
PC Resolution No. 13-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL ADOPTION 
AND CERTIFICATION OF AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 
2012031064) AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
FOR THE OAK CREEK CANYON RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL PROJECT 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

March 6, 2013 
 

4 

 
CONSISTING OF GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 11-0261, CHANGE OF 
ZONE NO. 11-0261, FARM SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 116-C/W, AMENDMENT 
NO. 4 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 11-0261) AND TENTATIVE TRACT 
MAP NO. 36388. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Devine and was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motion carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  
AYES:  Langworthy, Smith, Devine 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Swann III; Kazmier 
ABSTAIN:  

 
2. A motion to approve PC Resolution No. 13-06 entitled: 

 
PC Resolution No. 13-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 
OF GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 11-0261 TO 1) AMEND THE 
GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP FROM MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
TO MEDIUM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL FOR PHASE/PLANNING AREAS 
NO. 9 AND 18; AND 2) TO AMEND THE GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP 
FROM MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (ON A PORTION OF APN: 362-080-
004) TO COMMERCIAL RETAIL FOR PHASE/PLANNING AREA NO. 19 AND 
3) INCREASE THE SIZE OF PHASE/PLANNING AREA NO. 19 FROM 1.0 
ACRES TO 5.0 ACRES AND RELOCATE THE PHASE/PLANNING AREA TO 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF BUNDY CANYON ROAD AND SUNSET 
AVENUE (ON A PORTION OF APN: 362-080-004) FOR THE OAK CREEK 
CANYON RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL PROJECT. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Devine and was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motion carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Langworthy, Smith, Devine 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Swann III; Kazmier 
ABSTAIN:  

 
3. A motion to approve PC Resolution No. 13-07 entitled: 

 
PC Resolution No. 13-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 
OF CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 11-0261 TO CHANGE THE ZONING MAP 
FROM: 1) R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING) TO R-4 (PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

March 6, 2013 
 

5 

 
ZONE) FOR PHASE/PLANNING AREA NO. 9; 2) R-1 (ONE-FAMILY 
DWELLING) TO R-4 (PLANNED RESIDENTIAL ZONE) FOR 
PHASE/PLANNING AREA NO. 18; AND 3) C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL) TO C-1/C-P (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) FOR 
PHASE/PLANNING AREA NO. 19 FOR THE OAK CREEK CANYON 
RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL PROJECT. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Devine and was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motion carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Langworthy, Smith, Devine 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Swann III; Kazmier 
ABSTAIN: 

 
4. A motion to approve PC Resolution No. 13-08 entitled: 

 
PC Resolution No. 13-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 
OF FARM SPECIFIC PLAN NO. 116-C/W, AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO 
ESTABLISH SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND DESIGN 
GUIDELINES FOR THE OAK CREEK CANYON 
RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL PROJECT. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Langworthy and was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motion carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Langworthy, Smith, Devine 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Swann III; Kazmier 
ABSTAIN: 

 
5. A motion to approve the amended PC Resolution No. 13-09 entitled: 

 
PC Resolution No. 13-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 36388 FOR THE 
SUBDIVISION OF APPROXIMATELY 151.23 ACRES INTO 275 LOTS 
FOR FUTURE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (WITH 
PRIVATE PARKS, OPEN SPACE/TRAILS, AND RECREATIONAL 
AMENITIES), AND ONE (1) LOT FOR FUTURE COMMERCIAL/RETAIL 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

March 6, 2013 
 

6 

 
DEVELOPMENT SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS FOR THE OAK CREEK 
CANYON RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL PROJECT. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Devine and was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motion carried 3-0-2, the following vote resulted:  

 
AYES:  Langworthy, Smith, Devine 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Swann III; Kazmier 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

No General Business items for discussion. 
 
 
Planning Directors Report 
 
No items for discussion. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Report 
 
No items for discussion. 
 
 
Planning Commission Communications 
 
Commissioner Langworthy commented on the Oak Creek Canyon project (PA 11-0261). 
 
Commissioner Devine commented on the Oak Creek Canyon project (PA 11-0261). 
 
 
With no other communications, Chairman Smith adjourned the regular meeting of the 
March 6, 2013 Planning Commission at 9:25 P.M.  
 
 
 
______________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 



 Agenda Item #1.2 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF WILDOMAR 
OFFICIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
FROM THE SPECIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OF APRIL 17, 2013 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The special meeting of the Wildomar Planning Commission was called to order by Planning 
Commission Chairman Smith at 6:30 P.M. at Wildomar City Hall, Council Chambers. 
 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Stan Smith, Chairman, Michael Kazmier, Vice-Chairman, Veronica 

Langworthy, Commissioner Robert Devine, Commissioner Bobby L. Swann 
III, Commissioner. 

 
Absent:  None  
 
Staff Present  Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
   Erica Vega, Assistant City Attorney 

Janet Morales, Administrative Assistant 
  Dan York, City Engineer  
    

 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
Chairman Smith led the flag salute. 
 
 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

April 17, 2013 
 

2 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS SUBMITTED 
 
Chairman Smith asked the Commission for a motion of the agenda as submitted.  
Commissioner Devine motioned to approve the agenda. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Langworthy. Motioned Carried, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Devine, Swann, Kazmier, Smith, Langworthy 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1.1 Approval of the February 20, 2013 Planning Commission meeting minutes. 

 
Vice-Chairman Kazmier motioned to approve the February 20, 2013 Planning Commission 
minutes as submitted.  Motioned was seconded by Commissioner Swann. Motioned 5-0 
Carried, the following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Devine, Swann, Kazmier, Smith, Langworthy 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2.1 Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 13-02: 
Planning Commission consideration of an amendment to the City of Wildomar Zoning 
Ordinance amending Section 17.172.205 (Fences) to establish height and location 
standards for fences and walls in the City of Wildomar. 

 
Director Bassi made a presentation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Chairman Smith opened the public hearing. 
 
No public comments were presented to the Commission. 
 
With no further public comments, Chairman Smith closed the public hearing and 
asked for a motion as follows: 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Langworthy to approve the amended PC 
Resolution No. 13-03 entitled: 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-03 
A Resolution of the Planning commission of The City of Wildomar, California, 
recommending City Council adoption of A Categorical Exemption Per Section 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

April 17, 2013 
 

3 

 
15061(b)(3) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines, 
and approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 13-02 to amend Section 
17.172.205 (Fences) to establish height and location standards for fences 
and walls in the City of Wildomar. 

 
The motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Kazmier.  Motion carried 5-0, the 
following vote resulted:  
 
AYES:  Swann, Kazmier, Smith, Devine, Langworthy, 
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 
3.1 Housing Element Workshop: 

The Planning Commission will hold a public workshop to receive public comments 
and input regarding housing related needs within the City of Wildomar.   
 
Housing Manager Jennifer Gastelum made a presentation to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Resident, Maria Walker commented about the project. 
 
With no further public comments, Chairman Smith concluded the public workshop. 
 
No motion or recommendation was needed. 

 
 
Planning Directors Report 
 
Director Bassi provided a status regarding planning departments new counter services hours, 
and the status on the Subway Project (PA No. 10-0222).   
 
 
City Attorney’s Report 
 
None.  
 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

April 17, 2013 
 

4 

 
Planning Commission Communications 
 
Commissioner Kazmier asked about the construction of a residence at the end of Corydon 
Street. 
 
Chairman Smith asked if staff could research tree planting policies/guidelines for future 
development and bring back a future zoning ordinance amendment. 
 
With no other communications, Chairman Smith adjourned the special Planning Commission 
meeting of April 17, 2013 at 8:02 P.M.  
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 



 Agenda Item #1.3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF WILDOMAR 
OFFICIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
FROM THE SPECIAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OF MAY 15, 2013 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The special meeting of the Wildomar Planning Commission was called to order by Planning 
Commission Chairman Smith at 6:30 P.M. at Wildomar City Hall, Council Chambers. 
 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Stan Smith, Chairman, Michael Kazmier, Vice-Chairman, Robert Devine, 

Commissioner, Bobby L. Swann III, Commissioner, 
 
Absent:  Commissioner, Veronica Langworthy 
 
Staff Present  Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
   Alfredo Garcia, Assistant Planner  
   Erica Vega, Assistant City Attorney 

  Dan York, City Engineer  
   

 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
Chairman Smith led the flag salute. 
 
 
 
 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

May 15, 2013 
 

2 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS SUBMITTED 
 
Chairman Smith asked the Commission for a motion to approve the agenda as submitted.  
Commissioner Devine motioned to approve the agenda .The motion was seconded by Vice 
Chairman Kazmier. Motion carried 4-0-1, with the following vote resulted: 
 
AYES:  Devine, Swann, Kazmier, Smith,  
NOES:   
ABSENT: Langworthy 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
None 

 
 
2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS:  
 

3.1 2006 – 2021 Draft Housing Element Update: 
Planning Commission review of the 2013-2021 Draft Housing Element. 
 
Housing Manager Jennifer Gastelum made a presentation to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
There are no public speakers or comments. 
 
With no further questions or discussion, Chairman Smith asked for a motion. A motion 
was made by Commissioner Devine to recommend the Draft Housing Element to be 
reviewed by the City Council. The motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Kazmier.  
Motion carried 4-0-1, with the following vote resulted:  
AYES:  Swann, Kazmier, Devine, Smith 
NOES:    
ABSENT:  Langworthy, 
ABSTAIN:  
 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

May 15, 2013 
 

3 

 
3.2 Capital Improvement Program for 2013/14 – 2017/18: 

Planning Commission’s Annual Review of the Public Works Department Capital 
Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2013 – 2018. 

 
City Engineer Dan York made a presentation to the Planning Commission. 
 
There are no public speakers or comments.  
 
With no further questions or discussion, Chairman Smith asked for a motion. 
 
A motion was made by Vice- Chairman Kazmier to approve PC Resolution No. 13-10 
entitled: 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-10 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
A DETERMINATION THAT THE 2013 - 2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
GENERAL PLAN 

 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Devine.  Motion carried 4-0-1, with the 
following vote resulted: 
 
AYES:  Swann, Kazmier, Devine, Smith 
NOES:    
ABSENT:  Langworthy, 
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
Planning Directors Report 
 
Director Bassi also commented that we are seeing an increase of new projects in the City of 
Wildomar, and that several public hearings are being scheduled for the July, August and 
September meetings.  
 
 
City Attorney’s Report 
 
None. 
 
 
Planning Commission Communications 
 
Chairman Smith commented regarding clothing kiosks in the commercial centers.  
 



City of Wildomar 
Official Planning Commission Minutes 

May 15, 2013 
 

4 

 
With no other communications, Chairman Smith adjourned the special meeting May 15, 2013 
Planning Commission meeting at 7:33 P.M.  
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA SECTION 2.0 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 



CITY OF WILDOMAR – PLANNING COMMISSION 
Agenda Item No. 2.1 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2013 

 
 

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301): 

Planning Commission consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program and a Tentative Parcel Map 
(TPM No. 30522) for the subdivision of 10.26 acres into seven (7) parcels 
for future commercial/retail development located on the SEC of Orange 
Street and Bundy Canyon Road (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032) 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Department recommends the Planning Commission take the following 
actions: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 

PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING & REPORTING 
PROGRAM FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 30522 (PLANNING 
APPLICATION NO. 10-0301) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF ORANGE STREET AND BUNDY CANYON ROAD (APN: 
367-100-026 & 367-100-032) 

 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 

PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 
NO. 30522 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 10-0301) TO SUBDIVIDE A 
10.26 ACRE SITE INTO SEVEN (7) LOTS FOR FUTURE 
COMMERCIAL/RETAIL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORANGE STREET AND BUNDY CANYON 
ROAD (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 1 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
Project Location/Vicinity: 
 
The proposed project site is located specifically at the southeast corner of Bundy Canyon 
Road and Orange Street, and is situated generally in the northwest portion of the city 
adjacent to Interstate 15 freeway and east of Elsinore High School.  Currently, the 
project site is vacant.  The vicinity map below shows the project site and general 
location with some of the surrounding land uses. 
 

Vicinity/Location Map 

 
 
 
 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
 
The project site is surrounded by existing commercial uses to the north, residential uses 
to the west, vacant property to the immediate south with existing residential uses across 
Canyon Drive.  To the east is the Shell Gas station and Circle K mini-mart (currently 
under construction).  The summary table on the following page lists the current land 
uses, general plan designations and zoning designations for the site and abutting 
properties.  Staff has also provided two exhibits (on the following pages) showing the 
general plan land use and zoning designations from our GIS data base 
 

Elsinore High 
School 
Elsinore High 
School 

Arco Gas Station & 
Jack-in-the-Box 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 2 



 
 

General Plan Land Use Exhibit 
 

 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE, GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING 

Location Current Land Use General Plan Land Use 
Designation Zoning 

Subject 
Property Vacant Commercial Retail (CR) C-P-S 

North Commercial Commercial Retail (CR) C-P-S 

South Vacant / Residential Commercial Retail (CR) C-1/C-P 

East Commercial Commercial Retail (CR) R-R (across I-15) 

West Residential 
Commercial Retail (CR) / 

Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) 

R-R 

Project Site 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 3 



Zoning Designation Exhibit 
 

 
 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522: 
 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 proposes to subdivide two existing parcels that total 
approximately 10.26 acres into seven (7) parcels for future commercial/retail 
development.  The seven new parcels would be numbered Parcels 1 through 7 and 
would be divided as shown in the exhibit on the following page.  The parcels will range 
in size from 1.08 to 2.12 gross acres as illustrated in the table below. 
 

Parcel Number 
Project Site Acreages 

Gross Ac. Net Ac. Dedicated Land 

1 1.31 1.02 0.29 

2 1.38 1.29 0.09 

3 2.12 1.99 0.29 

4 1.43 1.43 – 

5 1.18 1.18 – 

6 1.76 1.74 0.06 

7 1.08 0.86 0.52 

Totals 10.26  9.51 1.45 

Project Site 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 4 



The design of the proposed subdivision is illustrated in the exhibit below.  A full size 
copy of Parcel Map No. 30522 is provided for Commission consideration (Refer to 
Attachment C - under separate cover). 
 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 Exhibit 
 

 
 

Parcel 1 

Parcel 2 

Parcel 3 Parcel 4 

Parcel 5 
Parcel 6 

Parcel 7 

Orange  St 

Bundy Canyon Rd. 

I-15 On-Ramp 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 5 



Development Assumptions: 
 
The Zoning Ordinance requires plot plan review (and when applicable, a conditional use 
permit) for all commercial projects.  At this time, there is no development plot plan 
proposal with this parcel map; however, staff requested the applicant to provide a 
conceptual site plan for Parcels 1 and 2 to see how they could likely developed in context 
to the overall area.  It also aided in the preparation of the environmental analysis.  The 
applicant has conveyed that these two parcels will likely be developed first as both have 
street frontage on Bundy Canyon Road.  The conceptual uses (fast food restaurant and 
gas station) envisioned for Parcels 1 and 2 were also used in the preparation of the traffic 
analysis and MND discussion for the project. 
 
Below is a summary of the development assumptions for each parcel. 
 
Parcel 1  
This site envisions development of a future gas station which will require approval of a 
conditional use permit when a formal application is submitted.  For purposes of the 
conceptual site plan, the gas station is assumed to have a 12 fueling position service 
station and convenience market with approximately 30 parking spaces.  
 
Parcel 2  
This site envisions development of a future fast-food restaurant which is permitted with 
a Plot Plan application in the C-P-S zone district.  This conceptual layout assumed an 
approximate 3,200-square-foot fast-food restaurant with drive-through window and 70 
parking spaces. 
 
Parcel 3  
Because Parcel 3 has one of the shared driveways for the proposed project, at least a 
portion of the site must be paved to support future development anticipated on Parcels 
1 and 2. As shown on the parcel map, Parcel 3 would include provide access with the 
development of Parcels 1 and 2, and eventually approximately 200 parking spaces for 
development on Parcels 4 through 6.  
 
Parcels 4 through 6 
These parcels would probably develop with commercial structures and parking and be 
designed to visually include the gas station and restaurant on Parcels 1 and 2 as “pad 
sites” in a small shopping center development oriented toward Orange Street and 
Bundy Canyon Road. Initially these parcels would be graded as needed to help balance 
the site and eliminate the need for import/export of fill material. 
 
Parcel 7 
Parcel 7 will contain the stormwater facilities that will be capable of providing 
stormwater drainage to the entire site in its full buildout condition. Development of this 
parcel will also require City standard street improvements along Orange Street. 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 6 



Street Dedication/Circulation/Utilities 
 
As part of the parcel map process, dedication of right-of-way will occur along both 
Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street to enable future development of the frontages 
on these roads.  They will be improved as required in City Standard 201 and 401 for 
Bundy Canyon Road and Standard 94 for Orange Street.  Note that Parcels 4 and 5 do 
not front either of the roadways and will not need to provide right-of-way dedication.   
 
The project proposes three shared driveways as follows: 1) a right-in-right-out only 
driveway (per Caltrans standards) on Bundy Canyon Road between Parcels 1 and 2, 
and 2) two full-access driveways on Orange Street on Parcels 3 and 6.  Access from the 
shared driveways to the parcels will be through mutual access easements.  The 
applicant has been conditioned to record a reciprocal access and parking agreement 
along with the final parcel map. 
 
The division of the land will also necessitate the extension of municipal utilities to the 
project site. These utilities include water, sewer, power, cable television, and telephone. 
All utilities will be underground in accordance with city standards and located within the 
road right-of-way or public utility easements.  As part of the map, the project will provide 
a storm drainage system designed to accommodate buildout of all parcels. The entire 
site will be graded with the first phase of the project.  
 
South of the Orange Street/Bundy Canyon Road intersection, Orange Street would be 
realigned and striped to accommodate one southbound through lane, two northbound 
through lanes, one westbound left-turn lane, and one eastbound right-turn lane. East of 
the Orange Street/Bundy Canyon Road intersection, Bundy Canyon Road would be 
realigned and striped to accommodate one northbound right-turn lane, one westbound 
through lane, one southbound left-turn lane, one eastbound right-turn-only lane (to the 
project site and/or I-15 onramp), two eastbound through lanes, and a 4-foot-wide raised-
curb median. As part of the project improvements, the Orange Street and Bundy 
Canyon Road crosswalks will be realigned to join the realigned corner. 
 
CEQA Description: 
 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines, the 
proposed project required the preparation and processing of Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program (MMRP).  The MND 
and MMRP must be reviewed and adopted by the Planning Commission as part of the 
approval process.  A more detailed analysis of the MND process is provided in the 
Environmental Section of this report.  A copy of the MND & MMRP are provided for 
Commission consideration (refer to Attachment A, Exhibit’s 1 & 2). 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 7 



PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
Project CEQA/MND 
 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA - Public Resources 
Code Section 21000–21178.1), an Initial Study was prepared to analyze the proposed 
parcel map project to determine any potential significant impacts upon the environment 
that would result from implementation of the project.  The Initial Study is intended to 
inform the Planning Commission, responsible agencies and the general public of 
potential environmental impacts associated with the proposed project, and is key to 
determining whether a Negative Declaration, Mitigated Negative Declaration or an 
Environmental Impact Report is required. 
 
Upon submittal and determination of the final project design, staff prepared the draft 
Initial Study and determined that a Mitigated Negative Declaration was required for 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522. A copy of the draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program is provided for Commission 
consideration (refer to Attachment A, Exhibit 1 and 2).  In accordance with CEQA law, 
the draft IS/MND was released a 30-day public review period which began on April 2, 
2013 and concluded on May 2, 2013.  Prior to the public review period, the document 
was sent to the State Clearinghouse and the City’s local distribution list in accordance 
with CEQA law.  In addition, a Notice of Intent (NOI) was filed with the Riverside County 
Clerk, and a legal advertisement was placed in the Californian newspaper notifying the 
general public of the 30 day review period.  A hard copy of the draft IS/MND document 
was placed at the Mission Trial Library, Planning Department public counter and on the 
City’s website for public review. 
 
During the review period, staff received five (5) comment letters from various agencies. 
The comments received on the draft IS/MND did not require any changes to the 
IS/MND, mitigation measures or require re-circulation of the document.  A copy of the 
comments and staff’s responses to each comment is provided for Commission 
consideration in Attachment A, Exhibit 3. 
 
 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522: 
 
The applicant has proposed Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 to subdivide two existing 
parcels (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032) totaling approximately 10.26 acres into 
seven (7) parcels for future commercial/retail development.  Each of the seven (7) 
parcels is adequate in size to accommodate commercial development, and in some 
cases, these parcels could be joined in the future to form larger parcels as market 
needs arise.  As there is no minimum lot size requirement for commercial parcels in the 
C-P-S zone, each parcel size meets and exceeds the minimum development standards 
(refer to lot summary table below).  Based on this, the propose parcel map is consistent 
with the development standards of the C-P-S zone.   
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 8 



Parcel Number 
Project Site Acreages 

Gross Ac. Net Ac. Dedicated Land 

1 1.31 1.02 0.29 

2 1.38 1.29 0.09 

3 2.12 1.99 0.29 

4 1.43 1.43 – 

5 1.18 1.18 – 

6 1.76 1.74 0.06 

7 1.08 0.86 0.52 

Totals 10.26  9.51 1.45 

 
 
REQUIRED PROJECT FINDINGS 
 
CEQA Findings: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission, in light of the whole record before it 
including but not limited to the staff report, proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program, documents incorporated herein by 
reference, written comments received and responses provided, and other substantial 
evidence (within the meaning of Public Resources Code § 21080(e) and § 21082.2) 
within the record and/or provided at the public hearing, find and determines as follows:  
 
A. Review Period:  That the City has provided the public review period for the 

Mitigated Negative Declaration for the required 30-day pubic review period 
required by CEQA Guidelines Sections 15073 and 15105. 

 
B. Compliance with Law:  That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 

Monitoring & Reporting Program were prepared, processed, and noticed in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et seq.), the CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations 
Section 15000 et seq.). 

 
C. Independent Judgment:  That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 

Monitoring & Reporting Program reflects the independent judgment and analysis of 
the City. 

 
D. Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program: That the Mitigation Monitoring & 

Reporting Program is designed to ensure compliance during project 
implementation in that changes to the project and/or mitigation measures have 
been incorporated into the project and are fully enforceable through permit 
conditions, agreements or other measures as required by Public Resources Code 
Section 21081.6. 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 9 



E. No Significant Effect:  That revisions made to the project as agreed to by the 
applicant and mitigation measures imposed as conditions of approval on the 
project, avoid or mitigate any potential significant effects on the environment 
identified in the Initial Study to a point below the threshold of significance. 
Furthermore, after taking into consideration the revisions to the project and the 
mitigation measures imposed, the Planning Commission finds that there is no 
substantial evidence, in light of the whole record, from which it could be fairly 
argued that the project may have a significant effect on the environment. 
Therefore, the Planning Commission concludes that the project will not have a 
significant effect on the environment with the proposed Mitigation Measures and 
Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program. 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522: 
 
In accordance with Title 16 and Title 17 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and 
Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the 
Planning Department’s staff report and all documents incorporated by reference therein, 
the City’s General Plan, Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, standards for public 
streets and facilities, and any other evidence within the record or provided at the public 
hearing of this matter, find and determine as follows: 
 
A. The proposed parcel map is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any 

applicable specific plan as specified in Government Code Section 65451. 
 

Evidence:  The proposed Parcel Map No. 30522 is consistent with the City’s 
General Plan in that the land use designation for the project site is Commercial 
Retail. The Commercial Retail designation is intended to allow for the 
development of commercial retail uses at a neighborhood, community and 
regional level, as well as for professional office and tourist-oriented commercial 
uses (Page LU-58). As the proposed project is designed as a commercial parcel 
map that can accommodate future commercial, retail and office development, the 
project is consistent with the General Plan.  In terms of specific land use policies 
related to this project, the proposed parcel map promotes (and is consistent with) 
the following commercially related land use policies: 
 
LU 3.1 (Community Design) – “Accommodate land use development in 
accordance with the patterns and distribution of uses and density depicted on the 
General Plan Land Use map.” 
 
LU 6.1 (Land Use Compatibility) – “Require land uses to develop in accordance 
with the General Plan and area plans to ensure compatibility and minimize 
impacts.” 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 10 



LU 7.1 (Economic Development) – “Accommodate the development of a balance 
of land uses that maintain and enhance the City’s fiscal viability, economic 
diversity and environmental integrity.” 
 
LU 23.1 (Commercial Land Use) – “Accommodate the development of 
commercial uses in areas appropriately designated by the General Plan and area 
plan land use maps.” 

 
B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the 

City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan. [this finding is a repeat of the 
previous finding. ] 

 
Evidence:  The proposed parcel map and future commercial development of the 
project site has been designed to meet all City standards applicable to commercial 
development which is intended to provide safe pedestrian and vehicular circulation, 
including emergency vehicle access and on-site and off-site public improvements. 
Further, all streets, utilities, and drainage facilities have been designed and are 
required to be constructed in conformance with City standards. 

 
C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development. 
 

Evidence:  The project site encompasses approximately 10.26 acres subdivided 
into seven (7) parcels for commercial development.  Each parcel has been 
designed and subdivided to adequately accommodate individual commercial retail 
uses, as well as provide for the opportunity to, in the future, consolidate parcels to 
accommodate larger commercial developments as the market dictates.  Therefore, 
the proposed project site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 
development. 

 
D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 
 
Evidence:  The City prepared an Initial Study for the proposed parcel map project 
that resulted in the preparation, processing and review of a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND).  The MND analyzed the environmental issues required by 
CEQA law, including potential impacts to fish and wildlife and their respective 
habitats.  Based on this review, it was determined that the project improvements 
will not cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably 
injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. Therefore, the proposed parcel map meets this 
finding. 
 

E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious 
public health problems. 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 11 



Evidence:  The design of the proposed parcel map subdivision is in conformance 
with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance which 
provides minimum development standards. Further, the parcel map has been 
conditioned to construct all required public improvements to accommodate future 
commercial and retail development in accordance with all applicable City of 
Wildomar ordinances, codes, and standards including, but not limited to, the 
California Uniform Building Code, the City’s Ordinances relating to stormwater 
runoff management and adopted public works standards.  As the City’s 
ordinances, codes, and standards have been created based on currently accepted 
standards and practices for the preservation of the public health, safety and 
welfare, the proposed Parcel map project meets this finding. 
 

F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with 
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
Evidence:  No easements of record or easements established by judgment of a 
court of competent jurisdiction for public access across the site have been 
disclosed in a search of the title records for the site and the City does not 
otherwise have any constructive or actual knowledge of any such easements. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICING 
 
In accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 65090, the Planning 
Department on June 20, 2013, mailed a public hearing notice to all property owners 
within a 300-foot radius of the proposed project boundaries notifying them of the July 3, 
2013 Planning Commission public hearing for the proposed project.  In addition, on 
June 21, 2013, a legal notice was published in the Press Enterprise, a local newspaper 
of general circulation, notifying the general public of the July 3, 2013 Planning 
Commission hearing for the proposed parcel map project. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Matthew C. Bassi     Erica Vega 
Planning Director     Assistant City Attorney 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. PC Resolution No. 13-11 for IS/MND/MMRP 
Exhibit 1 – Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (under separate cover) 
Exhibit 2 - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) 
Exhibit 3 - Responses to Comments on Draft MND 

B. PC Resolution No. 13-12 for Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 
Exhibit 1  -  Conditions of Approval Matrix 

C. Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 Plans (Reductions) 
D. Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 Plans (full size – under separate cover) 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 12 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-11 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 
 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 13 



PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-11 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND 
MITIGATION MONITORING & REPORTING PROGRAM 
FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 30522 (PLANNING 
APPLICATION NO. 10-0301) LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORANGE STREET AND 
BUNDY CANYON ROAD (APN: 367-100-026 & 367-100-
032) 

 
WHEREAS, an application for a Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 30522) for the 

subdivision of 10.26 acres into seven (7) parcels for future commercial/retail 
development located on the SEC of Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road (APN: 367-
100-024 & 026). has been filed by:  

 
Applicant / Owner:  Orange/Bundy Partners, LTD 
Authorized Agent:  Mr. Joseph Lacko, JL Management 
Project Location:  SEC Corner of Orange Street & Bundy Canyon Road 
APN Number:  367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Lot Area:   10.26 acres 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application 

No. 10-0301) is considered a “project” as defined by the California Environmental 
Quality Act, Public Resources Code § 21000 et seq. (“CEQA”); and 

 
WHEREAS, after completion of an Initial Study, the Planning Director determined 

that it did not identify any potentially significant effects on the environment nor was there 
any substantial evidence from which it could be fairly argued that the project would have 
a significant effect on the environment.  Therefore, staff has recommended to the 
Planning Commission adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration consists of the 

following documents: Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, Mitigation Monitoring 
& Reporting Program, and applicable Technical Appendices, comments and responses, 
etc.); and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 3, 2013, using a method required under CEQA Guidelines 

Section 15072(b), the City provided a Notice of Intent to adopt the proposed Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration to the State Clearinghouse, general public, local 
distribution list, responsible/trustee agencies, and the Riverside County Clerk; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 3, 2013, the draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 

Declaration was posted in three public places for review at: 1) Wildomar City Hall, 2) 
Wildomar Mission Trail Library, 3) the City of Wildomar website; and 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 14 



WHEREAS, the City made the proposed Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration document available for public review commencing on April 3, 2013 and 
concluding on May 2, 2013, a period of not less than 30 days.  During the public review 
period, the City received five (5) written comments concerning the proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and staff responded to each comment as provided herein this 
resolution as Exhibit 3; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 

65090, the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 20, 2013, gave public notice 
by mailing a public hearing notice to all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the 
project boundaries notifying said property owners of the date and time of the public 
hearing for the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration that would be considered by 
the City of Wildomar Planning Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 

65090 the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 21, 2013, published a legal 
notice in the “Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, in compliance 
with State law notifying the public of the holding of a public hearing for the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration that would be considered by the City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 65353, the City of 

Wildomar Planning Commission conducted the duly noticed public hearing on July 3, 
2013, at which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or 
opposition to the proposed the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and at which 
time the Planning Commission received public testimony concerning the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Wildomar does 

hereby resolve, determine, order as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. CEQA FINDINGS.   
 

The Planning Commission, in light of the whole record before it including but not 
limited to the staff report, proposed Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program (attached hereto as Exhibit 1 to this 
Resolution), documents incorporated herein by reference, written comments received 
and responses provided, and other substantial evidence (within the meaning of Public 
Resources Code § 21080(e) and § 21082.2) within the record and/or provided at the 
public hearing, find and determines as follows:  
 
A. Review Period:  That the City has provided the public review period for the 

Mitigated Negative Declaration for the required 30-day pubic review period 
required by CEQA Guidelines Sections 15073 and 15105. 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 15 



B. Compliance with Law:  That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring & Reporting Program were prepared, processed, and noticed in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et seq.), the CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations 
Section 15000 et seq.). 

 
C. Independent Judgment:  That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 

Monitoring & Reporting Program reflects the independent judgment and analysis of 
the City. 

 
D. Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program: That the Mitigation Monitoring & 

Reporting Program is designed to ensure compliance during project 
implementation in that changes to the project and/or mitigation measures have 
been incorporated into the project and are fully enforceable through permit 
conditions, agreements or other measures as required by Public Resources Code 
Section 21081.6. 

 
E. No Significant Effect:  That revisions made to the project as agreed to by the 

applicant and mitigation measures imposed as conditions of approval on the 
project, avoid or mitigate any potential significant effects on the environment 
identified in the Initial Study to a point below the threshold of significance. 
Furthermore, after taking into consideration the revisions to the project and the 
mitigation measures imposed, the Planning Commission finds that there is no 
substantial evidence, in light of the whole record, from which it could be fairly 
argued that the project may have a significant effect on the environment. 
Therefore, the Planning Commission concludes that the project will not have a 
significant effect on the environment with the proposed Mitigation Measures and 
Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program. 

 
SECTION 2. MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN (MSHCP).   
 
 The project is found to be consistent with the MSHCP.  The project is located 
outside of any MSHCP criteria area and mitigation is provided through payment of the 
MSHCP Mitigation Fee. 
 
SECTION 3. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS.   
 
The Planning Commission hereby takes the following actions: 
 

1. Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration:  The Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program for Parcel Map 
No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) is hereby approved and adopted as 
provided herein as Exhibit 1 and 2 of this Resolution. 

 
2. Notice of Determination:  In compliance with Public Resources Code § 

21152 and CEQA Guidelines § 15075, the Planning Director shall prepare a Notice of 
Determination concerning the approval and adoption of the Initial Study/Mitigated 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 16 



Negative Declaration, and within five (5) working days of project approval, file the Notice 
with the Riverside County Clerk for posting.  
 

3. Location:  The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring & Reporting Program for Parcel Map No. 30522, and all documents 
incorporated therein or forming the record of decision therefore, shall be filed with the 
Wildomar Planning Department at the Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, 
Suite 201, Wildomar, California 92595, and shall be made available for public review 
upon request. 
 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of July 2013, by the 

following vote: 
 
AYES.   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Stan Smith 

Planning Commission Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Eric Vega, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 17 



EXHIBIT 1 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration

Technical Studies (Under Separate Cover) 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 18 



 
 

INITIAL STUDY FOR THE  

 
BUNDY CANYON ROAD AND ORANGE STREET SUBDIVISION 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (30522)  

(Planning Application 10-0301) 
 

Lead Agency: 

CITY OF WILDOMAR 

23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 

Wildomar, CA  92595 

 

Prepared by: 

PMC 

6020 Cornerstone Court West, Suite 260 

San Diego, CA  92121 

 

March 2013 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................... 1 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION ....................................................................................................................... 1 

PROJECT LOCATION AND SETTING..................................................................................................................... 1 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................................... 7 

DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS ......................................................................................................................... 7 

III EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..................................................................................................................... 21 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES ........................................................................................ 22 

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST .......................................................................................................... 34 

A. BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................................. 34 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED .............................................................................. 35 

C. DETERMINATION ............................................................................................................................. 36 

V. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................ 37 

1. AESTHETICS ............................................................................................................................................. 37 

2. AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES ....................................................................................................................... 40 

3. AIR QUALITY ........................................................................................................................................... 41 

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ............................................................................................................................ 52 

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES .............................................................................................................................. 59 

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS ................................................................................................................................ 63 

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS .................................................................................................................... 67 

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ....................................................................................................... 73 

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY ............................................................................................................. 76 

10. LAND USE AND PLANNING ....................................................................................................................... 83 

11. MINERAL RESOURCES ............................................................................................................................. 85 

12. NOISE .................................................................................................................................................. 86 

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING .................................................................................................................... 92 

14. PUBLIC SERVICES .................................................................................................................................... 93 

15. RECREATION .......................................................................................................................................... 96 

16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC ..................................................................................................................... 97 

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS ............................................................................................................. 102 

VI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE .................................................................................... 108 

REFERENCES ....................................................................................................................................... 113 



 

 

TABLES 

Table 1-1   Proposed Parcel Acreage .........................................................................................................7 

Table 3-1 Maximum Short-Term Unmitigated Emissions  Associated with the Construction of Parcel 1, 
Parcel 2, Driveway on Parcel 3 and Parcel 7 (Phase I) (pounds per day) ..................................................... 43 

Table 3-2 Maximum Short-Term Unmitigated Emissions Associated  with the Future Construction of a 200 
Space Parking Lot on Parcel 3 (pounds per day) .......................................................................................... 44 

Table 3-3 Equipment-Specific Grading Rates ............................................................................................... 46 

Table 3-4 Construction Local Significance Threshold (LST) Impacts (pounds per day)................................ 46 

Table 3-5 Long-Term Unmitigated Operational Emissions Parcels 1 and 2 (pounds per day) .................... 47 

Table 3-6 Operational Local Significance Threshold (LST) Impacts (pounds per day) ................................. 48 

Table 3-7 Screening Evaluation of Potential Cancer Risk to Proposed Receptors Attributable to I-15 ....... 50 

Table 4-1 Plants and Animals Observed ...................................................................................................... 54 

Table 4-1 Plants and Animals Observed ...................................................................................................... 54 

Table 7-1 Construction-Related and Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons per year) ....... 69 

Table 7-2 Long-Term Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions .................................................................... 70 

Table 12-1 Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels ........................................................................... 87 

Table 12-2 Typical Construction-Equipment Vibration Levels ..................................................................... 89 

Table 16-1 TIA Study Intersections .............................................................................................................. 98 

Table 17-1 EVMWD Demand Assumptions and Predictions ...................................................................... 103 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 Regional Location Map ................................................................................................................3 

Figure 2 Local Vicinity Map .......................................................................................................................5 

Figure 3a Tentative Map Sheet 1 of 2 ...................................................................................................... 11 

Figure 3b  Tentative Map Sheet 2 of 2 ...................................................................................................... 13 

Figure 4A Preliminary Grading Plan Sheet 1 of 2 ...................................................................................... 15 

Figure 4B Preliminary Grading Plan Sheet 2 of 2 ...................................................................................... 17 

Figure 5 Site Plan (Assumed Development for Parcels 1 through 3) ..................................................... 19 

 

 

  



 

 

Note to Reader: To save natural resources, the appendices are contained on a CD-ROM included with the 
printed copy of this Initial Study. The appendices are also available on the Environmental Documents 
Center of the City of Wildomar Planning Department website 
(http://www.cityofwildomar.org/planning.asp). Printed copies of the appendices are also available as 
part of the project file and can be reviewed at the following location:   

City of Wildomar City Hall 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201  
Wildomar, CA  92595  
Hours: Monday – Thursday, 8 a.m. – 5 p.m. (closed Fridays)  

 

APPENDICES 

A Phasing and Future Development Concepts 

B Site Photos 

C  Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

D Habitat Suitability Assessment 

E  Geologic/Fault Investigation  

F  Preliminary Hydrology Study  

G Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan  

H Acoustical Analysis  

I Traffic Impact Analysis  

 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 1 

I. INTRODUCTION 

PURPOSE 

This document is an Initial Study that evaluates the environmental impacts resulting from the 
implementation of a proposed Tentative Parcel Map that would subdivide approximately 10.3 acres into 
seven parcels zoned for commercial/retail development at the southeast corner of Bundy Canyon Road 
and Orange Street in Wildomar, California.  

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

PROJECT LOCATION AND SETTING 

The proposed project site (No. 10-0031) is located at the southeast corner of Bundy Canyon Road and 
Orange Street in Wildomar, California. The regional and local vicinity of the project site are shown in Figures 
1 and 2. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs) for the project site are 367-100-026 and 367-100-032. 

The proposed project site is located in the northwest portion of the city adjacent to Interstate 15 (I-15) at 
the Bundy Canyon Road exit. The project is located west of the southbound I-15 onramp, north of vacant 
land designated for Commercial Retail (CR) land uses, east of Orange Street, and south of Bundy Canyon 
Road. Currently, the project site is vacant. The site is approximately 1,345 to 1,391 feet above mean sea 
level. The latitude and longitude location for the site are 33°37'33.33"N and 117°16'27.83"W, 
respectively. 

The north half of the site has been graded and the soils are compacted. The south half of the site has 
been disked. Mapped soils on the site are Ramona sandy loam, Ramona very fine sandy loam, Greenfield 
sandy loam, and Hanford coarse sandy loam (Soil Conservation Service 1971). Soils observed on the site 
appear consistent with these designations. One remnant drainage was identified within the proposed 
project area. The earthen channel begins in the northeastern quarter of the site and crosses the site from 
east to west. It is approximately 20 feet wide at its widest in the eastern portion of the site and 
approximately 2 feet wide at the western edge of the study area. The upstream feeding waters to this 
drainage were relocated underground in 2006/2007 by the Riverside County Flood Control District. Water 
is conveyed into the storm drainage system west of the site near its boundary with the I-15 right of way. 
The abandoned, on site drainage does not currently receive any storm flows from upstream areas and no 
longer has any connectivity to any upstream or downstream waters. This remnant drainage does not 
support any aquatic, wetland, or riparian habitat and no longer functions as a stream. No potential 
jurisdictional wetlands or jurisdictional streambed occur within the study area. (LSA, 2012) 

The City of Wildomar General Plan land use designation for the project site is Commercial Retail (CR), 
which allows for local and regional-serving retail and service uses. The General Plan land use designation 
for the properties immediately adjacent to the project site on the north, northwest, south, east, and west 
is also Commercial Retail. The property to the southwest is designated for Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) land uses, and the nearest homes are across Orange Street approximately 100 feet west of the 
project site.  

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 2 

The project site is zoned Scenic Highway Commercial (C-P-S). The CPS zone district allows for retail and 
commercial uses conducted within a building and includes uses such as restaurants, retail, and 
convenience markets. Other uses permitted with a conditional use permit include larger gas service 
stations and automobile repair shops (17.80 Wildomar Municipal Code). The zoning for the adjacent 
properties includes Scenic Highway Commercial (C-P-S) to the north, south, and southeast; General 
Commercial (C-1/C-P) to the northwest and northeast; and Rural Residential (R-R) to the southwest.  



Source:  ESRI Streetmap USA, PMC

T:\
_G

IS\
RIV

ER
SID

E_
CO

UN
TY

\M
XD

S\
WI

LD
OM

AR
\O

RA
NG

E_
BU

ND
Y\

FIG
UR

E 1
 RE

GI
ON

AL
.M

XD
 - 8

/1
6/

20
12

 @
 4:

29
:57

 PM

3.5 0 3.5

MILES

Project
Location

Figure 1
Regional Vicintiy Map

Riverside
County

Wildomar

CA L I F O RN I A



 



Figure 2
Source:  

T:\
_G

IS\
RIV

ER
SID

E_
CO

UN
TY

\M
XD

S\
WI

LD
OM

AR
\O

RA
NG

E_
BU

ND
Y\

FIG
UR

E 2
 PR

OJ
EC

T L
OC

AT
IO

N.
MX

D 
- 8

/1
6/

20
12

 @
 4:

30
:31

 PM

300 0 300

FEET Project Location Map

Project
Area



 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 7 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is applying for a Tentative Parcel Map (30522) to subdivide two existing parcels, totaling 
approximately 10.3 acres, into seven parcels for future commercial development. Existing parcels include 
APN 367-100-026, which encompasses approximately 2.4 acres, and APN 367-100-032, which 
encompasses approximately 7.9 acres. The seven new parcels would be numbered Parcels 1 through 7 
and would be divided as shown in Table 1-1 and Figures 3A and 3B.  

Table 1-1   
Proposed Parcel Acreage 

Parcel Number 
Project Site Acreage 

Gross Net Dedicated Land 

1 1.31 1.02 0.29 

2 1.38 1.29 0.09 

3 2.12 1.99 0.13 

4 1.43 1.43 – 

5 1.18 1.18 – 

6 1.76 1.74 0.02 

7 1.08 0.86 0.22 

Totals 10.26  9.51 0.75 

Source: LDDC 2012, Figure 3A 

As noted in Table 1-1 above, the proposed project would dedicate approximately 0.75 acres of the 
project site to the City of Wildomar for right-of-way necessary to accommodate access to/from the 
future commercial development. As shown on Figure 3A, the property lines along proposed Parcels 1, 2, 
3, and 7 would be realigned to accommodate future improvements to Orange Street and Bundy Canyon 
Road. The amount of land to be dedicated from each parcel is summarized in Table 1-1.  

Development Assumptions 

While there is no development proposed with the proposed Tentative Parcel Map project, this initial 
study and the underlying technical studies have assumed and evaluated the realistic potential near term 
development of a fast-food restaurant on Parcel 2 and a gasoline service station on Parcel 1. Both parcels 
front on Bundy Canyon Road, and Parcel 1 is on the southeast corner of Bundy Canyon Road and Orange 
Street and it is anticipated that they will be developed first in the near term as preliminary discussions 
and planning for such uses have recently begun. The development assumptions for these two parcels will 
be evaluated in this Initial Study. In addition, a driveway linking Parcels 1 and 2 to Bundy Canyon Road 
will be developed at the northern portion of Parcel 3, and the stormwater system for the entire site will 
be constructed in Parcel 7. There is no reasonably foreseeable near-term development anticipated at this 
time for the remainder of Parcel 3 or on Parcels 4 through 6; however, it is reasonable to anticipate that 
these parcels would be developed in the long-term with commercial uses given the existing commercial 
zoning of the site. As these are future projects, the evaluation of potential impacts will be more 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 8 

programmatic than the evaluation of development assumptions on Parcels 1, 2, and 7 and the developed 
portion of Parcel 3. 

Parcel Map 

The proposed Tentative Parcel Map will result in the division of the property into seven parcels. As part 
of the map process, dedication of right-of-way will occur along both Bundy Canyon Road and Orange 
Street to enable development of the frontages on these roads to City Standard 201 and 401 for Bundy 
Canyon Road and Standard 94 for Orange Street. Table 1-1 indicates the acreages associated with the 
dedication, and Figure 3A shows which parcels front Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road. Note that 
Parcels 4 and 5 do not front either of the roadways and will not need to provide right-of-way dedication. 
The project proposes three shared driveways: a right-turn-in/right-turn-out only driveway on Bundy 
Canyon Road between Parcels 1 and 2, and two full-access driveways on Orange Street on Parcels 3 and 
6. Access from the shared driveways to the parcels will be through mutual access easements shown in 
Figure 3A.  

The division of the land will also necessitate the extension of municipal utilities to the project site. These 
utilities include water, sewer, power, cable television, and telephone. All utilities will be underground and 
within the road right-of-way or public utility easements. As part of the map, the project will provide a 
storm drainage system designed to accommodate buildout of all parcels. The entire site will be graded 
with the first phase of the project. The applicant has stated that there is no import or export of fill 
material required for the grading.  

Development Assumptions 

The City of Wildomar requires plot plan review (and when applicable, a conditional use permit) for all 
commercial projects, which also includes compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). At this time, there is no development plot plan before the City; all details of subsequent projects 
are assumptions based on the site zoning, similar development in the City, industry practice and primilary 
development discussions regarding the subject site. Parcels 1, 2, and 7 and a portion of Parcel 3 are 
assumed to have reasonably foreseeable projects and are evaluated accordingly at a project level in this 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND); Parcels 4 through 6 and the remainder of Parcel 3 
will be developed at an unknown later date. A conceptual plan for development of these parcels was 
required to ensure that the driveway and on-site circulation pattern was adequate. Figure 5 illustrates 
the development assumptions for the proposed project. 

Phase 1 

Parcel 1  

Development of the gas station will require approval of a conditional use permit. For purposes of 
environmental analysis in this Initial Study, Parcel 1 is assumed to develop with a 12 fueling position 
service station and convenience market with 30 parking spaces. Development of this parcel will also 
require City standard street improvements (i.e. curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, fire hydrants) along 
Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street. (See Figure 3A) 

Parcel 2  

Restaurants are a permitted use in the C-P-S zone district. This environmental analysis assumes a 3,280-
square-foot fast-food restaurant with drive-through window and 70 parking spaces. Development of this 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 9 

parcel will also require City standard street improvements (i.e. curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, fire 
hydrants) along Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street. (See Figure 3A) along Bundy Canyon Road. 

Portion of Parcel 3  

Because Parcel 3 has one of the shared driveways for the proposed project, at least a portion of the site 
must be paved to support development anticipated on Parcels 1 and 2. As shown in Figure 5, Parcel 3 
would provide access in the short term with the development of Parcels 1 and 2.  

Parcel 7 

Parcel 7 will contain the stormwater facilities that will be capable of providing stormwater drainage to 
the entire site in its full buildout condition. Development of this parcel will also require City standard 
street improvements along Orange Street. 

Phase 2 

Remaining Portion of Parcel 3  

In the long-term, approximately 200 parking spaces for development on Parcels 4 through 6 is 
anticipated. Development of this parcel will also require City standard street improvements along Orange 
Street (see Figure 5). 

Parcels 4 through 6 

These parcels would probably develop with commercial structures and parking and be designed to 
visually include the gas station and restaurant on Parcels 1 and 2 as “pad sites” in a small shopping center 
development oriented toward Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road. As part of Phase I development 
these parcels would be graded as needed to help balance the site and eliminate the need for 
import/export of fill material. 

Grading  

The project site will be graded in at least two phases. The first phase will include all parcels to 
accommodate the potential for a restaurant, gas station, parking, and access on Parcels 1, 2, and 3. The 
remainder of the area will be graded as needed for unknown future development. As designed, the 
project will not need to import or export soil. 

Access and Roadway Improvements 

Access to Parcels 1 and 2 would be from a shared driveway on Bundy Canyon Road and through a mutual 
access and parking easement across Parcel 3 and a shared driveway on Orange Street. The Bundy Canyon 
Road driveway will only allow access to the project via the eastbound lanes of Bundy Canyon Road, while 
the Orange Street driveway will allow for access to the project site from both north- and southbound 
vehicles. An additional driveway along the southern property line of the project would allow for access to 
Parcels 4 through 6 from Orange Street. In addition, the project will construct frontage roadway 
improvements along Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road.  

South of the Orange Street/Bundy Canyon Road intersection, Orange Street would be realigned and 
striped to accommodate one southbound through lane, two northbound through lanes, one westbound 
left-turn lane, and one eastbound right-turn lane. East of the Orange Street/Bundy Canyon Road 
intersection, Bundy Canyon Road would be realigned and striped to accommodate one northbound right-



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 10 

turn lane, one westbound through lane, one southbound left-turn lane, one eastbound right-turn-only 
lane (to the project site and/or I-15 onramp), two eastbound through lanes, and a 4-foot-wide raised-
curb median. As part of the project improvements, the Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road crosswalks 
will be realigned to join the realigned corner. Roadway improvements are shown in Figure 3B. 

Phasing 

Future development of buildings will require plot plan applications, and a conditional use permit for the 
gas station assumed for Parcel 1. Future development on the project site would occur in at least two 
phases. Phase I would include development of proposed Parcels 1, 2, and 7 and a portion of Parcel 3 as 
described above. Parcels 4 through 6 and the remainder of Parcel 3 would be developed at some 
currently undetermined point in the future.  

Water and Wastewater Demand Assumption 

As the proposed project has no building plans, estimates of water and wastewater demand are based on 
similar development in the area. The City of Corona to the north of Wildomar uses an estimate of 1,050 
gallons per day per acre for commercial uses in their Sewer Master Plan. The City of Murrieta to the 
south of Wildomar uses 0.402 gallons per day of water demand per square foot of commercial space in 
their General Plan Update Water Supply Assessment. Assuming a floor area ratio of between 0.25 and 
0.50 for the proposed project, the 9.50 acres of developable land remaining after roadway improvements 
on the Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street site could result in a water demand of between 4,200 and 
8,300 gallons of water per day. Wastewater demand would be approximately 10,000 gallons per day. As 
the wastewater demand is seldom more than the water usage for commercial property, 10,000 gallons 
per day for both water demand and wastewater generation will be used in the analysis. 

According to the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Order No. R8-2005-0003, the EVMWD 
treatment plant has a capacity of 8 million gallons per day (mgd) with an average flow of approximately 
4.66 mgd resulting in a treatment capacity of approximately 3.34 mgd. 

Sewer Service 

Sewer service will be provided through connection to an existing 12-inch sewer line in Bundy Canyon 
Road. The existing sewer line connects to the Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant located on 14980 
Strickland Avenue, in the City of Lake Elsinore. Although only Parcels 1 and 2 of the proposed project 
front onto Bundy Canyon Road, sewer connection for other parcels on the project site will be through 
mutual access and utility easements under the parking and driveway areas shown on the Parcel Map (see 
Figure 3a).  

 

  



FEET

0 80 160

Source: Land Development Design Company, LLC

T:
\_

C
S\

W
or

k\
W

ild
om

ar
, C

ity
 o

f\
O

ra
ng

e_
Bu

nd
y 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

_1
0-

03
01

-1
 F

ig
ur

es

Figure 3A
PM 30522 Sheet 1 8-13-12



 



FEET

0 60 120

Source: Land Development Design Company, LLC

T:
\_

C
S\

W
or

k\
W

ild
om

ar
, C

ity
 o

f\
O

ra
ng

e_
Bu

nd
y 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

_1
0-

03
01

-1
 F

ig
ur

es

Figure 3B
PM 30522 Sheet 2 8-13-12

FEET

0 60 120

FEET

0 60 120



 



FEET

0 60 120

Source: Land Development Design Company, LLC

T:
\_

C
S\

W
or

k\
W

ild
om

ar
, C

ity
 o

f\
O

ra
ng

e_
Bu

nd
y 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

_1
0-

03
01

-1
 F

ig
ur

es

Figure 4A
Grading Plan 1 of 2



 



FEET

0 80 160

Source: Land Development Design Company, LLC

T:
\_

C
S\

W
or

k\
W

ild
om

ar
, C

ity
 o

f\
O

ra
ng

e_
Bu

nd
y 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

_1
0-

03
01

-1
 F

ig
ur

es

Figure 4B
Grading Plan 2 of 2



 



FEET

0 80 160

Source: Land Development Design Company, LLC

T:
\_

C
S\

W
or

k\
W

ild
om

ar
, C

ity
 o

f\
O

ra
ng

e_
Bu

nd
y 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

_1
0-

03
01

-1
 F

ig
ur

es

Figure 5
Siteplan 12-10-11



 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 21 

Water Service 

Water services will also be provided by the EVMWD, which obtains potable water supplies from imported 
water from the Metropolitan Water District, local surface water from Canyon Lake, and local 
groundwater from the Elsinore Basin. The EVMWD has access to groundwater from the Elsinore Basin, 
Coldwater Basin, San Bernardino Bunker Hill Basin, Rialto-Colton Basin, and Riverside-North Basin. Almost 
all of the groundwater production for potable use occurs in the Elsinore Basin. Imported water supply is 
purchased from Metropolitan via the Eastern Municipal Water District and Western Municipal Water 
District. The EVMWD plans to expand its recycled water system to provide recycled water for irrigation 
users and to maintain water levels in Lake Elsinore during normal and dry years (EVMWD UWMP 2011). 
Per Metropolitan’s Regional Water Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP), Metropolitan indicates 
that its existing supplies are adequate to meet the projected demands in all hydrologic conditions 
through 2035 (Metropolitan Water District 2010). Implementation of planned supplies by Metropolitan 
increases reliability and maintains an adequate reserve. Based on Metropolitan’s 2010 RUWMP, it is 
assumed that imported water is fully reliable during average, dry, and wet years. The EVMWD Urban 
Water Management Plan projects a 2035 water demand of 65,258 acre-feet per year, with a projected 
supply of 70,581 acre-feet per year. With an estimated water demand of 10,000 gallons per day, the 
proposed project represents 11.2 acre-feet per year. As the project is consistent with the General Plan 
land use designation and the zoning for the site, the water demand is included in the 2011 Urban Water 
Management Plan. The project will connect to an existing 12-inch water line in Orange Street. 
Development of the project was considered in the Urban Water Master Plan as part of the City of 
Wildomar General Plan.  

Other Services 

Electric, gas, cable, and telephone services would be extended onto the site from existing lines in Orange 
Street (see Figure 3a). Electricity would be provided by Southern California Edison. The site is located 
within the boundaries of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District. Local government services are 
provided by the City of Wildomar. Fire and security services are provided by the City of Wildomar through 
contracts with the Riverside County Fire Department and the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 22 

III EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Summary of Impacts and Mitigation Measures 

The following represents a summary of impacts and mitigation measures associated with the proposed 
project. Note that the City has standard conditions and ordinances that may also address impacts. All 
subsequent development will be required to comply with the plot plan and/or conditional use permit 
requirements of the City of Wildomar. 

1. Aesthetics 

AES-01 Per Section 8.64.060 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, exterior lighting above 4050 lumens is 
restricted. In addition, all lighting must be fully shielded if feasible and partially shielded in all 
other cases, and must be focused to minimize spill of light into the night sky and onto adjacent 
properties.  

Timing/Implementation:  Upon submittal of development plans for the proposed project  

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 

AES-02 The precise lighting plan of any future development on the proposed project site will be 
evaluated by the City of Wildomar Planning Department as part of the plot plan process to 
ensure compliance with City ordinances. 

Timing/Implementation:  Upon submittal of development plans for the proposed project  

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 

2. Agricultural Resources 

The proposed project has no impact on agricultural resources. 

3. Air Quality 

All impacts are less than significant without mitigation. 

4. Biological Resources 

The following mitigation measure will reduce biological impacts to less than significant: 

BIO-01 The project applicant shall conduct construction and clearing activities outside of the avian 
nesting season (January 15–August 31), where feasible. If clearing and/or construction 
activities occur during nesting season, preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors and 
migratory birds shall be conducted by a qualified biologist, up to 14 days before initiation of 
construction activities. The qualified biologist shall survey the construction zone, and a 250-
foot radius surrounding the construction zone, to determine whether the activities taking place 
have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds.  

Timing/Implementation:  The project applicant shall incorporate requirements into the 
contract plans. The project applicant’s construction inspector 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 23 

shall monitor to ensure that measures are implemented during 
construction. 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee 
area and will be subject to the SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is $500 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and 
must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any 
impacts to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this 
document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time 
of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments  

BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside MSHCP area and will be subject to the 
MSHCP development mitigation fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently 
$9,492 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and must be paid upon 
issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the 
MSHCP planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the 
fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

5. Cultural Resources 

The following mitigation measures will reduce impacts to cultural resources to a less than significant 
level: 

CUL-01  Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building, 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the following wording shall be included 
in all construction contract documentation: 

 If during grading or construction activities cultural resources are discovered on the project site, 
work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be 
evaluated by a qualified archeologist. Any unanticipated cultural resources that are discovered 
shall be evaluated and a final report prepared. The report shall include a list of the resources 
recovered, documentation of each site/locality, and interpretation of resources recovered. In 
the event the significant resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent 
with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 24 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

CUL-02 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the project applicant(s) for future 
development shall contact the appropriate Tribe1 to notify the Tribe of grading, excavation, and 
the monitoring program, and to coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop 
a Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. The agreement shall address the 
treatment of known cultural resources; the designation, responsibilities, and participation of 
Native American Tribal monitors during grading, excavation, and ground-disturbing activities; 
project grading and development scheduling; terms of compensation; and treatment and final 
disposition of any cultural resources, sacred sites, and human remains discovered on the site. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-03 Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the 
following wording on all construction contract documentation: 

 If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 requires 
that no further disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made the 
necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until a final decision as to 
the treatment and disposition has been made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the 
remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be contacted 
within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall 
identify the “most likely descendant.” The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the treatment of the remains as 
provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-04 The landowner shall relinquish ownership of all cultural resources, including sacred items, 
burial goods, and all archaeological artifacts that are found on the project site, to the 
appropriate Tribe for proper treatment and disposition. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of project approval, and implemented during 
ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

                                                            

1 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive 
coordination with the surrounding cities in determining potentially significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 25 

CUL-05 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the project area, shall be avoided and 
preserved as the preferred mitigation, if feasible as determined by a qualified professional in 
consultation with the appropriate culturally affiliated Native American Tribe. To the extent that 
a sacred site cannot be feasibly preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation 
measures shall be required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2.  

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of project approval, and implemented during 
ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-06 Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the 
following wording on all construction contract documentation: 

If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are discovered during grading, 
work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and the developer and Tribe 
shall meet and confer regarding the significance of and mitigation for such resources. If the 
developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance of or the mitigation for such 
resources, these issues will be presented to the City of Wildomar Planning Director for decision. 
The Planning Director shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the religious beliefs, customs, 
and practices of the appropriate Tribe. Notwithstanding any other rights available under the 
law, the decision of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar. In the 
event the significant resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines the 
resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent 
with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-07 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant(s) for future development shall 
identify to the City of Wildomar the qualified paleontologist who has been retained to evaluate 
the significance of any inadvertently discovery paleontological resources. If paleontological 
resources are encountered during grading or project construction, all work in the area of the 
find shall cease. The project applicant shall notify the City of Wildomar and retain a qualified 
paleontologist to investigate the find. The qualified paleontologist shall make 
recommendations as to the disposition of the paleontological resources to the City of 
Wildomar Planning Director. The developer shall pay for all required treatment and storage of 
the discovered resources. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 26 

CUL-08 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be encountered during future 
construction, a qualified professional shall initially monitor all construction activities that could 
potentially impact archaeological and/or paleontological deposits (e.g., grading, excavation, 
and/or trenching). However, monitoring should be discontinued as soon the qualified 
professional is satisfied that construction will not disturb cultural resources. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

6. Geology and Soils 

GEO-01 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a geotechnical soils reports 
to the City Engineer for review and approval. All grading shall be in conformance with the 
recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved by the City of Wildomar. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

GEO-02 All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 457, and all other relevant 
laws, rules, and regulations governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing 
any grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall obtain a grading permit 
from the Building Department.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

GEO-03 Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall provide the Engineering Department 
evidence of compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and 
obtain a construction permit from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

GEO-04 Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes greater than 3 feet in 
vertical  height, are to be signed by a registered landscape architect and bonded per the 
requirements of Ordinance 457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur within 30 days 
of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy 
season. The developer shall plant and irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 
(horizontal to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; 
slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs or trees or as 
approved by the City Engineer. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 27 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Subsequent development may be required to comply with City and Air District requirements regarding 
greenhouse gases. These requirements are based on the type of buildings, occupancy, and intensity of 
use, none of which is known at this time. The extent of any subsequent GHG measures will be 
determined during review of plot plans. It is important to note that the California Building Code has 
energy efficiency requirements that also address greenhouse gases, which will be applied to future 
construction. 

GHG-01  Prior to building permit approval, the City of Wildomar Planning Department shall require that 
the project applicant implement the following measures to reduce short-term and long-term 
emissions of GHGs associated with construction and operation of the proposed project: 

Construction 

 Reuse and recycle construction and demolition waste (including, but not limited to, soil, 
vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard) to the extent practical. 

Operation 

 Bicycle parking facilities and preferential parking for carpooling and alternative-fueled 
vehicles shall be provided at locations determined by City of Wildomar Planning 
Department staff. This measure encourages use of alternative transportation by employees 
and helps to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled as a result of the project.  

 Proposed commercial uses shall provide interior and exterior storage areas for recyclables 
and green waste and adequate recycling containers located in public areas. 

 Indoor water conservation measures shall be incorporated, such as use of low-flow toilets 
and faucets. 

 Future development of the annexation area shall ensure that low-water-use landscaping 
(i.e., drought-tolerant plants and drip irrigation) is installed. At least 75 percent of all 
landscaping plants shall be drought-tolerant as determined by a licensed landscape 
architect or contractor. 

Timing/Implementation: During construction activities and project operations 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

8. Hazardous and Hazardous Materials 

HAZ-01  As required by existing City of Wildomar Ordinance 8.56, subsequent development on the site 
will need to comply with the Riverside County Department of Environmental Health, Local 
Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities related to potential hazardous materials.  

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground disturbing construction activities 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 28 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

9. Hydrology and Water Quality 

The following mitigation measure will reduce impacts to hydrology and water quality to a less than 
significant level: 

HYD-01 Prior to the approval of the grading permit for future development on the project site, the 
project applicant(s) shall be required to prepare a stormwater pollution prevention plan 
(SWPPP) consistent with the NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated 
with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-DWQ), which is to be 
administered through all phases of grading and project construction. The SWPPP shall 
incorporate best management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential water quality impacts 
during construction phases are minimized. The SWPPP shall be submitted to the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board and to the City of Wildomar for review. A copy of the SWPPP must 
be kept accessible on the project site at all times. In addition, the project applicant(s) will be 
required to submit, and obtain City approval of, a water quality management plan prior to the 
issuance of any building or grading permit for future development on the project site in order 
to comply with the Area-Wide Urban Runoff Management Program. The project shall 
implement site design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as identified in 
the water quality management plan. Site design BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, 
landscape buffer areas, on-site ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to 
vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs shall include, but are not limited 
to, education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot sweeping, irrigation design to 
prevent overspray, and covered trash storage. Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated 
swales and a detention basin, or an infiltration device. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

HYD-02 The project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City Engineering approval of, a 
water quality management plan (WQMP) prior to the issuance of any building or grading 
permit for future development on the project site in order to comply with the Area-Wide 
Urban Runoff Management Program. The project shall implement site design BMPs, source 
control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as identified in the water quality management plan. 
Site design BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site ponding 
areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source 
control BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter 
control, parking lot sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash 
storage. Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an 
infiltration device. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

HYD-03 To manage stormwater runoff flows prior to and after the full implementation of the site’s 
underground infiltration pipe system, a sand filter basin will be constructed within Parcel 7 of 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 29 

the proposed project. The sand filter basin will provide the required storage, per the design 
guidelines in the Riverside County Low Impact Development BMP Design Handbook. The 
treated stormwater from the sand filter basin will be collected by an underdrain system. The 
sand filter basin will have two concrete drop inlets that will be constructed to collect the 
overflows. The concrete drop inlets will be set at different invert elevations and opening sizes 
to control and limit the outflow of the developed site to undeveloped levels. Additionally, the 
concrete drop inlets will have 3-inch-diameter orifices to control the outflow. The orifices will 
be installed above the dead storage depth of 1.5 feet, which was determined by the 
preliminary WQMP prepared for the proposed project.  

 The completed sand filter basin will provide 21,112 cubic feet (CF) of dead storage and the 
required Vbmp is 19,519 CF of dead storage. A 0.83-inch per hour filtration rate has been 
assumed per the specifications in the Riverside County Low Impact Development BMP Design 
Handbook.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

10. Land Use and Planning (Note that these mitigation measures are the same as those described in the 
Biological Resources section of this IS/MND.) 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee 
area and will be subject to the SKRHCP Fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for 
development and must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will 
mitigate for any impacts to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is 
current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must 
be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

BIO-03 The proposed project is within Western Riverside MSHCP area and will be subject to the 
MSHCP development mitigation fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently 
$9,492 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and must be paid upon 
issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the 
MSHCP planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the 
fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 30 

11. Mineral Resources 

The proposed project has no impact on mineral resources. 

12. Noise 

The following mitigation measure will reduce noise impacts to a less than significant level.  

NOI-01 Construction on the project site shall implement the following noise mitigation measures to 
reduce potential construction noise impacts to a less than significant level: 

 All construction and general maintenance activities (except in an emergency) shall be 
limited to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (June through September) and 7:00 a.m. to 
6:00 p.m. (October through May). 

 Construction equipment staging and storage areas shall be located as far from the 
residential land uses as possible.  

 All construction equipment shall be properly maintained with operating mufflers and air 
intake silencers as effective as those installed by the original manufacturer. 

 Residents living up to 1,000 feet from the property line shall be provided with a 
construction schedule and contact information to file a complaint. Timely notification shall 
accompany any major changes to this schedule. 

Timing/Implementation: During construction  

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

NOI-02 On-site noise shall not exceed 65 dBA during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. or 55 dBA 
during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. This can be achieved by implementing the following 
policies: 

 In order to reach the City’s daytime noise threshold of 65 dBA Leq (10 minutes), the 
developer/builder shall use screens, shields, or enclosures for all project HVAC units that 
provide at least 10 dBA of attenuation. 

 The use of HVAC systems shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. to protect 
residents from nighttime noise. The contact information for the City of Wildomar Code 
Compliance Officer should be given to nearby residents in case this measure is routinely 
violated. 

 HVAC units shall be placed as far away as possible from neighbors’ windows and outdoor 
areas. 

 Ensure that air conditioners are well fastened to the façade/roof, as poor attachment can 
result in an increase in the noise level. Where vibration of the unit results in an increased 
noise level, isolation springs or feet can be used to reduce vibration.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 31 

 Ensure that noisy equipment is regularly serviced to ensure all fixtures and fittings are safe, 
secure, and do not rattle or vibrate excessively.  

 Truck deliveries to future commercial uses shall be limited to between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays. No deliveries 
shall occur on Sundays or as otherwise specified by the City. 

 The owners or operators of commercial uses shall post a sign at each loading area that 
states the idling time for delivery truck engines shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits and during project 
operations 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

NOI-03 The proposed project shall comply with the development standard of Chapter 9.48 of the City 
of Wildomar Zoning Code.  

Timing/Implementation: During all phases of construction and project operations 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

13. Population and Housing 

The proposed project has no impact on population and housing. 

14. Public Services 

PUB-01 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for fire services pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 required by the Riverside 
County Fire Department are $1,063.00 for the approval of a commercial/industrial tentative 
parcel map and $321.82 per commercial/office unit approved by the department. (Note that 
the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the 
current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

PUB-02 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for police services pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 required by the Riverside 
County Sheriff’s Department are $157.07 per commercial/office unit approved by the 
department. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may 
change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 32 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

PUB-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for the Lake Elsinore Unified 
School District pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the 
time of building permit issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 
required by the Lake Elsinore Unified School District are $0.47 per square foot of 
commercial/office space approved by the district. (Note that the fee amount is current as of 
this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the 
time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

15. Recreation 

The proposed project has no impact on recreation. 

16. Transportation/Traffic 

The following mitigation measures will mitigate any transportation/traffic impacts to a less than 
significant level.  

TRA-01 Construct Orange Street from Bundy Canyon Road along the project frontage to the ultimate 
half-section width as a Secondary Highway Standard (100-foot right-of-way), including 
landscaping and parkway improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

TRA-02 Construct Bundy Canyon Road from Orange Street to the I-15 freeway southbound onramp at 
its ultimate half-section width as a Urban Arterial Standard, including landscaping and parkway 
improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

TRA-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall pay 
the appropriate Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee. The required Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee as of January, 2013 required by the WRCOG is $6.66 per square foot of retail 
space. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may change 
over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.) 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 33 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

17. Utilities and Service Systems 

ULT-01  The project applicant(s) for future development on the project site shall obtain approval from 
the Riverside County Department of Environmental Health before receiving water and 
wastewater service from the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department; Riverside County 
Department of Environmental Health 

UTL-02 Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development on the project site, the 
project applicant(s) shall submit a recycling collection and loading area plan to the Riverside 
County Waste Management Division. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department; Riverside County 
Waste Management Division 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 34 

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

A. BACKGROUND 

1. Project Title: 

Tentative Parcel Map (30522) at the Southeast Corner of Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street (PA 
10-0301) 

2. Lead Agency Name and Address:  

City of Wildomar, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 92595 

3. Contact Person and Phone Number:  

Matt Bassi, Planning Director; (951) 677-7751, ext. 213 

4. Project Location:  

Southeast corner of Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street in the City of Wildomar; Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers: 367-100-026 and 367-100-032; Township 6 south, Range 4 west, Section 36 

5. Project Sponsor’s Name and Address:  

Orange Bundy Partners, Ltd., 629 Camino de Los Mares #206, San Clemente, CA 92673 

6. General Plan Designation:  

Commercial Retail (CR) 

7. Zoning:  

Scenic Highway Commercial (C-P-S) 

8. Description of Project:  

A Tentative Parcel Map (PM No. 30522) subdividing two existing parcels, totaling 10.3 acres, into 
seven parcels, all for future commercial development  

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:  

North – Zoning: Scenic Highway Commercial; Land Use: Commercial Retail 

South – Zoning: Scenic Highway Commercial (vacant land) and Rural Residential; Land Use: 
Commercial Retail (vacant land) 

East – Zoning: Scenic Highway Commercial and General Commercial; Land Use: Commercial Retail 

West – Zoning: General Commercial and Rural Residential; Land Use: Commercial Retail and Medium 
Density Residential 

10. Other Public Agency Required Approvals:  

None 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 35 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project involving at least 
one impact that is “Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated” as indicated by the 
checklist on the following pages.  

 Aesthetics  Greenhouse Gas Emissions Population/Housing 

 Agricultural Resources  Hazards/Hazardous Materials Public Services 

 Air Quality  Hydrology/Water Quality Recreation 

 Biological Resources  Land Use/Planning Transportation/Traffic 

 Cultural Resources  Mineral Resources Utilities/Service Systems 

 Geology and Soils  Noise 
Mandatory Findings of 
Significance 

 



4/2/13



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 37 

V. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 

1. Aesthetics 

 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista?     

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

    

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

    

e) Interfere with the nighttime use of the Mount 
Palomar Observatory, as protected through 
the Mount Palomar Observatory Lighting 
Ordinance? 

     

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is located adjacent to a section of Interstate 15 
(I-15) that is eligible to be designated a state scenic highway (County of Riverside 2003 [Figure 
C-9]; Caltrans 2012). The project site would mostly be visible from the immediate surrounding 
area, including I-15. While this portion of I-15 may be considered scenic and is eligible to be 
designated as a scenic highway, the scenic vistas from the freeway are of the surrounding 
mountains and their ridgelines. This property will be well below the scenic views from I-15 and is 
only partially visible to those traveling southbound on I-15. The project will not impair or 
otherwise impact scenic views of the mountains and ridgelines from the I-15 freeway. The site is 
not visible at all to northbound I-15 traffic. Any project-level visual impacts for future 
development will be addressed through the City’s plot plan application process, which will ensure 
compliance with City zoning and design standards regulating building design, mass, bulk, height, 
color, etc. Therefore, the proposed project’s effect on the scenic vista would be considered a less 
than significant impact. See Appendix B for site photos. 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site does not contain and therefore would not 
substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and 
historic buildings. The vegetation observed on the site was characterized by LSA Associates 
during an October 2012 site survey as consisting of disturbed non-native species with scattered 
early-colonizing Riversidean sage scrub species, including two identified tree species: Mexican 
palo verde (Parkinsonia aculeate) and Mount Atlas mastic tree (Pistacia atlantica). A complete 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 38 

list of the vegetation observed on the site during this survey is provided in Table 4-1. Considering 
the report of the surveying biologist and the site photos taken by staff during a site visit in 
October 2012 (Appendix B), there is nothing unique or particularly scenic about the existing site 
or its vegetation. Since there are no scenic resources of aesthetic value located on the project 
site and development on the site cannot obstruct the views of ridge tops seen from I-15, the 
proposed project would not substantially damage scenic resources within a state scenic highway. 
Any impact to scenic resources would be considered less than significant.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is a vacant lot located along Bundy Canyon Road, 
an urban arterial roadway, and the Interstate 15 southbound onramp. The site is covered with 
disturbed and non-native vegetation, with evidence present that the site has recently been 
disked and that site vegetation clearance has occurred since prior to 2005. The proposed project 
would subdivide the existing property into seven parcels for future commercial development 
consistent with the existing land use designations and zoning and most of the surrounding uses. 
Across Bundy Canyon Road to the north there is an existing Arco gas station and Jack in the Box 
fast-food restaurant. The property across Orange Street to the west is vacant and is designated 
for commercial uses similar to the proposed project. The proposed project does not include 
building elevations, landscape plans, or other specific building development details. It is 
reasonable to assume that the future commercial development on the site will be similar to 
others in the area such as the commercial buildings north of the project site across Bundy Canyon 
Road. The City’s plot plan application process will ensure compliance with City zoning and design 
standards regulating building design, mass, bulk, height, color, etc. Section 17.216 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code regulates plot plan submittals and requires CEQA analysis based on the 
plot submittal. Through compliance with the plot plan process, the proposed project will have a 
less than significant impact.  

d, e) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The future development as a result 
of the proposed project would create new sources of light and glare. Project-level light and glare 
impact would be evaluated at the time a specific development application is proposed. The City’s 
plot plan application process will ensure compliance with City zoning and design standards 
regulating lighting, siding materials, etc. This process will require submittal of lighting 
photometric plans for review and approval prior to issuance of building permits. Therefore, the 
proposed project would not create new sources of light or glare that would adversely affect day 
or nighttime views in the area, and this would be considered a less than significant impact. 
However, all development within 45 miles of the Mt. Palomar Observatory is subject to Section 
8.64, Light Pollution, of the Wildomar Municipal Code. To ensure that any proposed development 
at the site complies with Section 8.64, mitigation measure AES-01 will be implemented. In 
addition to mitigation measure AES-01, mitigation measure AES-02 will require a review of the 
lighting plan of any future development at the proposed project site. Following the 
implementation of mitigation measures AES-01 and AES-02, any impact would be less than 
significant.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

AES-01 Per Section 8.64.060 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, exterior lighting above 4050 lumens is 
restricted. In addition, all lighting must be fully shielded if feasible and partially shielded in all 
other cases, and must be focused to minimize spill of light into the night sky and onto adjacent 
properties.  

Timing/Implementation:  Upon submittal of development plans for the proposed project 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 39 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 

AES-02 A precise lighting plan shall be submitted to the City of Wildomar at the time any future 
development application is proposed for the project site and will be evaluated by the City of 
Wildomar Planning Department as part of the plot plan process to ensure compliance with City 
ordinances. 

Timing/Implementation:  Upon submittal of development plans for the proposed project  

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 40 

2. Agricultural Resources 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), 
as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to 
the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program 
of the California Resources Agency, to 
nonagricultural use? 

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use 
or a Williamson Act contract?     

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forestland (as defined in Public 
Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland 
(as defined by Public Resources Code Section 
4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code 
Section 51104(g))? 

    

d) Result in the loss of forestland or conversion of 
forestland to non-forest use?     

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, 
to nonagricultural use or conversion of 
forestland to non-forest use? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a–e) No Impact. According to the Riverside County Land Information System (2012), the site is not 
located within an agricultural preserve (Williamson Act) or classified as Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance by the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Department of Conservation; therefore, there is no potential to convert 
farmland to nonagricultural uses. The site is located within an urbanized area of the City of 
Wildomar. As seen in the photos included in Appendix B, the site is not forested and there is no 
current agricultural use on the site. There is no evidence of previous agricultural activity on the 
site and no way of knowing the last time the site was used for agriculture. There will be no 
impact to agricultural uses.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

None. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 41 

3. Air Quality 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan?     

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation? 

    

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is nonattainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which 
exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

    

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations?     

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people?     

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact. The project site is located within the South Coast Air Basin (SoCAB), which is under the 
jurisdiction of the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). The SCAQMD is 
required, pursuant to the federal Clean Air Act, to reduce emissions of criteria pollutants for which 
the basin is in nonattainment (i.e., ozone [O3], particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns 
and less than 2.5 microns in diameter [PM10 and PM2.5, respectively]), and nitrogen oxide (NOx). 
These are considered criteria pollutants because they are four of several prevalent air pollutants 
known to be hazardous to human health.  

In order to reduce emissions for which the SoCAB is in nonattainment, the SCAQMD has drafted 
the 2012 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP). The 2012 AQMP establishes a program of rules and 
regulations directed at reducing air pollutant emissions and achieving state (California) and national 
air quality standards. The 2012 AQMP is a regional and multi-agency effort including the SCAQMD, 
the California Air Resources Board (CARB), the Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG), and the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The 2012 AQMP pollutant control 
strategies are based on the latest scientific and technical information and planning assumptions, 
including the 2012 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, updated 
emission inventory methodologies for various source categories, and SCAG's latest growth 
forecasts (SCAQMD 2011a). (SCAG’s latest growth forecasts were defined in consultation with local 
governments and reference to local general plans.) The project is subject to the SCAQMD’s Air 
Quality Management Plan. 

Criteria for determining consistency with the AQMP are defined by the following indicators: 

 Consistency Criterion No. 1: The proposed project will not result in an increase in the 
frequency or severity of existing air quality violations, or cause or contribute to new 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 42 

violations, or delay the timely attainment of air quality standards or the interim emissions 
reductions specified in the AQMP. 

 Consistency Criterion No. 2: The proposed project will not exceed the assumptions in the 
AQMP in 2013 or increments based on the years of project build out phase. 

The violations to which Consistency Criterion No. 1 refers are the California ambient air quality 
standards (CAAQS) and the national ambient air quality standards (NAAQS). As evaluated under 
Issue b) below, the project will not exceed the short-term construction standards or long-term 
operational standards and in so doing will not violate any air quality standards. Additionally, the 
analysis for long-term local air quality impacts showed that future carbon monoxide (CO) 
concentration levels along roadways and at intersections affected by project traffic will not exceed 
the 1-hour and 8-hour state CO pollutant concentration standards. Thus, a less than significant 
impact is expected, and the project would be consistent with the first criterion. 

Concerning Consistency Criterion No. 2, the AQMP contains air pollutant reduction strategies based 
on SCAG’s latest growth forecasts, and SCAG’s growth forecasts were defined in consultation with 
local governments and with reference to local general plans. The proposed project is consistent 
with the land use designation and development density presented in the City’s General Plan and 
therefore would not exceed the population or job growth projections used by the SCAQMD to 
develop the AQMP. Thus, no impact would occur as the project is also consistent with the second 
criterion. 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed previously, the project site is located within the SoCAB. 
State and federal air quality standards are often exceeded in many parts of the basin.  

As stated in the Project Description, Parcels 1, 2, and 7 and a portion of Parcel 3 are assumed to 
have reasonably foreseeable projects and are evaluated accordingly in the IS/MND; Parcels 4 
through 6 and the remainder of Parcel 3 will be developed at a later date. Future development on 
Parcels 4 through 6 would require a separate application and would be subject to subsequent plot 
plan approval.  

Construction Emissions 

The SCAQMD has established methods to quantify air emissions associated with construction 
activities such as air pollutant emissions generated by operation of on-site construction equipment, 
fugitive dust emissions related to grading and site work activities, and mobile (tailpipe) emissions 
from construction worker vehicles and haul/delivery truck trips (SCAQMD 1993). Emissions would 
vary from day to day, depending on the level of activity, the specific type of construction activity 
occurring, and, for fugitive dust, prevailing weather conditions. The use of construction equipment 
on site would result in localized exhaust emissions. 

Fugitive Dust 

Fugitive dust emissions are generally associated with land clearing and exposure of soils to the air 
and wind, as well as cut-and-fill grading operations. Dust generated during construction varies 
substantially on a project-by-project basis, depending on the level of activity, the specific 
operations, and weather conditions at the time of construction. Per General Plan Policies AQ 1.4 
and 4.9, the proposed project will be required to comply with SCAQMD Rules 402 and 403, 
described in greater detail below, to control fugitive dust.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 43 

Grading and Site Preparation 

Construction-related air quality impacts are temporary in nature. Future projects located within the 
proposed project area have not yet been adequately defined to allow for a precise estimation of 
construction-generated emissions. For the purposes of this analysis, air pollutant emissions 
associated with building construction and the paving of Parcels 1, 2, and 3, as well as the 
excavation of Parcel 7 as a storm drainage basin, are estimated since these parcels are proposed 
with more specific and anticipated land uses and sizes. As previously stated, Parcels 1 and 2 as well 
as a driveway on a small portion of Parcel 3 would be developed first during a construction period 
identified as Phase I. For the purposes of this analysis, it is anticipated that a 200-space parking lot 
would be constructed on the remainder of Parcel 3 after Phase 1.  

The resultant emissions of these activities were calculated using the CalEEMod air quality model 
(see Appendix C). CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011b) is a statewide land use emissions computer model 
designed to provide a uniform platform for the use of government agencies, land use planners, and 
environmental professionals. This assessment includes quantification of net increases of ozone 
precursor pollutants (i.e., reactive organic gases [ROG] and nitrogen oxide [NOx]) and airborne 
particulate matter (i.e., PM2.5 and PM10) attributable to the proposed project, including mobile-
source emissions generated by construction worker commutes. These quantified emissions 
projections are then compared with SCAQMD significance thresholds (SCAQMD 2011c). 

The overall unmitigated construction-related air pollutant emissions associated with initial grading 
of the entire 10-acre site, as well as the specific development anticipated for Parcel 1, Parcel 2, and 
Parcel 7, are summarized in Table 3-1. Initial site grading activities would not occur concurrently 
with the specific development anticipated for Parcel 1, Parcel 2, and Parcel 7. These projected 
emissions include grading activities in addition to construction-related activities such as building 
construction, paving, and painting. As shown, all criteria pollutant emissions would remain below 
their respective thresholds. 

Table 3-1 
Maximum Short-Term Unmitigated Emissions 

 Associated with the Construction of Parcel 1, Parcel 2, Driveway on Parcel 3 and 
Parcel 7 (Phase I) (pounds per day) 

Construction Phase ROG NOX CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 

Initial Site Grading (includes grading 
of entire 10 acres) 8.60 70.69 38.89 0.07 12.34 6.73 

Phase I – Parcel 1, Parcel 2 & 
Parcel 7 (includes finish grading, 
building, paving, painting, and detention 
basin excavation/development)  

72.46 46.48 31.69 0.05 14.73 8.65 

SCAQMD Threshold 75.00 100.00 550.00 150.00 150.00 NA 

Exceed Threshold? No No No No No NA 
Source: CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011a). See Appendix C for CalEEMod outputs. Notes: Load factors reduced by 33 percent as directed by CARB to 
account for OFFROAD emissions overestimation (CARB 2010). CalEEMod calculates construction emissions based on the number of equipment 
hours and the maximum daily soil disturbance activity possible for each piece of equipment. CalEEMod defaults identified the following 
construction equipment and average daily hours of use for each: Grading Phase = one grader 8 hours daily, one dozer 8 hours daily, two 
tractor/loader/backhoes 7 hours daily. Building Construction Phase = one crane 8 hours daily, two forklifts 7 hours daily, one generator set 8 
hours daily, one tractor/loader/backhoe 6 hours daily, three welders 8 hours daily. Paving Phase = one cement/mortar mixer 8 hours daily, one 
paver 8 hours daily, one paving equipment 8 hours daily, two rollers 8 hours daily, one tractor/loader/backhoe 8 hours daily. Painting Phase = 
one air compressor 6 hours daily. The following was assumed  for construction of the detention basin: Detention Basin Construction  = one 
tractor/loader/backhoes 7 hours daily, one dozer 8 hours daily, one excavator 8 hours daily, one plate compactor 4 hours daily. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 44 

ROG = reactive organic gas 
NOX = nitrogen oxides 
CO = carbon monoxide 
SOX = sulfur oxides 
PM10 = particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter 
PM2.5 = particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter 
 

As previously stated, while the driveway from Parcel 3 onto Orange Street will occur as part of 
Phase I, the potential 200-space parking lot has been identified as being built after Phase I, most 
likely at the same time that Parcels 4, 5, and 6 are developed. While this 200-space parking lot is 
not specifically proposed at this time, it has been identified as likely and therefore has been 
modeled for construction emissions for disclosure purposes. The unmitigated construction-related 
air pollutant emissions associated with the 200-space parking lot that is anticipated are 
summarized in Table 3-2. As shown, all criteria pollutant emissions would remain below their 
respective thresholds. 

Table 3-2 
Maximum Short-Term Unmitigated Emissions Associated  

with the Future Construction of a 200 Space Parking Lot on Parcel 3 (pounds per day) 

Construction Phase ROG NOX CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 

Parcel 3 2.49 17.78 10.92 0.02 5.92 3.38 

SCAQMD Threshold 75.00 100.00 550.00 150.00 150.00 NA 

Exceed Threshold? No No No No No NA 
Source: CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011a). See Appendix C for CalEEMod outputs. Notes: Load factors reduced by 33 percent as directed by CARB to 
account for OFFROAD emissions overestimation (CARB 2010). CalEEMod calculates construction emissions based on the number of equipment 
hours and the maximum daily soil disturbance activity possible for each piece of equipment. CalEEMod defaults identified the following 
construction equipment and average daily hours of use for each: Grading Phase = one grader 6 hours daily, one dozer 6 hours daily, one 
tractor/loader/backhoe 7 hours daily. Paving Phase = one cement/mortar mixer 6 hours daily, one paver 6 hours daily, one paving equipment 6 
hours daily, one roller 7 hours daily, one tractor/loader/backhoe 8 hours daily.  
ROG = reactive organic gas 
NOX = nitrogen oxides 
CO = carbon monoxide 
SOX = sulfur oxides 
PM10 = particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter 
PM2.5 = particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter 

As identified above, all criteria pollutant emissions would remain below their respective thresholds 
(see Appendix C for CalEEMod outputs). Emissions associated with the development of Parcels 4 
through 6 are not quantified, as this development has not yet been adequately defined for such an 
estimation. However, as stated above, future development on each of the proposed parcels (1 
through 6) would require a separate application and would be subject to subsequent CEQA 
environmental review as well as plot plan approval. Parcel 7 will be fully developed as a storm 
drainage basin as part of Phase I of the proposed project. Furthermore, as required by General Plan 
Policy AQ 4.9, the proposed project is subject to SCAQMD rules and regulations to reduce specific 
emissions and to mitigate potential air quality impacts. The following is a list of noteworthy 
SCAQMD rules that are required of the project during construction activities: 

 Rule 402 (Nuisance) – This rule prohibits the discharge from any source whatsoever such 
quantities of air contaminants or other material which cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or 
annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the public, or which endanger the 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 45 

comfort, repose, health, or safety of any such persons or the public, or which cause, or have a 
natural tendency to cause, injury or damage to business or property. This rule does not apply 
to odors emanating from agricultural operations necessary for the growing of crops or the 
raising of fowl or animals. 

 Rule 403 (Fugitive Dust) – This rule requires fugitive dust sources to implement Best Available 
Control Measures for all sources and all forms of visible particulate matter are prohibited from 
crossing any property line. SCAQMD Rule 403 is intended to reduce PM10 emissions from any 
transportation, handling, construction, or storage activity that has the potential to generate 
fugitive dust. PM10 suppression techniques are summarized below. 

a. Portions of the construction site to remain inactive longer than a period of three months 
will be seeded and watered until grass cover is grown or otherwise stabilized in a manner 
acceptable to the City. 

b. All on-site roads will be paved as soon as feasible or watered periodically or chemically 
stabilized. 

c. All material transported off-site will be either sufficiently watered or securely covered to 
prevent excessive amounts of dust. 

d. The area disturbed by clearing, grading, earth moving, or excavation operations will be 
minimized at all times. 

e. Where vehicles leave the construction site and enter adjacent public streets, the streets 
will be swept daily or washed down at the end of the work day to remove soil tracked 
onto the paved surface. 

 Rule 1113 (Architectural Coatings) – This rule requires manufacturers, distributors, and end-
users of architectural and industrial maintenance coatings to reduce ROG emissions from the 
use of these coatings, primarily by placing limits on the ROG content of various coating 
categories. 

Since future development on each of the proposed parcels (1 through 7) would require a separate 
application and would be subject to subsequent air quality analysis during plot plan approval, and 
preliminary pollutant quantification indicates SCAQMD thresholds would not be surpassed during 
grading activities of the entire site or the construction of Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 7 as currently 
anticipated to be developed, construction emissions associated with the proposed Tentative Parcel 
Map would be less than significant. Also, SCAQMD rules and regulations to reduce specific 
emissions and to mitigate potential air quality impacts would be required at the time of future 
construction.  

Construction Localized Significance Analysis 

The SCAQMD has issued guidance on applying CalEEMod modeling results to local significance 
threshold (LST) analyses. While future projects located within the proposed project area have not 
yet been adequately defined to allow for a precise estimation of construction-generated emissions, 
for the purposes of this analysis air pollutant emissions associated with grading and site 
preparation activities were quantified for the entire project site since the precise land use 
proposed is not necessary to obtain this projection. Since CalEEMod calculates construction 
emissions based on the number of equipment hours and the maximum daily soil disturbance 
activity possible for each piece of equipment, Table 3-3 has been provided by the SCAQMD to 
determine the maximum daily disturbed acreage for comparison to local significance thresholds. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 46 

Table 3-3 
Equipment-Specific Grading Rates 

Equipment Type Acres/8-Hour Day 

Crawler Tractor 0.5 

Graders 0.5 

Rubber-Tired Dozers 0.5 

Scrapers 1.0 

Source: CalEEMod User Guide Appendix A (SCAQMD 2011b) 

CalEEMod identifies that two excavators (crawler tractor), one grader, one rubber-tired dozer, two 
tractors (crawler tractor), and two scrapers could be used simultaneously on a peak day. Based on 
Table 3-3, the proposed project will result in a maximum of 2.5 acres disturbed on any one day 
during the grading phase. Thus, local significance thresholds for a 5-acre site are applicable to the 
proposed project and represent a conservative analysis. 

Sensitive receptors include residences, schools, hospitals, and similar uses. There are existing 
residential uses to the southwest of the project site. Table 3-4 shows that the emissions of NOx, 
carbon monoxide (CO), PM10, and PM2.5 on the peak day of construction will not result in 
concentrations of pollutants at nearby residences or other sensitive receptors, and less than 
significant impacts would occur. 

Table 3-4 
Construction Local Significance Threshold (LST) Impacts (pounds per day)  

Emissions Source Nitrogen Oxide 
Carbon 

Monoxide 
PM10 PM2.5 

On-Site Grading Emissions 70.56 37.43 12.07 6.71 

LST Threshold 1 371 1,965 13 8 

Significant Emissions? No No No No 
Source: 1SCAQMD 2006 

Operational Impacts 

The SCAQMD has also established significance thresholds to evaluate the potential impacts 
associated with long-term project operations (SCAQMD 1993). Regional air pollutant emissions 
associated with project operations include area source emissions, energy-use emissions, and 
mobile source emissions. Area source emissions comprise emissions from fuel combustion from 
space and water heating, landscape maintenance equipment, evaporative emissions from 
architectural coatings and consumer products, and unpermitted emissions from stationary sources. 
Energy-use emissions comprise emissions from on-site natural gas usage, and mobile source 
emissions comprise emissions from automobiles. 

While future projects within the proposed project area have not yet been adequately defined to 
allow for a precise estimation of generated emissions, for the purposes of this analysis, air 
pollutant emissions associated with the anticipated operations of Parcels 1 and 2 are estimated 
since these parcels are proposed with more specific and anticipated land uses and sizes. Parcel 3 is 
anticipated to accommodate a driveway to Orange Street as well as 200 parking spaces and 
therefore would not be built with land uses that emit operational emissions (see Appendix C). 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 47 

Emissions associated with the operation of Parcels 4 through 6 are not quantified, as this 
development has not yet been adequately defined. However, future development on each of the 
proposed parcels (1 through 6) would require a separate application and would be subject to plot 
plan approval. Parcel 7 will be fully built as a storm drainage basin as part of the proposed project 
and therefore would not emit operational air pollutant emissions (see Appendix C). 

Operational area source emissions, energy-use emissions, and mobile source emissions (e.g., 
trucks, cars, parking lot sweepers) for the anticipated land uses for Parcels 1 and 2 were calculated 
using the CalEEMod air quality model (see Appendix C). As shown in Table 3-5, the project’s net 
emissions would not exceed SCAQMD thresholds for CO, NOX, sulfur oxides (SOX), ROG, PM10, or 
PM2.5. Note that emissions rates differ from summer to winter. This is because weather factors are 
dependent on the season, and these factors affect pollutant mixing/dispersion, ozone formation, 
etc. Therefore, regional operations emissions would not result in a significant long-term regional air 
quality impact.  

Table 3-5 
Long-Term Unmitigated Operational Emissions Parcels 1 and 2 (pounds per day) 

Emission Source ROG NOx CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 

Summer 

Area Source Emissions 3.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Energy Use Emissions 0.03 0.25 0.21 0.00 0.02 0.02 

Vehicle Emissions 24.80 45.38 183.63 0.19 20.22 1.98 

Total 28.10 45.63 183.84 0.19 20.24 2.00 

Winter 

Area Source Emissions 3.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Energy Use Emissions 0.03 0.25 0.21 0.00 20.28 0.02 

Vehicle Emissions 23.16 46.41 194.10 0.18 20.28 2.05 

Total 26.46 46.66 194.31 0.18 20.30 2.07 

SCAQMD Threshold 55.00 55.00 550.00 150.00 150.00 NA 

Exceed threshold? No No No No No NA 
Source: CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011b). See Appendix C for CalEEMod outputs.   
ROG = reactive organic gas 
NOX = nitrogen oxides 
CO = carbon monoxide 
SOX = sulfur oxides 
PM10 = particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter 
PM2.5 = particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter 

Operations Localized Significance Analysis 

Table 3-6 shows the calculated emissions for the proposed operational activities compared with 
the appropriate LSTs. The LST analysis only includes on-site sources; however, the CalEEMod model 
outputs do not separate on- and off-site emissions for mobile sources. For a worst-case scenario 
assessment, the emissions shown in Table 3-6 include all on-site project-related stationary sources 
and 5 percent of the project-related new mobile sources, which is an estimate of the amount of 
project-related new vehicle traffic that will occur on site (SCAQMD 2006). Considering the total 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 48 

trips included in the CalEEMod model, the assumption that 5 percent of them would occur only 
within the project site is conservative. 

Table 3-6 
Operational Local Significance Threshold (LST) Impacts (pounds per day) 

Emissions Source Nitrogen Oxide 
Carbon 

Monoxide 
PM10 PM2.5 

On-Site Emissions 2.3 9.7 1.0 0.1 

LST Thresholds 371 1,965 4 2 

Significant Emissions? No No No No 

Table 3-6 shows that the operational emission rates would not exceed the local significance 
thresholds for receptors at 25 meters. (SCAQMD, 2008) Therefore, the proposed operational 
activity would not result in a localized significant air quality impact. 

While no development is proposed on the project site with this application, this analysis evaluates 
development assumptions for Parcels 1 through 3 and Parcel 7. Impacts associated with 
construction and operational air quality would be considered less than significant, as future 
development on all of the proposed parcels would require plot plan applications which are subject 
to subsequent CEQA environmental review. Furthermore, as shown in Table 3-6, the preliminary 
air pollutant projections indicate that SCAQMD significance thresholds for criteria emissions would 
not be surpassed. 

c) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project, a division of parcels, would not generate any 
criteria pollutants; therefore, it would have no effect on the nonattainment of air quality 
standards. However, future commercial development associated with the proposed project may 
contribute to the net increase of ozone precursors and other criteria pollutants. The SCAQMD’s 
approach for assessing cumulative impacts is based on the Air Quality Management Plan forecasts 
of attainment of ambient air quality standards in accordance with the requirements of the federal 
and California Clean Air Acts. As discussed earlier, the proposed project would be consistent with 
the AQMP, which is intended to bring the basin into attainment for all criteria pollutants.2 In 
addition, the preliminary construction and operations emissions calculated for the proposed 
project (see Tables 3-1 through 3-6) are less than the applicable SCAQMD daily significance 
thresholds, which are designed to assist the region in attaining the applicable state and national 
ambient air quality standards. Furthermore, future development on each of the proposed parcels 
(1 through 6) would require a separate application and would be subject to subsequent CEQA 
environmental review as well as plot plan approval. Cumulative impacts of the proposed project 
would be less than significant. 

                                                            
2 CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(h)(3) states, “a lead agency may determine that a project’s  incremental contribution to a 
cumulative effect is not cumulatively considerable if the project will comply with the requirements in a previously approved plan 
or mitigation program which provides specific requirements that will avoid or substantially lessen the cumulative problem (e.g., 
water quality control plan, air quality plan, integrated waste management plan) within the geographic area in which the project 
is located. Such plans or programs must be specified in law or adopted by the public agency with jurisdiction over the affected 
resources through a public review process to implement, interpret, or make specific the law enforced or administered by the 
public agency.” 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 49 

d) Less Than Significant Impact. Sensitive land uses are generally defined as locations where people 
reside or where the presence of air emissions could adversely affect the use of the land. Typical 
sensitive receptors include residents, schoolchildren, hospital patients, and the elderly. While the 
proposed project is a commercial project which would largely preclude the long-term presence of 
residents, schoolchildren, hospital patients, and the elderly, it would still result in commercial 
employees who would spend several hours on-site daily.   

In April 2005, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) released the Land Use and Air Quality 
Handbook: A Community Health Perspective (Land Use Handbook), which offers guidance on siting 
sensitive land uses in proximity to sources of air toxics. Sensitive land uses identified in the Land 
Use Handbook include residential communities, schools and schoolyards, day-care centers, parks 
and playgrounds, and hospitals and medical facilities. A particular source of air toxics treated in the 
guidance is freeways and major roadways. These roadways are sources of diesel particulate matter 
(DPM), which CARB has listed as a toxic air contaminant.  

The Land Use Handbook recommends that sensitive land uses be sited no closer than 500 feet from 
a freeway or major roadway, a buffer area that was developed to protect sensitive receptors from 
exposure to DPM, which was based on traffic-related studies that showed a 70 percent drop in PM 
concentrations at a distance of 500 feet from the roadway. Presumably, acute and chronic risks as 
well as lifetime cancer risk due to DPM exposure are lowered proportionately. Per Google Earth, 
the eastern edge of the project site is within 240 feet of Interstate 15. Therefore, the site lies 
within the CARB-recommended buffer area, and future receptors could be negatively affected by 
toxic air contaminants generated on Interstate 15. 

As a refinement to the CARB Land Use Handbook, the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
Management District (SMAQMD) prepared the Recommended Protocol for Evaluating the Location 
of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major Roadways, which was updated in March 2011. This 
protocol sets a screening threshold (276 per million) under which potential health risk impacts are 
not anticipated. The screening threshold was selected by the SMAQMD as that level of increased 
individual risk corresponding to a 70 percent reduction from the highest risk calculated at distances 
from the edge of the nearest travel lane to the nearest sensitive receptor for peak-hour traffic 
volumes. Based on the location of the project site (approximately 240 feet west of I-15 at its 
nearest) and the peak-hour volumes (9,000) along the nearby I-15 segment (Caltrans 2011), the 
location of the project site would not exceed the thresholds identified in the refined protocol as 
shown in Table 3-7.  

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 50 

Table 3-7 
Screening Evaluation of Potential Cancer Risk to Proposed Receptors Attributable to I-15 

I-15 Peak-Hour 
Traffic 

(vehicles/hr) 

Receptor 
Distance from 

Edge of Nearest 
Travel Lane 

(feet) 

Incremental 
Cancer Risk Per 
Million: West 

Distance 
Screening 

Threshold (276 
per million) 
Exceeded 

Project Site 
Distance 
from I-15 

Screening 
Threshold 

Surpassed? 

 

 

 

 

9,000 

10 429  

 

 

 

<50 Feet 

 

 

 

 

240 feet 

 

 

 

 

No 

25 340 

50 248 

100 169 

200 105 

300 76 

400 60 

500 51 

Source: SMAQMD 2011; Peak-Hour Traffic Source: Caltrans 2011 

Carbon Monoxide  

Typically, substantial pollutant concentrations of CO are associated with mobile sources (e.g., 
vehicle idling time). Localized concentrations of CO are associated with congested roadways or 
signalized intersections operating at poor levels of service (level of service [LOS] E or lower). High 
concentrations of CO may negatively affect local sensitive receptors (e.g., residents, schoolchildren, 
or hospital patients). To the southwest of the project site, along Orange Street, are sensitive 
receptors consisting of existing residential uses.  

As stated in the Transportation/Traffic subsection, although the division of land will not result in 
traffic, development of site improvements along with construction of retail uses will eventually 
lead to more traffic in the area. The traffic impact analysis prepared for the project (see Appendix 
I), and based on the development assumptions shown in the project description, determined that 
the study area intersections are projected to operate at acceptable levels of service during the peak 
hours for existing plus ambient growth plus cumulative projects plus project traffic conditions. (see 
Issue a) of Section 16 in this Initial Study) Therefore, this impact is considered less than significant 
since CO concentrations are associated with traffic facilities operating at poor levels of service. 

e) No Impact. The SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook (1993) identifies certain land uses as sources 
of odors. These land uses include agriculture (farming and livestock), wastewater treatment plants, 
food processing plants, chemical plants, composting facilities, refineries, landfills, dairies, and 
fiberglass molding. The proposed project is a Tentative Parcel Map for future commercial 
operations which will not include any of these land uses that have been identified by the SCAQMD 
as odor sources. While it is possible that a future gas station and restaurant may generate odors on 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 51 

or near the property, these would be considered consistent with commercial uses found 
throughout the City, and across Bundy Canyon Road to the north. There would be no odor impacts 
from the proposed project.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

None. 

 

. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 52 

4. Biological Resources 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly 
or through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-
status species in local or regional plans, policies, 
or regulations, or by the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, 
policies, regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of 
the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited 
to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through 
direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, 
or other means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
habitat conservation plan, natural community 
conservation plan, or other approved local, 
regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

    

Setting 

The site is generally flat and level, with elevations ranging from approximately 1,345 to 1,391 feet above 
sea level One remnant drainage was identified within the proposed project area. The earthen channel 
begins in the northeastern quarter of the site and crosses the site from east to west. It is approximately 
20 feet wide at its widest in the eastern portion of the site and approximately 2 feet wide at the western 
edge of the study area. The upstream feeding waters to this drainage were relocated underground in 
2006/2007 by the Riverside County Flood Control District. Water is conveyed into the storm drainage 
system west of the site near its boundary with the I-15 right of way. The abandoned, on site drainage 
does not currently receive any storm flows from upstream areas and no longer has any connectivity to 
any upstream or downstream waters. This remnant drainage does not support any aquatic, wetland, or 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 53 

riparian habitat and no longer functions as a stream. No potential jurisdictional wetlands or jurisdictional 
streambed occur within the study area. (LSA, 2012)  

Vegetation and Disturbance 

Vegetation within the site is disturbed, and the site appears to have been disked within the past year. A 
2005 historic aerial (http://www.historieaerials.com) shows evidence of vegetation clearance prior to 
2005. Vegetation present on the site consists of disturbed nonnative species with scattered eari 
ycolonizing Riversidean sage scrub spec ies. Prominent nonnative plant species identified include red 
brome (Bromus madritensis ssp. Rubens), shortpod mustard (Hirschfeldia incana), tocalote (Centaurea 
melitensis) and dove weed (Croton setigerus). Riversidean sage scrub species identified on site include 
California buckwheat (Erigonum fasciculatum), deerweed (Lotus scoparius), and Menzies' golden bush 
(Isocoma menziesii).  

As noted above, near the center of the site, there is a remnant drainage that no longer conveys storm 
flows as a result of construction of an underground storm drain system in 2006/2007. Vegetation within 
the remnant drainage was similar to that in surrounding up land area. Trees identified on site include 
Mexican Palo Verde (Parkinsonia aculeata) and pistachio (Pistacia atlantica). A complete list of plant 
species observed on the site is included in Table 4-1. (LSA, 2012) 

Wildlife 

Wildlife species observed during the fielcl survey inc lude white-crowned sparrow (Zonotrichia 
leucophrys), black phoebe (Sayornis nigricans semiatra), European starling (Sturnus vulgaris), house finch 
(Carpodacus mexicanus), California ground squirrel (Spermophilus beecheyi), and black-tailed jackrabbit 
(Lepus californicus). No special interest wildlife spec ies were observed duri ng the field survey. (LSA, 
2012) A complete list of wildlife species observed on the site is included in Table 4-1. 

METHODS 

Aerial photographs (2010 and 2011 ) were reviewed and maps of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) 
designated critical habitats were used to determine the locations of critical habitats relative to the 
project site. Volume I, Parts I and 2, of the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan were also used to prepare the biological resources report. Soil information was taken 
from the Soil Survey of Western Riverside Area, California (Soil Conservation Service 1971). A field survey 
was conducted on May 30, 2007, by LSA Assistant Wildlife Biologist Lisa Wadley and again on October 8, 
2012, by LSA Biologist Sarah Barrera. Notes were made on general site conditions, the presence of any 
riparian/riverine or vernal pool habitat, and vegetation. All plant and animal species observed or 
otherwise detected during the field survey were noted. 

A literature review was conducted to determine the ex istence or potential occ urrence of special interest 
plant and animal species within 5 miles of the project site. Database records for the Wildomar, Lake 
Elsinore, Murietta, and Romoland, California USGS 7.5-minute quadrangles were searched on October 8, 
2012, using the Cal ifornia Department of Fi sh and Game (CDFG) Natural Di versity Data Base online 
application Rarefind 4 and the California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 

 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 54 

Table 4-1 
Plants and Animals Observed 

PLANTS 
Anacardiaceae Sumac family

Pistacia atlantica* Mount Atlas mastic tree
Schinus terebinthifolius* Brazilian pepper tree

Asteraceae Sunflower family
Artemisia califomica California sagebrush
Ericameria palmeri var. pachylepis Box Springs goldenbush

Brassicaceae  Mustard family
Hirschfeldia incana*  Shortpod mustard

Chenopodiaceae  Saltbush family
Salsola tragus*  Russian thistle

Fabaceae  Pea family
Parkinsonia aculeata * Mexican palo verde

Meliaceae  Mahogany family
Melia azedarach*  Persian lilac, Chinaberry

Polygonaceae  Buckwheat family
Eriogonum fasciculatum  California buckwheat

Solanaceae  Nightshade family
Nicotiana glauca*  Tree tobacco

Poaceae  Grass family
Bromus madritensis* Foxtail chess

Convolvulaceae  Morning-glory family
Convolvulus arvensis* Field bindweed

ANIMALS 
BIRDS 
Accipitridae  Kites, Hawks, and Eagles

Buteo jamaicensis  Red-tailed hawk
Charadriidae  Plovers and Lapwings

Charadrius vociferus  Killdeer
Columbidae  Pigeons and Doves

Zenaida macroura  Mourning dove
Trochilidae  Hummingbirds

Calypte anna  Anna's hummingbird
Hirundinidae  Swallows

Stelgidopteryx serripennis  Northern rough-winged swallow 
Mimidae  Mockingbirds and Thrashers 

Mimus polyglottos  Northern mockingbird
Icteridae  Blackbirds, Orioles, and Allies 

Icterus bullockii  Bullock's oriole
MAMMALS 
Leporidae  Rabbits and Hares

Sylvilagus audubonii  Desert cottontail
RODENTIA 
Sciuridae  Squirrels

Spermophilus beecheyi California ground squirrel 
* Non-native species 
Source: LSA 2007 
  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 55 

MSHCP COMPLIANCE 

The City of Wildomar participates in the Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan 
(MSHCP). The plan establishes areas of sensitivity considered criteria areas or cells. Projects outside of 
these areas can proceed consistent with the provisions of CEQA and are subject to payment of an MSHCP 
mitigation fee. The MSHCP establishes procedures for the determination of sensitivity. The proposed 
project is subject to the MSHCP but is outside of any criteria area or cell.  

Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan 

In October 1988, the Stephens’ kangaroo rat (SKR) was listed as an endangered species by the US Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS). Under the Endangered Species Act, both the SKR and its habitat were 
protected from any type of disturbance resulting in “take” of the species. The net effect was to freeze 
new development on more than 22,000 acres throughout western Riverside County. At the time of 
listing, very little was known about the animal, its geographical distribution, or its habitat needs. 

In order to address severe economic impacts of the SKR listing, the Riverside County Habitat 
Conservation Agency prepared a Short-Term Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). This HCP, approved by the 
USFWS and California Department of Fish and Game in August 1990, was intended as an interim 
conservation program designed to afford protection to the SKR while a plan providing for the 
establishment of permanent preserves could be developed. The proposed project is within the Stephen’s 
Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) and is subject to mitigation fees. The fees are 
administered by the Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency and are used to acquire and manage 
habitat for the species.  

Riparian/Riverine and Vernal Pool Requirements  

According to Section 6.1.2 of the MSHCP, an assessment of the potentially significant effects of projects 
on riparian/riverine areas and vernal pools shall be performed. 

Riparian/riverine areas are defined by the MSHCP as “lands which contain habitat dominated by trees, 
shrubs, persistent emergents, or emergent mosses and lichens, which occur close to or which depend 
upon soil moisture from a nearby fresh water source; or areas with fresh water flow during all or a 
portion of the year.” Vernal pools are defined by the MSHCP as “seasonal wetlands that occur in 
depression areas that have wetlands indicators of all three parameters (soils, vegetation, and hydrology) 
during the wetter portion of the growing season but normally lack wetlands indicators of hydrology 
and/or vegetation during the drier portion of the growing season…” 

The MSHCP requires an assessment of riparian/riverine areas and vernal pools, including identification 
and mapping of these areas and consideration of species composition, topography/hydrology, and soil 
analysis, where appropriate. According to the MSHCP, the assessment shall also include a description of 
the functions and values of the mapped areas. Factors to be considered include hydrologic regime, flood 
storage and flood flow modification, nutrient retention and transformation, sediment trapping and 
transport, toxicant trapping, public use, wildlife habitat, and aquatic habitat. Further, if the mapping 
identifies suitable habitat for certain species identified in the MSHCP, and the proposed project design 
does not incorporate avoidance of the identified habitat, then focused surveys for those species shall be 
conducted and avoidance and minimization measures discussed in the MSHCP shall be implemented.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 56 

Potential Jurisdictional Wetlands and Streambeds  

One remnant drainage was identified within the study area. The earthen channel begins in the 
northeastern quarter of the site and crosses the site from east to west. It is approximately 20 feet wide at 
its widest in the eastern portion of the site and approximately 2 feet wide at the western edge of the 
study area. The upstream feeding waters to this drainage were relocated underground in 2006/2007 by 
the Riverside County Flood Control District. Water is conveyed into the storm drain system west of the 
site near its boundary with the I-15 right-of-way. The abandoned, on-site drainage does not currently 
receive any storm flows from upstream areas, no longer has any aquatic, wetland, or riparian habitat, and 
no longer functions as a stream. A MSHCP consistency report prepared in October 2012 by LSA Associates 
(Appendix D) determined that no potential jurisdictional wetlands or jurisdictional streambeds occur 
within the study area.  

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site is vacant and primarily 
contains non-native ruderal vegetation, and a remnant drainage feature runs southwest from the 
center of the project site near I-15. According to the Riverside County Land Information System 
(2012), the project site has been previously disturbed and is located outside of any criteria cell or 
area. The project is subject to MSHCP fees.  

Implementation of the proposed project could result in the direct mortality or loss of habitat for 
raptors and migratory birds. Habitats on and adjacent to the project site may provide suitable 
nesting habitat for birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and Section 3503.5 of the 
California Fish and Game Code. Therefore, removal of trees and vegetation during construction 
activities could result in noise, dust, human disturbance, and other direct/indirect impacts to 
nesting raptors and migratory bird species in the project vicinity. Potential nest abandonment 
and mortality to eggs and chicks would be considered significant impacts.  

Implementation of mitigation measure BIO-01 would ensure that all sensitive habitat, and 
candidate, sensitive, and/or special-status species identified in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) (formerly the California 
Department of Fish and Game) or USFWS are identified, avoided, and mitigated for where 
necessary. With mitigation, the potential impacts would be less than significant. 

b) Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. A biology study performed by LSA 
Associates in July 2007 (Appendix D) determined that the proposed project site is highly 
disturbed and that the vegetation on the site is primarily ruderal and common to disturbed areas. 
The July 2007 study and a MSHCP consistency report prepared by LSA Associates in October 2012 
(Appendix D) also stated that there are no vernal pools (or similar habitat), potential wetlands, or 
jurisdictional streambeds occurring within the study area.  

The proposed project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan fee 
area, which will be addressed by the implementation of mitigation measure BIO-02.  

With implementation of mitigation measure BIO-02, any impacts will be less than significant. 

c)  No Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would not result in the loss of jurisdictional 
waters of the United States or waters of the State. A Riparian/Riverine and Vernal Pool Habitat 
Suitability Assessment (HSA) prepared by LSA Associates in July 2007 and a MSHCP consistency 
report prepared by LSA Associates in October 2012 (Appendix D) determined that there are no 
potential jurisdictional wetlands or streambeds located on the site.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 57 

d) No Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would not interfere substantially with the 
movement of native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species. No established migratory 
routes were identified within the project site in a July 2007 biology study (Appendix D) or an 
October 2012 MSHCP consistency report (Appendix D). In addition, the 2012 MSHCP consistency 
report found that there are no aquatic, wetland, or riparian habitats occurring on the site. Due to 
the surrounding urban land uses and major roadways, it is unlikely that any significant wildlife 
corridors exist in the project vicinity. Therefore, no impacts to the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species, or established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, and no impediments to the use of native wildlife nursery sites will occur as a result of 
the proposed project. 

e) Less Than Significant Impact. The City is subject to compliance with the Western Riverside 
County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP). The proposed project is located 
outside of an MSHCP criteria cell or area but within the fee assessment area. Additionally, the 
proposed project site does not contain any oak trees; therefore, it is not subject to the Riverside 
County Oak Tree Management Guidelines. The proposed project has no potential to impact 
biological resources; however, future development associated with the proposed project may. As 
noted above, the project is compliant with all existing ordinances and policies, and this impact is 
considered less than significant. 

f)  Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The MSHCP is a comprehensive, multi-
jurisdictional habitat conservation plan focusing on conservation of species and associated 
habitats in western Riverside County. The MSHCP will serve as a habitat conservation plan 
pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the federal Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, as 
well as a natural communities conservation plan (NCCP) under the NCCP Act of 2001. The overall 
goal of the MSHCP is the conservation of 500,000 acres and focuses on the conservation of 146 
plant and animal species. The proposed project is located outside of the MSHCP criteria cell or 
areas but within the fee area. Implementation of mitigation measures BIO-02 and BIO-03 will 
mitigate any impacts to a less than significant level.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

BIO-01 The project applicant shall conduct construction and clearing activities outside of the avian 
nesting season (January 15–August 31), where feasible. If clearing and/or construction 
activities occur during nesting season, preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors and 
migratory birds shall be conducted by a qualified biologist, up to 14 days before initiation of 
construction activities. The qualified biologist shall survey the construction zone, and a 250-
foot radius surrounding the construction zone, to determine whether the activities taking place 
have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds. If the biologist determines after 
consultation with wildlife agencies that there is potential harm to nesting birds, construction 
within the 250 foot setback area shall be prohibited until it is determined that construction 
activities will not harm the nesting birds.  

Timing/Implementation:  The project applicant shall incorporate requirements into the 
contract plans. The project applicant’s construction inspector 
shall monitor to ensure that measures are implemented during 
construction. 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning and Public Works Departments 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 58 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee 
area and will be subject to the SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for 
development and must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will 
mitigate for any impacts to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is 
current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must 
be paid at the time of issuance.) 

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside MSHCP area and will be subject to the 
MSHCP development mitigation fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently 
$9,492 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and must be paid upon 
issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the 
MSHCP planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the 
fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 59 

5. Cultural Resources 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined 
in Section 15064.5? 

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to Section 15064.5? 

    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

    

d) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries?     

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The project would not cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in Section 15064.5 of the California Environmental 
Quality Act. As shown in Appendix B, there are no structures located on the site. Currently, the 
project site is vacant. In addition, the Wildomar General Plan does not identify historical 
resources on the project site. Since no historic structures are currently located on the site or 
adjacent to the site, a less than significant impact to historic resources is anticipated, and no 
mitigation measures are required.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The project is not anticipated to 
cause a substantial adverse impact to an archaeological resource. However, because 
archaeological resource sites have been identified within the City of Wildomar, there is the 
potential for the unanticipated discovery of these resources. Because these resources are known 
to exist in the general area, the mitigation measures listed in this section (CUL-01 through 
CUL-08) will ensure that any unanticipated discovery would not have a significant impact on 
archeological resources.  

According to the Riverside County Land Information System (2012), the project site is not located 
within Native American Tribal Lands. However, historically there have been tribal activities in and 
around the Wildomar area, and there is a potential for the inadvertent discovery of previously 
unknown resources. As a result, with the implementation of the mitigation measures (CUL-01 
through CUL-08) identified in this section, any impacts will be reduced to a less than significant 
level.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The site has been identified as 
having a high potential/sensitivity (High A) for paleontological resources according to the 
Wildomar General Plan Paleontological Sensitivity Resources Map. Geologic formations in the 
high sensitivity area are known to have fossilized body elements and trace fossils such as tracks, 
nests, and eggs. These fossils can occur at or below the surface. Therefore, mitigation measures 
(CUL-07 and CUL-08) will be implemented to reduce impacts in the event that paleontological 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 60 

resources are found during grading. Therefore, with mitigation, impacts will be reduced to a less 
than significant level.  

d) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Neither the City nor the County has 
records of the project site containing any previously identified formal or informal cemetery. 
Although there are no known archaeological resources on the project site, in the event human 
remains are encountered during ground-disturbing activities, mitigation measures (CUL-01 
through CUL-06) identified below would reduce any impacts to a level of less than significant  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

CUL-01  Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building, 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the following wording shall be included 
in all construction contract documentation: 

If during grading or construction activities cultural resources are discovered on the project site, 
work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be 
evaluated by a qualified archeologist. Any unanticipated cultural resources that are discovered 
shall be evaluated and a final report prepared. The report shall include a list of the resources 
recovered, documentation of each site/locality, and interpretation of resources recovered. In 
the event the significant resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent 
with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

CUL-02 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the project applicant(s) for future 
development shall contact the appropriate Tribe3 to notify the Tribe of grading, excavation, and 
the monitoring program, and to coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop 
a Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. The agreement shall address the 
treatment of known cultural resources; the designation, responsibilities, and participation of 
Native American Tribal monitors during grading, excavation, and ground-disturbing activities; 
project grading and development scheduling; terms of compensation; and treatment and final 
disposition of any cultural resources, sacred sites, and human remains discovered on the site. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-03 Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the 
following wording on all construction contract documentation: 

                                                            
3 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive 
coordination with the surrounding cities in determining potentially significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 61 

 If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 requires 
that no further disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made the 
necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until a final decision as to 
the treatment and disposition has been made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the 
remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be contacted 
within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall 
identify the “most likely descendant.” The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the treatment of the remains as 
provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-04 The landowner shall relinquish ownership of all cultural resources, including sacred items, 
burial goods, and all archaeological artifacts that are found on the project site, to the 
appropriate Tribe for proper treatment and disposition. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of project approval, and implemented during 
ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-05 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the project area, shall be avoided and 
preserved as the preferred mitigation, if feasible as determined by a qualified professional in 
consultation with the appropriate culturally affiliated Native American Tribe. To the extent that 
a sacred site cannot be feasibly preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation 
measures shall be required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2.  

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of project approval, and implemented during 
ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-06 Prior to future development approval on the project site and issuance of any grading, building 
or other permit authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the 
following wording on all construction contract documentation: 

If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are discovered during grading, 
work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and the developer and Tribe 
shall meet and confer regarding the significance of and mitigation for such resources. If the 
developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance of or the mitigation for such 
resources, these issues will be presented to the City of Wildomar Planning Director for decision. 
The Planning Director shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the religious beliefs, customs, 
and practices of the appropriate Tribe. Notwithstanding any other rights available under the 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 62 

law, the decision of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar. In the 
event the significant resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines the 
resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent 
with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-07 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant(s) for future development shall 
identify to the City of Wildomar the qualified paleontologist who has been retained to evaluate 
the significance of any inadvertently discovery paleontological resources. If paleontological 
resources are encountered during grading or project construction, all work in the area of the 
find shall cease. The project applicant shall notify the City of Wildomar and retain a qualified 
paleontologist to investigate the find. The qualified paleontologist shall make 
recommendations as to the disposition of the paleontological resources to the City of 
Wildomar Planning Director. The developer shall pay for all required treatment and storage of 
the discovered resources. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

CUL-08 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be encountered during future grading or 
construction, a qualified professional shall monitor all construction activities that could 
potentially impact archaeological and/or paleontological deposits (e.g., grading, excavation, 
and/or trenching). However, monitoring should be discontinued as soon the qualified 
professional is satisfied that construction will not disturb cultural resources. 

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
during ground disturbing construction activities 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 63 

6. Geology and Soils 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk 
of loss, injury, or death involving:  

    

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning map, issued 
by the State Geologist for the area or 
based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault?  

    

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?      

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction?  

    

iv) Landslides?      

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil?      

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in 
on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?  

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property? 

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems where sewers 
are not available for the disposal of 
wastewater? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) i) Less Than Significant Impact. The project is located within seismically active Southern 
California (Seismic Zone 4) and is expected to experience occasional strong ground motions from 
earthquakes caused by both local and regional faults. There are approximately 41 major 
“potentially active/active” faults within a 62-mile radius (100 kilometers) of the project site. None 
of these active faults are known or believed to traverse the project site based on scientific review 
and on photogeologic analysis, field reconnaissance, on-site subsurface trenching, and other 
scientific analysis (Terra Geosciences 2007) (see Appendix E). The nearest active fault to the 
project site is the Wildomar Fault (Temecula Segment of the Elsinore Fault Zone), located 
approximately 1 mile southwest of the project site. The Wildomar Fault is a right-lateral strike-



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 64 

slip fault that has a maximum moment magnitude (Mw) of 6.8 and an estimated slip rate of 5.0 
millimeters per year. The project site does not lie within a State of California Earthquake Fault 
Hazard Zone (formerly called an Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zone) but does lie within the 
Riverside County Fault Zone. Although not zoned by the State of California, geologic mapping 
indicates that a branch of the Elsinore Fault Zone (Glen Ivy Segment), which is also included in 
the Riverside County Fault Zone, may transect the southwestern portion of the project site. 
However, a geologic/fault investigation conducted by Terra Geoscience in January 2007 did not 
identify any recent faulting on the project site. Caliche-lined fractures encountered during the 
investigation were determined to be generated by random ground fracturing from a pre-
Holocene strong earthquake. 

As there is no evidence of a known fault on the project site, the project would not expose people 
or structures to potential substantial adverse effects associated with ground rupture. This impact 
would be considered less than significant.  

ii)  Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project could expose 
people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or 
death involving strong seismic ground shaking. The project site is located in an area of high 
regional seismicity and may experience horizontal ground acceleration during an earthquake 
along the Wildomar Fault of the Elsinore Fault Zone, which is located approximately 1 mile from 
the project site, or other fault zones throughout the region. The project site does not lie within a 
State of California Earthquake Fault Hazard Zone (formerly called an Alquist-Priolo Special Studies 
Zone) but does lie within the Riverside County Fault Zone. The project site has been, and will 
continue to be, exposed to strong seismic ground shaking, which is considered a potentially 
significant impact. Compliance with mitigation measures GEO-01 and GEO-02 will minimize the 
potential for damage associated with strong seismic ground shaking and reduce this impact to a 
less than significant level. 

iii) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. According to the Riverside County 
Land Information System (2012), the project site is located in an area that is designated as having 
a moderate potential for liquefaction. To address any potential impacts from other seismic-
related ground failure, compliance with mitigation measures GEO-01 and GEO-02 will minimize 
the potential for damage associated with strong seismic ground shaking and reduce this impact 
to a less than significant level. 

iv)  No Impact. The proposed project is not expected to expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death from landslides. Due to the 
relatively level terrain in the proposed project area, this site is not subject to landslide, collapse, 
or rockfall hazards. The project site is located within an area of general seismic activity, but does 
not contain areas subject to unstable geologic units or soil. According to the Wildomar General 
Plan, the project site has no potential for landslides. Additionally, due to the proposed project 
site’s distance from boulders or other rock formations, there is no potential for mudslide or rock 
fall hazards. As a result, no impacts are anticipated. 

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. During site preparation and grading 
and as future development is proposed, soil erosion may result during construction, as grading 
and construction can loosen surface soils and make soils susceptible to the effects of wind and 
water movement across the surface. Mitigation measures GEO-03 and GEO-04 will require 
compliance with the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and the State of 
California Water Quality Control Board’s construction permit as well as the submittal of detailed 
Erosion Control Plans with any grading plans. Typical best management practices (BMP) design 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 65 

components intended to reduce erosion include maximizing paving of the site and collecting the 
storm drainage runoff into basins (see Parcel 7), design of landscaping intended to enable 
percolation and treatment of stormwater and use of a sand filtration design in the storm 
drainage basin. A draft water quality management plan for Parcels 1 and 2 is included as 
Appendix G to this initial study. The implementation of mitigation measures GEO-04 and GEO-04 
will address any erosion issues associated with the future grading of the site. As a result, these 
impacts are considered to be less than significant with mitigation.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. According to the Riverside County 
Land Information System (2012), the project site is located in an area that is designated as having 
a moderate potential for liquefaction and is susceptible to subsidence. To address any potential 
impacts related to ground failure, compliance with mitigation measures GEO-02 and GEO-04 
would  reduce the impacts associated with ground failure hazards to a less than significant level. 

d) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The native soils on the site consist of 
Ramona sandy loam (RaB3 and RaD2), Ramona very fine sandy loam (ReC2), Greenfield sandy 
loam (GyC2), and Hanford coarse sandy loam (HcC) (USDA-NRCS 2012). The Ramona sandy loam 
and very fine sandy loam soil series make up approximately 80 percent of the soils on the site. All 
soils on the project site have a low shrink-swell potential; therefore, they would not be 
considered expansive soils. Future development proposed on the site is required to comply with 
the California Building Code and commonly accepted engineering practices, which require special 
design and construction methods for dealing with expansive and unstable soil behavior. 
Compliance with recommendations included in the soils report required by mitigation measure 
GEO-01 and compliance with mitigation measures GEO-02 through GEO-04 will ensure that soils 
at future development sites would be capable of supporting the structures resulting from the 
proposed project. This compliance would reduce impacts resulting from expansive and unstable 
soils to a less than significant level. 

e) No Impact. The project does not propose the use or construction of septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems; therefore, no impact would occur. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

GEO-01 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a geotechnical soils reports 
to the City Engineer for review and approval. All grading shall be in conformance with the 
recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved by the City of Wildomar. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

GEO-02 All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 457, and all other relevant 
laws, rules, and regulations governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing 
any grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall obtain a grading permit 
from the Building Department.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 66 

GEO-03 Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall provide the Engineering Department 
evidence of compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and 
obtain a construction permit from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

GEO-04  Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes greater than 3 feet in 
vertical height, are to be signed by a registered landscape architect and bonded per the 
requirements of Ordinance 457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur within 30 days 
of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy 
season. The developer shall plant and irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 
(horizontal to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; 
slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs or trees or as 
approved by the City Engineer. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 67 

7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Issues: Would the project:   
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. Construction and operation of subsequent development associated 
with the proposed Tentative Parcel Map would generate greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, with 
the majority of energy consumption (and associated generation of GHG emissions) occurring 
during operation of future commercial buildings (as opposed to during construction of roadway 
and sidewalk improvements). Overall, the following activities associated with the future 
anticipated land uses could directly or indirectly contribute to the generation of GHG emissions: 

 Construction Activities: During construction of the project, GHGs would be emitted through 
the operation of construction equipment and from worker and vendor vehicles, each of 
which typically uses fossil-based fuels to operate. The combustion of fossil-based fuels 
creates GHGs such as carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous oxide (N2O). 
Furthermore, CH4 is emitted during the fueling of heavy equipment. 

 Gas, Electric, and Water Use: Natural gas use results in the emissions of two GHGs: CH4 (the 
major component of natural gas) and CO2 from the combustion of natural gas. Electricity use 
can result in GHG production if the electricity is generated by combusting fossil fuel. 
California’s water conveyance system is energy-intensive. Preliminary estimates indicate that 
the total energy used to pump and treat this water exceeds 6.5 percent of the total electricity 
used in the state per year. 

 Solid Waste Disposal: Solid waste generated by the project could contribute to GHG 
emissions in a variety of ways. Landfilling and other methods of disposal use energy for 
transporting and managing the waste, and they produce additional GHGs to varying degrees. 
Landfilling, the most common waste management practice, results in the release of CH4 from 
the anaerobic decomposition of organic materials. Methane is 21 times more potent a GHG 
than CO2. However, landfill CH4 can also be a source of energy. In addition, many materials in 
landfills do not decompose fully, and the carbon that remains is sequestered in the landfill 
and not released into the atmosphere. 

 Motor Vehicle Use: Transportation associated with the proposed project would result in GHG 
emissions from the combustion of fossil fuels in daily automobile and truck trips. 

GHG emissions associated with future land uses would occur over the short term from construction 
activities, consisting primarily of emissions from equipment exhaust. There would also be long-
term regional emissions associated with project-related new vehicular trips and stationary source 
emissions, such as natural gas used for heating and electricity usage for lighting. Preliminary 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 68 

guidance from the Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and recent letters from the Attorney 
General critical of CEQA documents that have taken different approaches indicate that lead 
agencies should calculate, or estimate, emissions from vehicular traffic, energy consumption, water 
conveyance and treatment, waste generation, and construction activities. The calculation 
presented below includes construction as well as long-term operational emissions in terms of 
annual carbon dioxide equivalents (CO2e)4 associated with the anticipated operations of Parcels 1, 
2, 3, and 6 since these parcels are anticipated with more specific land uses and sizes. The resultant 
emissions of these activities were calculated using the CalEEMod air quality model (see Appendix 
C). CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011b) is a statewide land use emissions computer model designed to 
provide a uniform platform for the use of government agencies, land use planners, and 
environmental professionals. Emissions associated with the operation of Parcels 4 through 7 are 
not quantified, as this development is too speculative and has not yet been adequately defined. 
However, as stated above, future development on each of the proposed parcels (1 through 6) 
would require a separate application and would be subject to subsequent CEQA environmental 
review as well as plot plan approval. (Parcel 7 will remain as a storm drainage basin and will be 
developed as part of the first phase of the proposed project.) 

On September 28, 2010, the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) conducted 
Stakeholder Working Group Meeting #15, which resulted in a recommended threshold of 3,000 
metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) as a threshold for all land uses. Therefore, for the 
purposes of this evaluation and in the absence of any other adopted significance thresholds, a 
threshold of 3,000 metric tons of CO2e per year is used to assess the significance of greenhouse 
gases. Emissions resulting from implementation of the anticipated land uses of Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 
6 have been quantified and the quantified emissions compared with the SCAQMD greenhouse gas 
threshold. The anticipated GHG emissions during project construction and operation are reflected 
in Table 7-1. As shown in this table, GHG emissions projected to result from both construction 
(amortized over 30 years) and operation of the proposed project would not exceed the SCAQMD 
greenhouse gas threshold of 3,000 metric tons of CO2e per year and are therefore considered less 
than significant.  

 

                                                            
4 Each GHG differs in its ability to absorb heat in the atmosphere based on the lifetime, or persistence, of the gas molecule in the 
atmosphere. CH4 traps over 21 times more heat per molecule than CO2, and N2O absorbs 310 times more heat per molecule than 
CO2. GHG emissions are presented in CO2e, which weight each gas by its global warming potential (GWP). Expressing GHG 
emissions in carbon dioxide equivalents takes the contribution of all GHG emissions to the greenhouse effect and converts them 
to a single unit equivalent to the effect that would occur if only CO2 were being emitted. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 69 

Table 7-1 
Construction-Related and Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons per year) 

Emission Type CO2e 

Construction Amortized over 30 Years 15 

Indirect Emissions from Electricity and Natural Gas Consumption 107 

Water Demand 6 

Waste Generation 17 

Area Source (landscaping) 0 

Mobile Source (vehicles) 2,421 

Operations Total 2,566 

SCAQMD Greenhouse Gas Threshold 3,000 

Threshold Exceeded? No 
Source: CalEEMod (SCAQMD 2011b). See Appendix C for CalEEMod outputs. Notes: The calculation presented includes construction as well as 
long-term operational emissions in terms of annual CO2e associated with the construction and anticipated operations of Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 6 
since these parcels are anticipated with more specific land uses and sizes. Land use assumptions include 3,280 square feet of “fast-food 
restaurant with drive-through,” a “convenience market with 12 gas pumps,” 200 parking spaces, and a one-acre detention basin. GHG emissions 
were calculated based on CalEEMod defaults for traffic trip generation, landscaping needs, energy demand, solid waste generation, and water 
demand. Diesel-fueled construction equipment load factors reduced by 33 percent as directed by CARB to account for OFFROAD emissions 
overestimation (CARB 2010). In order to provide a conservative analysis, projected GHGs from construction have been amortized over the life of 
the project (30 years) and added to the annual average operational emissions. 

As shown in Table 7-1, GHG emissions projected to result from both construction and operation 
of the anticipated land uses of Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 7 would not exceed the SCAQMD greenhouse 
gas threshold of 3,000 metric tons of CO2e per year; the impact is therefore considered less than 
significant. In addition, future development on each of the proposed parcels (1 through 7) would 
require a separate application and would be subject to subsequent CEQA environmental review 
as well as plot plan approval. 

b) Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. The City of Wildomar does not have local 
policies or ordinances aimed at reducing GHG emissions. However, the City is subject to 
compliance with the Global Warming Solutions Act (AB 32), codified at Health and Safety Code 
Sections 38500, 38501, 28510 (repealed), 38530, 38550, 38560, 38561–38565, 38570, 38571, 
38574, 38580, 38590, and 38592–38599. 

The emissions level identified in Table 7-1 is unlikely to result in GHG emission levels that would 
substantially conflict with implementation of the GHG reduction goals under AB 32 or other state 
regulations. The Climate Action Team (CAT) and California Air Resources Board (CARB) have 
developed several reports to achieve the governor’s GHG targets that rely on voluntary actions of 
California businesses, local government and community groups, and state incentive and 
regulatory programs. These reports include the CAT’s 2006 “Report to Governor Schwarzenegger 
and the Legislature,” CARB’s 2007 “Expanded List of Early Action Measures to Reduce 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in California,” and CARB’s “Climate Change Proposed Scoping Plan: A 
Framework for Change.” 

The reports identify strategies to reduce California’s emissions to the levels proposed in AB 32 
that are applicable to the proposed project. The Scoping Plan is the most recent document, and 
the strategies included in the Scoping Plan that apply to the project are contained in Table 7-2, 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 70 

which also summarizes the extent to which the project would comply with the strategies to help 
California reach the emissions reduction targets. 

The strategies listed in Table 7-2 can be part of a project, required as mitigation measures, or 
stipulated as requirements under local ordinances. As the strategies are not part of the project, 
and the City has not adopted them as an ordinance, they are included in this project as 
Mitigation Measure GHG-01. Note that the majority of these strategies are designed to apply to 
construction and operation of buildings rather than improvements associated with parcel maps 
such as the proposed project. During the plot plan review process, the City will determine which 
of the strategies described in Table 7-2 (as well as any that may occur subsequent to this 
document) should be applied to the project. As proposed, the parcel map and associated 
improvements would not impede the application of any of these strategies to subsequent 
development, and the City will apply the appropriate strategies at the time of building permit 
application. In addition, development on the project site would be subject to all future applicable 
regulatory requirements, which would also reduce the GHG emissions of the project. This impact 
is less than significant. 

Table 7-2 
Long-Term Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Strategy Project Compliance 

Energy Efficiency Measures 

Energy Efficiency 

Maximize energy efficiency building and appliance standards, 
and pursue additional efficiency efforts including new 
technologies, and new policy and implementation mechanisms. 
Pursue comparable investment in energy efficiency from all 
retail providers of electricity in California (including both 
investor-owned and publicly owned utilities). 

Renewables Portfolio Standard 

Achieve a 33 percent renewable energy mix statewide. 

Green Building Strategy 

Expand the use of green building practices to reduce the carbon 
footprint of California’s new and existing inventory of buildings. 

Compliant  

Future land uses will comply with the updated Title 24 
standards, including the new 2010 California Building Code 
(CBC), for building construction. These standards require 
new buildings to reduce water consumption by 20 percent, 
which results in less energy consumption for pumping 
water.   

Water Conservation and Efficiency Measures 

Water Use Efficiency 

Continue efficiency programs and use cleaner energy sources to 
move and treat water. Approximately 19 percent of all 
electricity, 30 percent of all natural gas, and 88 million gallons 
of diesel are used to convey, treat, distribute, and use water 
and wastewater. Increasing the efficiency of water transport 
and reducing water use would reduce GHG emissions. 

Compliant 

As previously described, the project would comply with 
Title 24 standards which require new buildings to reduce 
water consumption by 20 percent. In addition, future land 
uses would comply with mitigation measure GHG-1, 
identified later in this subsection, which includes measures 
to increase water use efficiency. For instance, indoor water 
conservation measures shall be incorporated, such as use of 
low-flow toilets and faucets. Also, low- water use 
landscaping (i.e., drought-tolerant plants and drip irrigation) 
shall be installed. At least 75 percent of all landscaping 
plants shall be drought-tolerant as determined by a licensed 
landscape architect or contractor. 

Solid Waste Reduction Measures 

Increase Waste Diversion, Composting, and Commercial Compliant 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 71 

Recycling, and Move Toward Zero-Waste 

Increase waste diversion from landfills beyond the 50 percent 
mandate to provide for additional recovery of recyclable 
materials. Composting and commercial recycling could have 
substantial GHG reduction benefits. In the long term, zero-
waste policies that would require manufacturers to design 
products to be fully recyclable may be necessary. 

Data available from the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board (now known as CalRecycle) indicates 
that the City of Wildomar (Riverside County) has not 
achieved the 50 percent diversion rate. Future land uses 
would comply with mitigation measure GHG-01, identified 
later in this subsection, including measures to increase solid 
waste diversion, composting, and recycling. 

Transportation and Motor Vehicle Measures 

Vehicle Climate Change Standards 

AB 1493 (Pavley) required the State to develop and adopt 
regulations that achieve the maximum feasible and cost-
effective reduction of GHG emissions from passenger vehicles 
and light-duty trucks. Regulations were adopted by CARB in 
September 2004. 

Light-Duty Vehicle Efficiency Measures 

Implement additional measures that could reduce light-duty 
GHG emissions. For example, measures to ensure that tires are 
properly inflated can both reduce GHG emissions and improve 
fuel efficiency. 

Adopt Heavy- and Medium-Duty Fuel and Engine Efficiency 
Measures 

Regulations to require retrofits to improve the fuel efficiency of 
heavy-duty trucks that could include devices that reduce 
aerodynamic drag and rolling resistance. This measure could 
also include hybridization of and increased engine efficiency of 
vehicles. 

Low Carbon Fuel Standard 

CARB identified this measure as a Discrete Early Action 
Measure. This measure would reduce the carbon intensity of 
California’s transportation fuels by at least 10 percent by 2020. 

Compliant 

The project does not involve the manufacture of vehicles. 
However, vehicles that are purchased and used on the 
project site would comply with any vehicle and fuel 
standards that CARB adopts. However, future land uses 
would comply with mitigation measure GHG-01, identified 
later in this subsection, which includes measures to reduce 
automobile vehicle miles travelled in order to reduce GHG 
emissions. 

Regional Transportation-Related Greenhouse Gas Targets 

Develop regional GHG emissions reduction targets for 
passenger vehicles. Local governments will play a significant 
role in the regional planning process to reach passenger vehicle 
GHG emissions reduction targets. Local governments have the 
ability to directly influence both the siting and design of new 
residential and commercial developments in a way that reduces 
GHGs associated with vehicle travel. 

Compliant 

Specific regional emission targets for transportation 
emissions do not directly apply to this project; regional GHG 
reduction target development is outside the scope of this 
project. The project will comply with any plans developed 
by the City of Wildomar and Riverside County. 

Measures to Reduce High Global Warming Potential (GWP) 
Gases 

CARB has identified Discrete Early Action measures to reduce 
GHG emissions from the refrigerants used in car air 
conditioners, semiconductor manufacturing, and consumer 
products. CARB has also identified potential reduction 
opportunities for future commercial and industrial 
refrigeration, changing the refrigerants used in auto air 
conditioning systems, and ensuring that existing car air 
conditioning systems do not leak. 

Compliant 

New products used or serviced on the project site (after 
reduction of GHG gases) would comply with future CARB 
rules and regulations. 

 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 72 

Mitigation Measures 

GHG-01  Prior to building permit approval, the City of Wildomar Planning Department will evaluate the 
provisions of CARB’s “Climate Change Proposed Scoping Plan: A Framework for Change” to 
determine which of the provisions are applicable to the building and occupancy anticipated and 
shall require that the project applicant implement measures to reduce short-term and long-
term emissions of GHGs associated with construction and operation of the proposed project. 
Examples of measures that might be implemented include, but are not limited to the following: 

Construction 

 Reuse and recycle construction and demolition waste (including, but not limited to, soil, 
vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard) to the extent practical. 

Operation 

 Bicycle parking facilities and preferential parking for carpooling and alternative-fueled 
vehicles shall be provided at locations determined by City of Wildomar Planning 
Department staff. This measure encourages use of alternative transportation by employees 
and helps to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled as a result of the project.  

 Proposed commercial uses shall provide interior and exterior storage areas for recyclables 
and green waste and adequate recycling containers located in public areas. 

 Indoor water conservation measures shall be incorporated, such as use of low-flow toilets 
and faucets. 

 Future development of the annexation area shall ensure that low-water-use landscaping 
(i.e., drought-tolerant plants and drip irrigation) is installed. At least 75 percent of all 
landscaping plants shall be drought-tolerant as determined by a licensed landscape 
architect or contractor. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

Implementation of mitigation measure GHG-01 will ensure compliance with the provisions of the 
AB 32 Scoping Plan. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 73 

8. Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonable foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 
or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant 
to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment?  

    

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within 2 miles or a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the 
project area? 

    

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere 
with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

    

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The Riverside County Department of 
Environmental Health issues permits to and conducts inspections of businesses that use, store, or 
handle quantities of hazardous materials and/or waste greater than or equal to 55 gallons or 500 
pounds, or 200 cubic feet of compressed gas, at any time. The department also implements the 
Hazardous Material Management Plans (Business Emergency Plans) that include an inventory of 
hazardous materials used, handled, or stored at any business in Wildomar. Implementation of 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 74 

mitigation measure HAZ-01 will require a permit from the Riverside County Department of 
Environmental Health. 

The proposed project would not create a significant hazard to the public through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials; however, future commercial development 
associated with the proposed project may. Future development of a gas station in particular 
would result in the delivery, management, or disposal of hazardous materials and would be 
regulated by the Riverside County Department of Environmental Health, California Department 
of Industrial Relations, California Environmental Protection Agency, California Department of 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, State Board of Equalization, California 
Department of Toxic Substances Control, and California Franchise Tax Board. These agencies 
would either participate in the plot plan review by the City or be involved in the inspection prior 
to occupancy of the gas station. 

During construction of future development on the project site, there is a potential for accidental 
release of petroleum products in sufficient quantity to pose a hazard to people and the 
environment. Prior to initiating construction on the project site, mitigation measure HYD-01 will 
address any construction-related spills or accidents. Implementation of mitigation provided 
below would ensure this requirement is made a condition of future development approval. With 
implementation of mitigation measures HAZ-01 and HYD-01, the future development on the 
project site would not be expected to result in a significant impact on the environment.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project has no 
potential to release hazardous materials; however, future commercial development associated 
with the proposed project may include a gas station or other uses that utilize hazardous 
materials. Land uses that require the use and/or storage of hazardous materials (e.g., a gas 
station) are heavily regulated by federal, state, and local agencies. For example handling of 
gasoline is regulated by the California Air Resources Board and the California Highway Patrol. 
These agencies govern emissions from storage, transportation and sale of the product as well as 
the licensing and safety of the transport trucks. The Riverside County Health Department will 
regulate the storage and sale of hazardous materials and will require training, installation 
specifications, safety equipment and regular compliance with their own regulations regarding the 
sale of hazardous materials. Following the implementation of mitigation measure HAZ-01, the 
potential for release of hazardous materials into the environmental associated with future 
development would be considered less than significant.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Elsinore High School is located 
approximately one-quarter mile west of the project site. The proposed project would not emit 
hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials; however, future 
commercial development on the project site may. Implementation of mitigation measure HAZ-01 
will require future evaluation during subsequent reviews of any future project. Further, the types 
of uses anticipated by the zoning for the site include gas station, fast-food restaurant, retail 
commercial, and other uses similar to those in the vicinity and similarly close to the existing high 
school. Following the implementation of mitigation measure HAZ-01, this impact will be 
considered less than significant. 

d) No Impact. The proposed project is not located on any hazardous materials site as designated by 
Government Code Section 65962.5. A review of the information on the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control website (www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov) did not identify any other hazardous 
materials sites on or adjacent to the project site. Consequently, there is no impact. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 75 

e) No Impact. The project site is not located within any airport land use plan. The closest public 
airport is French Valley Airport, which is located approximately 9 miles southeast of the project 
site. Given the distance and that the project is not in the airport land use plan for the French 
Valley Airport, there is no impact. 

f) No Impact. The project site is located in proximity to Skylark Field, which is a private airstrip 
located at the south end of Lake Elsinore, approximately 1.5 miles northwest of the project site. 
Skylark Field is used primarily by skydiving aircraft, which commonly drop parachutists into the 
nearby back-bay area south of the lake. The airstrip is also used for gliding and other recreational 
uses. As shown in Figure 5 of the Riverside County General Plan, Skylark Airfield Area of 
Influence, the proposed project site is outside of the area of influence. No impact is anticipated. 

g) No Impact. Access to the project site is from I-15 via Bundy Canyon Road. Development of the 
proposed project will not require the closure or relocation of any roadways, and operation of the 
proposed project is not expected to interfere with access to either Orange Street or Bundy 
Canyon Road. In addition, no current program within the City of Wildomar identifies either Bundy 
Canyon Road or Orange Street as an emergency access route. The proposed project will have no 
impact on any plans for emergency evacuation.  

h) No Impact. According to the Riverside County Land Information System (2012), the project site is 
not located in the High Wildfire Zone area, which is found in more rural areas of Riverside 
County. The purpose of the wildland fire hazard area designation is to address safety concerns in 
potentially dangerous wildland fire areas. Since the project site is located outside the High 
Wildfire Zone area, the future development on the project site would not expose people or 
structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fire.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

HAZ-01  As required by existing City of Wildomar Ordinance 8.56, subsequent development on the site 
will need to demonstrate compliance with the Riverside County Department of Environmental 
Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities related to potential hazardous 
materials prior to occupancy or delivery of hazardous materials to the site.  

Timing/Implementation: As a condition of future development approval, and implemented 
prior to occupancy and delivery of hazardous materials to the site 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering and Planning Departments 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 76 

9. Hydrology and Water Quality 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements?      

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge, such that there would be a net 
deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the 
local groundwater table level (e.g., the 
production rate of pre-existing nearby wells 
would drop to a level which would not support 
existing land uses or planned uses for which 
permits have been granted)? 

     

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, in a manner which would result in 
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

     

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, or substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner, which 
would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

     

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted 
runoff? 

     

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water 
quality?      

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or 
other flood hazard delineation map? 

     

h) Place within 100-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect 
flood flows? 

     

i) Expose people or structures to a significant 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a 
levee or dam? 

     

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?      



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 77 

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site falls under the 
jurisdiction of the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) and is located in the 
Lake Elsinore watershed. The proposed project would not generate any waste discharge that 
would violate water quality standards. In addition, future commercial development on the 
project site would be connected to the existing sewer system. Construction activities associated 
with future development of commercial uses likely will involve site grading, excavation, and 
disturbance of the existing vegetation cover and soil. Although the project site is generally flat, 
intense rainfall and associated stormwater runoff could result in short periods of sheet erosion in 
areas of exposed or stockpiled soils. If uncontrolled, these soil materials would flow off of the site 
and into City drainage facilities and eventually into Lake Elsinore (see Appendix F). 

Further, the compaction of soils by heavy equipment may reduce the infiltration capacity of soils 
and increase the potential for runoff and sedimentation. Therefore, future construction activities 
could result in substantial stormwater discharges of pollutants into local drainage channels from 
the project construction sites. Construction-related chemicals (fuels, paints, adhesives, etc.) could 
be washed into surface waters by stormwater runoff. The deposition of pollutants (gas, oil, etc.) 
onto the ground surface by construction vehicles could similarly result in the transport of pollutants 
to surface waters by stormwater runoff or in seepage of such pollutants into groundwater.  

Mitigation measure HYD-01 will require the proposed project to prepare a stormwater pollution 
prevention plan (SWPPP), which will be administered during and post construction. The SWPPP 
will incorporate best management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential water quality 
impacts are minimized. BMPs will include vegetative cover, silt fencing, regular watering of the 
soil, sedimentation areas, covering of the soil, etc. Each set of BMPs will be written specifically for 
the proposed project. The SWPPP will be submitted to the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
and to the City for review, and a copy of the SWPPP will be kept accessible on the project site at 
all times. 

Future development on the project site would alter the types, quantities, and timing of 
discharges in stormwater runoff relative to existing conditions. Because of parking lots and the 
potential for cars to leak oil, it is likely that some of the runoff will include urban contaminants. 
The amount of contaminants discharged in stormwater drainage from future development will 
vary based on a variety of factors, including the intensity of urban uses such as vehicle traffic, 
types of activities occurring on site (e.g., office, commercial, industrial), types of chemicals used 
on site (e.g., pesticides, herbicides, cleaning agents, petroleum byproducts), the pollutants on 
street surfaces, and the amount of rainfall.  

Future development associated with the proposed project will be subject to the requirements of 
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Stormwater Permit No. R8-2010-
0033, which requires that the City impose water quality and watershed protection measures for 
all development projects and prohibits discharges from causing violations of applicable water 
quality standards or from resulting in conditions that create a nuisance or water quality 
impairment in receiving waters. A key component of the NPDES permit is the implementation of 
the Area-Wide Urban Runoff Management Program for the City, which includes the requirement 
of stormwater quality treatment and/or BMPs in project design for both construction and 
operation for new development. The BMPs will include design components such as channeling 
site runoff into landscape areas, and the on site basin, incorporation of a drainage pipe to 
continue the natural drainage flow, berms to channel water to landscaped areas, or installation 
of riprap.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 78 

The proposed project will also be required to implement mitigation measure HYD-02, which will 
require the submittal of a water quality management plan (WQMP). The WQMP required by 
mitigation measure HYD-02 will identify specific BMPs and other measures necessary to protect 
water quality. The preliminary WQMP included as Appendix G is designed to address 
construction of Parcels 1 through 3. Following the implementation of mitigation measures 
HYD-01 and HYD-02, the proposed project and associated future development on the project site 
is not expected to violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements, or have a 
significant impact on the environment.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is located within the area subject to the 
Elsinore Basin Groundwater Management Plan (GWMP). Adopted on March 24, 2005, under the 
authority of the Groundwater Management Planning Act (California Water Code Part 2.75, 
Section 10753), as amended, the Elsinore Basin GWMP addresses the hydrogeologic 
understanding of the Elsinore Basin, the evaluation of baseline conditions, the identification of 
management issues and strategies, and the definition and evaluation of alternatives. 

 The proposed project site is currently approximately 0 percent impervious, and the overall and 
proposed development will significantly increase the imperviousness of the site to approximately 
90 percent. Despite the significant decrease in permeability of the proposed project site, the 
proposed project would not result in significant impacts to the recharge of local groundwater 
supplies because surface water from the proposed project site will not be removed from the 
Elsinore Basin.  

 Stormwater will eventually be conveyed from the site through a permitted MS4 storm drain 
system that discharges into a permeable field located a few hundred feet downstream of the 
proposed project site. The onsite stormwater basin is designed to allow stormwater to infiltrate 
into the ground. Future improvements to the MS4 system will convey runoff directly to Lake 
Elsinore.  

 The proposed project would not substantially interfere with groundwater recharge or deplete 
groundwater supplies. However, future commercial development on the project site may lead to 
an increased demand for potable water supply, which is provided by the Elsinore Valley 
Municipal Water District (EVMWD) from both groundwater and imported water supplies. The 
EVMWD imports water to ensure that significant overdraft of local groundwater supplies does 
not occur. Based on the EVMWD’s Urban Water Master Plan, no adverse impacts to groundwater 
resources are forecast to occur from implementing the proposed project, which is anticipated as 
part of buildout of the General Plan. This impact will be less than significant.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site contains an existing 
drainage feature that was sized to accept the developed runoff from the site. The Hydrology and 
Hydrologic Report for Parcel Map 24032 prepared by The Keith Companies/Butterfield on 
October 22, 1990, for the “Sedco M.D.P. Line ‘F’ Stage 2” shows that the existing 60-inch-
diameter storm drain running southerly of the northerly property line for Parcels 3 and 4 of TPM 
No. 30522 was sized to accept the developed (commercial) runoff for Q100. The study shows that 
the existing storm drain was sized to accept the runoff from the freeway onramp, Bundy Canyon 
Road, and Orange Street, and all of the runoff from TPM No. 30522 (the project site). 

Future development on the project site will be required to implement mitigation measure 
HYD-01 requiring the preparation of a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP), which will 
incorporate BMPs to ensure that potential water quality impacts are minimized. Mitigation 
measure HYD-01 is required to include measures to ensure proper collection of sedimentation 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 79 

produced on the site. These measures may include but are not necessarily limited to: (1) 
restricting grading to the dry season; (2) protecting all finished graded slopes from erosion using 
such techniques as erosion control matting and hydroseeding; (3) protecting downstream storm 
drainage inlets from sedimentation; (4) using silt fencing and hay bales to retain sediment on the 
project site; (5) using temporary water conveyance and water diversion structures to eliminate 
runoff into any receiving water body; and (6) any other suitable measures. Following the 
implementation of mitigation measure HYD-01, the proposed project or associated future 
development would not result in substantial erosion or siltation on or off site, and this impact is 
considered less than significant. 

d) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The future development plans for 
the project site will result in an approximately 90 percent of the site becoming impervious. To 
accommodate the increase in stormwater runoff, a sand filter basin capable of conveying the 
increased runoff from the proposed project will be constructed on Parcel 7 as part of the first 
phase of development. 

 Stormwater currently flows in a westerly direction toward Orange Street in three drainage areas. 
The northerly drainage area sheet flows toward Orange Street. The middle drainage area of the 
overall project site sheet flows toward an existing culvert near the existing right-of-way. The 
culvert also conveys the runoff across Orange Street. The southerly drainage area sheet flows 
toward an existing culvert near the overall proposed project’s existing right-of-way and southerly 
of the previously mentioned culvert. The culvert also conveys the runoff from across Orange 
Street. All culverts discharge on the westerly side of Orange Street and continue sheet flowing in 
a westerly direction. The existing culvert on the project site is accepting tributary stormwater 
runoff from a small area between the freeway onramp and the overall proposed project’s right-
of-way and also along the southerly property line from a wedge of the undeveloped property to 
the south.  

 Improvements to Parcels 1 and 2, as well as the future construction and operation of the 
remaining parcels within the project site, will include concrete curb and gutters which will convey 
all stormwater runoff to a sand filter basin that will be constructed by the proposed project as 
the implementation of mitigation measure HYD-03. The storm drainage system will be connected 
to the existing 60-inch storm drain line that exists between the eastern edge of the property and 
Orange Street along the southern edge of Parcels 1 and 2. However, this permitted MS4 storm 
drain system was only built for a few hundred feet downstream of the site and is incomplete. 
Since the storm drain system is not built all the way to the receiving waters, the proposed project 
must implement mitigation measure HYD-03 to mitigate for the increased runoff as a result of 
the proposed and future development of the project site. In addition to the implementation of 
mitigation measure HYD-03, the City of Wildomar will require payment of drainage fees to allow 
for a future extension of the storm drain system to the receiving waters. This impact will be less 
than significant following the implementation of mitigation measure HYD-03. 

The calculated stormwater storage need of 19,519 cubic feet (CF) of dead storage will be 
exceeded by the sand filter basin installed with implementation of mitigation measure HYD-03 by 
1,593 cubic feet, as the proposed sand filter basin will provide 21,112 CF of dead storage. In 
addition, the proposed sand filter basin will be capable of the 0.83-inch per hour infiltration rate 
required by the Riverside County Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice Design 
Handbook.   

The overall project site falls under the jurisdiction of the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB). Since the development of Parcels 1 and 2 and the future development 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 80 

of the project site would disturb more than 1 acre of land, coverage under the RWQCB Statewide 
General Construction Permit, which requires the preparation, approval, and implementation of a 
stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP), must be obtained (as required by mitigation 
measure HYD-01). The SWPPP would include best management practices to be implemented 
during and after project construction to minimize erosion and sedimentation of downstream 
watercourses. In addition, the City would require preparation of a Water Quality Control Plan 
that would also describe the measures to be taken to protect water quality during both 
construction and operation of the development on Parcels 1 and 2 and any future development 
of the project site. 

Stormwater conveyed from the improved site into the on-site storm drainage basin located on 
Parcel 7 is designed to eventually discharge into a MS4 storm drain system that was sized to 
accept the runoff from the fully developed project site. The MS4 storm drain system is subject to 
the Riverside County Storm Water Permit also issued by the RWQCB (Order No. R9-2010-0016, 
NPDES No. CAS0108766) for discharges from the municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s) 
draining the county. This impact will be less than significant with implementation of mitigation 
measure HYD-03. 

e) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. While the proposed project will 
result in both immediate and future increases in runoff water, these increases will be adequately 
conveyed via the improvements proposed by mitigation measure HYD-03. In addition to the 
implementation of mitigation measure HYD-03, the proposed project will be required to prepare 
a stormwater pollution prevention plan (HYD-01) and a water quality management plan (HYD-02) 
that will include BMPs designed to reduce and manage increases in runoff water at the site. The 
BMPs may include design components such as channeling site runoff into landscape areas, the 
incorporation of landscape buffer areas between sidewalks and streets, the construction of on-
site ponding areas to increase opportunities for infiltration, the containment and infiltration of 
roof runoff to vegetative swales or buffer areas, and construction of vegetative swales. The 
proposed best management practices included in the WQMP and SWPPP will ensure that post-
development discharge of stormwater flow is equal to predevelopment conditions. As a result, 
this impact will be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measure HYD-01, 
HYD-2 and HYD-03. 

f) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project and/or future 
development associated with the proposed project would not otherwise substantially degrade 
water quality. Future development on the project site would be subject to the requirements of 
NPDES Stormwater Permit No. R8-2010-0033, which requires that the City impose water quality 
and watershed protection measures for all development projects and prohibits discharges from 
causing violations of applicable water quality standards or from resulting in conditions that 
create a nuisance or water quality impairment in receiving waters. A key component of the 
NPDES permit is the implementation of the Area-Wide Urban Runoff Management Program for 
the City, which includes the requirement of stormwater quality treatment and/or BMPs in project 
design for both construction and operation for new development. 

Implementation of mitigation measures HYD-01 and HYD-02 would condition future 
development to prepare and comply with the requirements of the SWPPP and final water quality 
management plan, which would ensure that significant water quality impacts and violations of 
standards and requirements do not occur. With these mitigation measures and standard 
requirements, any water quality impacts are expected to be less than significant, and no 
additional mitigation measures are required. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 81 

g) No Impact. The proposed project and future commercial development associated with the 
proposed project would not result in the development of housing on the project site. In addition, 
the project site is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area (according to FEMA Flood Map 
Numbers 06065C2682G and 06065C2044G). Therefore, the proposed project and future 
commercial development would not place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as 
mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard 
delineation map. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no mitigation is required. 

h) No Impact. The project does not propose to impede or redirect any flood flows. The project site 
is located within Zone “X” according to FEMA Flood Map Numbers 06065C2682G and 
06065C2044G. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) describes Zone X as an area 
determined to be outside the 0.2 percent annual chance floodplain. The project site is located 
outside of the 100-year flood hazard area. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no 
mitigation measures are required. 

i) No Impact. According to Figure 10 of the Wildomar General Plan, the project site is located 
outside of the inundation area of Lake Elsinore. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no 
mitigation measures are required. 

j) No Impact. The project site is not located in an area that is subject to seiches, mudflows, or 
tsunamis. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

HYD-01 Prior to the approval of the grading permit for future development on the project site, the 
project applicant(s) shall be required to prepare a stormwater pollution prevention plan 
(SWPPP) consistent with the NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated 
with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-DWQ), which is to be 
administered through all phases of grading and project construction. The SWPPP shall 
incorporate best management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential offsite water quality 
impacts during construction phases are minimized. The SWPPP shall be submitted to the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board and to the City of Wildomar for review. A copy of the 
SWPPP must be kept accessible on the project site at all times. In addition, the project 
applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City approval of, a water quality 
management plan prior to the issuance of any building or grading permit for future 
development on the project site in order to comply with the Area-Wide Urban Runoff 
Management Program. The project shall implement site design BMPs, source control BMPs, 
and treatment control BMPs as identified in the water quality management plan. Site design 
BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site ponding areas, roof 
and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs 
shall include, but are not limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking 
lot sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash storage. Treatment 
control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an infiltration device. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

HYD-02 The project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City Engineering approval of, a 
water quality management plan (WQMP) prior to the issuance of any building or grading 
permit for future development on the project site in order to comply with the Area-Wide 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 82 

Urban Runoff Management Program. The project shall implement site design BMPs, source 
control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as identified in the water quality management plan. 
Site design BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site ponding 
areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source 
control BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter 
control, parking lot sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash 
storage. Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an 
infiltration device. The intent of the BMBs shall be to ensure that development on the project 
side does not contribute to the degradation of water quality. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

HYD-03 To manage stormwater runoff flows prior to and after the full implementation of the site’s 
underground infiltration pipe system, a sand filter basin will be constructed within Parcel 7 of 
the proposed project. The sand filter basin will provide the required storage, per the design 
guidelines in the Riverside County Low Impact Development BMP Design Handbook. The 
treated stormwater from the sand filter basin will be collected by an underdrain system. The 
sand filter basin will have two concrete drop inlets that will be constructed to collect the 
overflows. The concrete drop inlets will be set at different invert elevations and opening sizes 
to control and limit the outflow of the developed site to undeveloped levels. Additionally, the 
concrete drop inlets will have 3-inch-diameter orifices to control the outflow. The orifices will 
be installed above the dead storage depth of 1.5 feet, which was determined by the 
preliminary WQMP prepared for the proposed project.   

The completed sand filter basin will provide 21,112 cubic feet (CF) of dead storage and the 
required Vbmp is 19,519 CF of dead storage. A 0.83-inch per hour filtration rate has been 
assumed per the specifications within the Riverside County Low Impact Development BMP 
Design Handbook.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Engineering Department 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 83 

10. Land Use and Planning 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Physically divide an established 
community?      

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, 
policy, or regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, but 
not limited to the general plan, specific 
plan, local coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of 
avoiding or mitigating an environmental 
effect?  

    

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 
conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan?  

     

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact. The project site is located to the southwest of the intersection of Orange Street and 
Bundy Canyon Road. The surrounding area consists of residential and commercial uses (e.g. Jack 
in the Box fast food restaurant, ARCO AM/PM gas station and Minimart) and vacant land 
designated for commercial uses. Currently, the project site is vacant and is zoned for Scenic 
Highway Commercial (C-P-S) use. Land to the north and south of the proposed project is also 
zoned for Scenic Highway Commercial (C-P-S) use, while land to west of the proposed project site 
is zoned for General Commercial (C-1/C-P) and Rural Residential (R-R) use. Interstate 15 forms 
the eastern border of the proposed project site.  

 The Wildomar General Plan land use designation for the project site is Commercial Retail (CR). All 
of the land surrounding the project site, with the exception of Interstate 15 and the area that 
borders the southwest corner of the project site is also designated for Commercial Retail (CR) 
use. Land at the southwest corner of the project site, is designated for Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) use. Future commercial development will be consistent with the General Plan 
land use designation. In addition, the project is not proposing to eliminate any of the existing 
streets in the area or to create any new arterial roadways or structures that would divide the 
community. As a result, no impact is anticipated. 

b) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is consistent with the CR land use 
designation. Future development on the project site would be subject to development standards 
for the C-P-S zoning district. If future development does include a gas station with convenience 
store as assumed and discussed herein and in the technical studies, this would require a 
conditional use permit. The City’s plot plan application process will ensure compliance with City 
zoning and design standards regulating building design, mass, bulk, height, etc. The City cannot 
approve development that is inconsistent with the General Plan or violates the Municipal Code. 
As the proposed project is consistent with the General Plan and zoning for the site, and the 
Planning Department will ensure that all future projects are also consistent, this impact is less 
than significant.  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 84 

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The City of Wildomar participates in 
the Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) and the Stephens’ 
Kangaroo Rate Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP). The plans establish areas of sensitivity 
considered criteria areas or cells. Projects outside of these areas can proceed consistent with the 
provisions of CEQA and are subject to payment of an MSHCP and SKRHCP mitigation fee. The 
HCPs establishes procedures for the determination of sensitivity. The proposed project is subject 
to the fees required for both the MSHCP and the SKRHCP but is outside of any criteria area or 
cell. The proposed project will not conflict with any habitat conservation plan or natural 
community conservation plan. Following the implementation of mitigation measures BIO-02 and 
BIO-03, this impact will be less than significant.  

MITIGATION MEASURES (MITIGATION MEASURES ARE FROM THE BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES SECTION) 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee 
area and will be subject to the SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for 
development and must be paid upon issuance of a Grading Permit. The payment of this fee will 
mitigate for any impacts to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is 
current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must 
be paid at the time of issuance.) 

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside MSHCP area and will be subject to the 
MSHCP development mitigation fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently 
$9,492 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and must be paid upon 
issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the 
MSHCP planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the 
fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.) 

Timing/Implementation: The fee must be paid prior to the issuance of a grading permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

 

 

 
  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 85 

11. Mineral Resources 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be a value to 
the region and the residents of the state? 

     

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally 
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan, or other land use plan? 

     

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project is located within an area designated at 
MRZ-3 by the Riverside County General Plan (2003). The MRZ-3 zone includes areas where the 
available geologic information indicates that while mineral deposits are likely to exist, the 
significance of the deposit is undetermined. A March 26, 2012, review of project soil types, based 
on information from the Natural Resources Conservation Service of the US Department 
Agriculture, did not reveal any significant potential for there to be mineral resources at the site. 
This impact will be less than significant.  

b) No Impact. There are no known locally important mineral resource recovery sites identified on 
the project site in the Wildomar General Plan or in a specific plan or other land use plan of value 
to the region or to the residents of the state. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no 
mitigation measures are required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

None. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 86 

12. Noise 

Issues: Would the project result in:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) The exposure of persons to, or the generation 
of, noise levels in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies? 

    

b) The exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 

    

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project? 

    

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project? 

    

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project area 
to excessive noise levels? 

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The City of Wildomar sets allowable 
noise levels according to General Plan land use designations. The proposed project is currently 
designated as Commercial Retail (CR), which allows for a maximum exterior noise level of 65 dBA 
from 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. and 55 dBA from 10 p.m. to 7 a.m. In addition, all land surrounding the 
proposed project site is also designated for Commercial Retail (CR), excepting an area to the 
southwest of the proposed project which is designated for Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
use. The maximum exterior noise level for land designated for MDR use is 55 dBA from 7 a.m. to 
10 p.m. and 45 dBA from 10 p.m. to 7 a.m. (Section 9.48.040 of Wildomar Municipal Code).  

Construction noise is exempt from noise limits provided construction activities do not occur 
between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. during the months of June through September and 
between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. during the months of October through May 
(Section 9.48.020(I) of the Wildomar Municipal Code). 

Existing Conditions 

The site is currently vacant and has a minimal contribution to local noise levels. Surrounding land 
uses include Bundy Canyon Road, a gas station, a fast-food restaurant, and I-15 to the north; the 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 87 

I-15 onramp to the east; a vacant lot designated for commercial uses to the south; and Orange 
Street, residential development, and vacant land designated for commercial use to the west. The 
nearest sensitive receptor would be a residential use located approximately 150 feet southwest 
of the project site (see Appendix H). 

The existing measured noise levels (Leq) at the project site range between 55 and 58 dBA Leq. (see 
Appendix H) The primary source of existing ambient noise levels is vehicles traveling along 
Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road. The proposed project would not result in an increase in 
ambient noise levels; however, construction activities and operation of future commercial 
development on the project site would increase noise levels in the area.  

Construction Noise 

During construction of future development on the project site, there would be a short-term 
increase in noise levels. Noise levels associated with typical construction equipment are 
summarized in Table 12-1. Based on these typical noise levels, construction activities associated 
with future development may result in noise levels that range from 71 to 99 dBA at 50 feet. 
However, noise levels would attenuate as noise source distance increases away from sensitive 
receptors. A common attenuation rate for noise levels is a 3 dBA reduction in noise level for 
every doubling of distance.  

Table 12-1 
Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels 

Type of Equipment 
Range of Maximum Sound Levels 

Measured (dBA at 50 feet) 

Rock Drills 83–99 

Jackhammers 75–85 

Pumps 74–84 

Dozers 77–90 

Scrapers 83–91 

Haul Trucks 83–94 

Cranes 79–86 

Portable Generators 71–87 

Rollers 75–82 

Tractors 77–82 

Front-End Loaders 77–90 

Hydraulic Backhoes 81–90 

Hydraulic Excavators 81–90 

Graders 79–89 

Air Compressors 76–89 

Trucks 81–87 

Source: FTA 2006 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 88 

Operational Noise 

Future commercial development on the project site would result in new stationary and mobile 
sources of noise. Stationary sources associated with commercial development commonly include 
the use of air conditioning/heating systems (HVAC) and loud speaker systems if there is a fast-
food restaurant drive-through. Increased vehicle traffic generated by future development may 
result in increased noise levels on the roadway network, which may expose nearby sensitive 
receptors to noise levels that exceed applicable standards during certain periods of the day. In 
addition, other sources of noise could be created by activities in parking lots, including vehicle 
doors closing, car alarms, talking, or even yelling. These events would not significantly change the 
equivalent noise level for that period (Leq), but could briefly increase noise levels.  

According to the General Plan, exposure to an average exterior noise levels of up to 70 dBA for a 
24-hour period (CNEL) at commercial land uses and up to 65 dBA for a 10-minute period (Leq) at 
residential uses are considered to be “normally acceptable” and would be considered a compatible 
land use. However, according to the City Noise Ordinance, noise levels generated by future 
development on the project site must not result in the average exterior noise levels at nearby 
sensitive receptors (i.e., habitable dwelling, hospital, school, library, or nursing home) exceeding 45 
dBA Leq between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. or 55 dBA Leq between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. and 10:00 p.m. In addition, a doubling of the energy of a noise source (e.g., traffic) would 
increase the noise levels by 3 dBA. A change in noise levels of 3 dBA is considered to be barely 
perceptible by a trained ear. A change in noise level of 5 dBA is considered to be substantial. 
Depending on the stationary noise sources and trips generated by future development, noise 
generated on the project site may exceed the maximum exterior noise levels at the nearest 
sensitive receptor, which is located approximately 150 feet southwest of the project, and/or result 
in a substantial increase (5 dBA or more) in the average ambient noise level.  

With implementation of mitigation measure NOI-01, temporary construction noise levels are not 
expected to exceed the established noise levels in excess of standards established in the General 
Plan or Noise Ordinance. Implementation of mitigation measure NOI-02 will ensure operational 
noise levels do not exceed established standards. The mitigation measures address the proposed 
project, and both existing ordinances and the plot plan review process will ensure that future 
development also meets the City’s noise standards (NOI-03). As mitigated and regulated by the City 
of Wildomar, this impact is considered less than significant. 

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Construction of future development 
on the project site would have the potential to result in varying degrees of temporary 
groundborne vibration, depending on the specific construction equipment used and the 
operations involved. Vibration generated by construction equipment spreads through the ground 
and diminishes in magnitude with increases in distance. Table 12-2 displays vibration levels for 
typical construction equipment. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 89 

Table 12-2 
Typical Construction-Equipment Vibration Levels 

Equipment PPV at 25 feet (in/sec)1 Approximate Lv at 25 feet2 

Large Bulldozer 0.089 87 

Caisson Drilling 0.089 87 

Trucks 0.076 86 

Jackhammer 0.035 79 

Small Bulldozer 0.003 58 
Source: FTA 2006 
1Where PPV is the peak particle velocity 
2 Where 1_, is the velocity level in decibels (VdB) referenced to 1 i.t inch/second and based on the root mean square (RMS) velocity 
amplitude. 

Future development on the project site may require the use of bulldozers and trucks. According to 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), vibration levels associated with the use of a large 
bulldozer are 0.089 inches per second (in/sec) peak particle velocity (PPV) and 87 vibration decibels 
[VdB referenced to 1 micro inch per second (gin/sec) and based on the RMS velocity amplitude] at 
25 feet, as shown in Table 12-2. Using the FTA-recommended procedure for applying a propagation 
adjustment to these reference levels, predicted worst-case vibration levels of approximately 0.03 
in/sec PPV and 81 dBA at approximately 50 feet from the project site’s boundary could occur from 
use of a large bulldozer. These vibration levels would not exceed the California Department of 
Transportation’s recommended standard of 0.2 in/sec PPV (Caltrans 2002) with respect to the 
prevention of structural damage for normal buildings. Vibration levels at greater distances would 
be substantially diminished. As the zoning provides for retail and service commercial development, 
no vibration impacts are anticipated from operations. 

The nearest residence is located approximately 150 feet southwest of the project site. 
Construction activities are exempt from the requirements of the noise ordinance due to the 
temporary nature of such noise. However, Section 9.48.020 stipulates that in order for this 
exemption to be maintained, construction activities must not occur between the hours of 6:00 
p.m. and 6:00 a.m. during the months of June through September and between the hours of 6:00 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m. during the months of October through May. Implementation of mitigation 
measure NOI-01 would ensure that construction activities associated with future development 
on the project site are limited to these hours. Upon completion of development, no excessive 
ground vibrations or noises are expected to occur. Following the implementation of mitigation 
measure NOI-01, any impacts would be less than significant.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project would not 
result in increases in ambient noise levels above existing levels without the project; however, 
future development on the project site may. The site is currently vacant and has a minimal 
contribution to local ambient noise levels. The construction of sidewalk and roadway 
improvements will generate temporary construction noise as discussed above. Vehicle noise on I-
15 and Bundy Canyon Road will remain the dominant existing noise source. 

Future commercial development on the project site will result in the use of air 
conditioning/heating systems (HVAC), delivery trucks, and general parking lot activities. 
Additional trips generated by future commercial uses may increase noise levels at sensitive receptors 
located along the roadways. The City will evaluate the noise potential based on the intended 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 90 

occupancy at the time of plot plan submittal and may require that the applicant provide a noise 
analysis demonstrating compliance with Chapter 9.48 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, which 
regulates noise. With implementation of mitigation measures NOI-01 and NOI-02, as well as the 
application of the City’s plot plan review requirements and Municipal Code, this impact is considered 
less than significant.  

d) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project would not 
result in a temporary increase in ambient noise levels above existing levels; however, 
construction of future commercial development on the project site would temporarily increase 
ambient noise levels. This is expected to occur as the site is graded and as the buildings and other 
site improvements are constructed. These noise impacts have the potential to be significant 
considering the distance to adjacent residences. However, implementation of mitigation measure 
NOI-01 would require that all construction activities (except in emergencies) be limited to the 
hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (June through September) and 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (October 
through May). All future construction activities shall be required to comply with the noise 
ordinance performance standards, and all construction equipment shall use properly operating 
mufflers. In addition, people working near the heavy equipment would be exposed to high noise 
levels for short periods of time; however, the City and private contractors are required to comply 
with Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requirements for employee 
protection during construction. With the implementation of mitigation measures (NOI-01), no 
significant noise impacts are expected to occur.  

e) No Impact. The project site is not located within the influence area for any airport. The closest 
public general aviation airfield is French Valley Airport, approximately 9 miles southeast of the 
project site. The project site is outside of the airport noise and safety influence or flight surface 
control areas. As a result, no impacts are anticipated, and no mitigation measures are required. 

f) Less Than Significant Impact. Skylark Field is located approximately 1.5 miles northwest of the 
project site in the City of Lake Elsinore. As shown on Figure 5 of the Elsinore Area Plan, the 
proposed project is outside the Airport Influence Policy area for Skylark Field. The proposed 
project is not within an Airport Master Plan area and does not require review by the Airport Land 
Use Commission. As the proposed project is distant from the airfield, not part of the influence 
policy area for the airport, aircraft will be higher in over flight of the property, and would not be 
subject the project site to excessive noise. This impact is considered less than significant. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

NOI-01 Future development on the project site shall implement the following construction noise 
mitigation measures to reduce potential construction noise impacts to a less than significant 
level: 

 All construction and general maintenance activities (except in an emergency) shall be 
limited to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (June through September) and 7:00 a.m. to 
6:00 p.m. (October through May). 

 Construction equipment staging and storage areas shall be located as far from the 
residential land uses as possible.  

 All construction equipment shall be properly maintained with operating mufflers and air 
intake silencers as effective as those installed by the original manufacturer. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 91 

 Residents living up to 1,000 feet from the property line shall be provided with a 
construction schedule and contact information to file a complaint. Timely notification shall 
accompany any major changes to this schedule. 

Timing/Implementation: During construction  

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

NOI-02 On-site noise shall not exceed 65 dBA during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. or 55 dBA 
during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. This can be achieved by implementing the following 
policies: 

 In order to reach the City’s daytime noise threshold of 65 dBA Leq (10 minutes), the 
developer/builder shall use screens, shields, or enclosures for all project HVAC units that 
provide at least 10 dBA of attenuation. 

 The use of HVAC systems shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. to protect 
residents from nighttime noise. The contact information for the City of Wildomar Code 
Compliance Officer shall be given to nearby residents to ensure compliance. 

 HVAC units shall be placed as far away as possible from neighbors’ windows and outdoor 
areas. 

 Ensure that air conditioners are well fastened to the façade/roof, as poor attachment can 
result in an increase in the noise level. Where vibration of the unit results in an increased 
noise level, isolation springs or feet can be used to reduce vibration.  

 Ensure that all equipment is regularly serviced to ensure all fixtures and fittings are safe, 
secure, and do not rattle or vibrate excessively.  

 Truck deliveries to future commercial uses shall be limited to between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays. No deliveries 
shall occur on Sundays or as otherwise specified by the City. 

 The owners or operators of commercial uses shall post a sign at each loading area that 
states the idling time for delivery truck engines shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits and during project 
operations 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 

NOI-03 The proposed project shall comply with the development Noise Regulations as expressed in 
Chapter 9.48 of the City of Wildomar Zoning Code that regulates both construction activities 
and operational activities on the project site.  

Timing/Implementation: During all phases of construction and project operations 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Building and Planning Departments 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 92 

13. Population and Housing 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Induce substantial population growth in 
an area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension 
of roads or other infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact. The proposed project would not result in any increase in population growth. Future 
commercial development on the site would be consistent with the current land use designation 
and is included in the anticipated buildout of the General Plan. The California Employment 
Development Department (2012) estimates that the unemployment rate in Riverside County is 
12.0 percent. The California Department of Finance (2012) estimates that the vacancy rate of 
homes in Wildomar is 7.53 percent, which means that of the 10,857 homes in the city, 
approximately 800 of them are vacant. While the number of employees is unknown at this time, 
it is reasonable to assume that the new jobs created by this small commercial development could 
be accommodated by existing residents in Wildomar. If new employees did move to the area, the 
existing number of vacant homes would accommodate their housing needs. As the project would 
not result in the construction of new homes, and the future commercial development is 
consistent with the General Plan, no significant impacts are anticipated.  

b–c) No Impact. Since the project site is vacant, no housing units or people would be affected, and the 
construction of replacement housing is not required. No significant impacts are anticipated. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

None. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 93 

14. Public Services 

Issues: Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of
which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the following public services: 

a) Fire protection?     

b) Police protection?     

c) Schools?     

d) Parks?     

e) Other public facilities?     

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The Riverside County Fire 
Department provides fire protection and safety services to the City of Wildomar. The nearest fire 
station is Wildomar Fire Station #61, located at 32637 Gruwell Street, approximately 1.5 mile 
from the project site. In addition to Fire Station #61, several other Riverside County fire stations 
in the surrounding area would be able to provide fire protection safety services to the project site 
if needed. The proposed project must comply with the requirements of the Riverside Fire 
Protection Department and the payment of standard development impact fees pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. The proposed project and future development 
associated with the proposed project are not expected to result in activities that create unusual 
fire protection needs. Following the implementation of mitigation measure PUB-01, any impacts 
would be less than significant.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Police protection services are 
provided by the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. The nearest sheriff's station is located at 
333 Limited Street in Lake Elsinore, approximately 4.4 miles from the project site. Traffic 
enforcement is provided for Riverside County in this area by the California Highway Patrol, with 
additional support from the local station of the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. Per 
mitigation measure PUB-02, the project will be required to pay the standard development impact 
fees pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  

 In addition to implementation of mitigation measure PUB-02, the proposed project would not 
result in the need for additional police department facilities given that the proposed project site 
is within an area that has been targeted for the proposed use by the City of Wildomar General 
Plan and the proposed project would not result in an increase in population. Following the 
implementation of mitigation measure PUB-02, any impact would be less than significant.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The project site is located within the 
Lake Elsinore Unified School District. The district has established school impact mitigation fees to 
address the facility impacts created by residential, commercial, and industrial development. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 94 

Mitigation measure PUB-03 will require the payment of these fees. Due to the Commercial Retail 
(CR) land use designation of the project site, future development associated with the proposed 
project would not generate any additional students and has no potential to directly impact the 
local school system because no new population would be generated on the project site. Future 
development will be required to pay the required fees established by the Lake Elsinore Unified 
School District to mitigate the potential effects to school services. Following the implementation 
of mitigation measure PUB-03, any impact would be less than significant.  

d) No Impact. The future development associated with the proposed project would be commercial 
in nature and would not be expected to directly affect community recreational facilities. In 
addition, the project would also not adversely affect any existing parks, recreation sites, or 
programs. As a result, no impacts are anticipated. 

e) Less Than Significant Impact. Future development associated with the proposed project may 
result in a slight increase in the demand for other governmental services such as economic 
development and other community support services commonly provided by the City of 
Wildomar. The demand for these additional public services would be incremental. This 
incremental impact will be mitigated through payment of the appropriate development impact 
fees and through the City budget for non-impact-fee programs and expenses. The City budget is 
based on a combination of property tax, sales tax, user fees, and state and federal government 
pass-through funding. Most of these revenue sources are from commercial sales, population, or 
are development related, which means that the more residents or business activity within the 
city, the greater the amount of funding which could be available. As a result, the proposed 
project and future development would not result in any significant impacts to these services, and 
no additional mitigation measures, beyond the standard requirements, are required.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

PUB-01 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for fire services pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 required by the Riverside 
County Fire Department are $1,063.00 for the approval of a commercial/industrial tentative 
parcel map and $321.82 per commercial/office unit approved by the department. (Note that 
the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the 
current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.) 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

PUB-02 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for police services pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 required by the Riverside 
County Sheriff’s Department are $157.07 per commercial/office unit approved by the 
department. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may 
change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 95 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

PUB-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development on the project site, the project 
applicant(s) shall pay the required development impact fees for the Lake Elsinore Unified 
School District pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the 
time of building permit issuance. The required development impact fees as of January 2013 
required by the Lake Elsinore Unified School District are $0.47 per square foot of 
commercial/office space approved by the district. (Note that the fee amount is current as of 
this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be paid at the 
time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 96 

15. Recreation 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or 
other recreational facilities, such 
that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would 
occur or be accelerated? 

    

b) Include recreational facilities or 
require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities, 
which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

    

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact. The proposed project and future commercial development associated with the 
proposed project would not be expected to result in increased use of existing neighborhood and 
regional parks or other recreational facilities. There are also no parks or recreational facilities in 
close proximity to the project site. As a result, no impacts are anticipated. 

b) No Impact. The proposed project and future commercial development associated with the 
proposed project would not be expected to require the construction or expansion of new 
recreational facilities. There are no parks or recreational facilities included in the project. As a 
result, no impacts are anticipated. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

None. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 97 

16. Transportation/Traffic 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, 
ordinance, or policy establishing measures 
of effectiveness for the performance of 
the circulation system, taking into account 
all modes of transportation including mass 
transit and non-motorized travel and 
relevant components of the circulation 
system, including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, 
and mass transit? 

     

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but not 
limited to, level of service standards and 
travel demand measures, or other 
standards established by the county 
congestion management agency for 
designated roads or highways? 

     

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, 
including either an increase in traffic levels 
or a change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks? 

     

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

     

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?      

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or 
programs regarding public transit, bicycle, 
or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 
decrease the performance or safety of 
such facilities? 

     

BACKGROUND 

A traffic analysis, Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA), was prepared by Kunzman 
and Associates (2012) for the proposed project and is included as Appendix I. In order to determine 
whether the proposed configuration of the parcels was suitable for future development, the traffic 
analysis assumed a development pattern consistent with the existing land use. The land use pattern 
assumed commercial development of Parcels 1 through 3. Table 16-1 shows the intersections included in 
the TIA. 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 98 

Table 16-1 
TIA Study Intersections 

Intersection 
Target Level of 

Service 

Existing Level of 
Service 

AM PM 

Orange Street (NS) at Bundy Canyon Road (EW) C1 C B 

Project Access (EW) C1 NA NA 

Project Access (NS) at Bundy Canyon Road (EW) C1 NA NA 

I-15 Freeway SB Ramps (NS) at Bundy Canyon Road (EW) C/D2 C B 

I-15 Freeway NB Ramps (NS) at Bundy Canyon Road (EW) C/D2 C B 

Source: Kunzman 2012 (Appendix I) NS=North-South, EW=East West 
1City of Wildomar, General Plan, Circulation Element 
2Caltrans 

Setting 

The proposed project site is currently undeveloped and does not generate any traffic. The existing 
roadway street frontage is not fully developed to City standards and lacks parking lanes, curb, gutter and 
sidewalk, streetlights, and fire hydrants. The proposed project will be constructing these improvements 
along its frontage with both Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road as part of the subdivision 
improvements with the first phase of the project.  

Existing roadways in the vicinity include: 

 Orange Street: This north–south two-lane undivided roadway is classified as a Secondary 
Highway (100-foot right-of-way) in the City of Wildomar General Plan Circulation Element. It 
currently carries approximately 5,100 to 6,400 vehicles per day in the study area. 

 Bundy Canyon Road: This east–west two-lane undivided to four-lane divided roadway is classified 
as an Urban Arterial (152-foot right-of-way) in the City of Wildomar General Plan Circulation 
Element. It currently carries approximately 10,200 to 20,900 vehicles per day in the study area. 

As shown in Table 16-1, all of the study area intersections currently operate at acceptable levels of 
service during the peak hours for existing traffic conditions. The proposed project will have full turning 
access to Orange Street, with driveway access to Bundy Canyon Road restricted only to right turns in and 
out of the project site. By only allowing right turns in and out of the Bundy Canyon Road driveway, this 
access will work efficiently and cause minimal disruption to Bundy Canyon Road. If this intersection was 
full access allowing left turns in and out, there would be a potential for substantial delays for the vehicles 
waiting to enter/exit the site. The existing through traffic on Bundy Canyon Road will be minimally 
affected by this intersection. 

The project site is not served by the Riverside Transit Agency. 

Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee 

The Riverside County Board of Supervisors and the city councils of the cities comprising the Western 
Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) enacted the Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) 
to fund the mitigation of cumulative regional transportation impacts resulting from future development. 
The mitigation fees collected by the City of Wildomar through the TUMF program are transmitted to 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 99 

WRCOG upon request to complete transportation system capital improvements necessary to meet the 
increased travel demand and to sustain current traffic levels of service. The fee calculations are based on 
the proportional allocation of the costs of proposed transportation improvements based on the 
cumulative transportation system impacts of different types of new development. The proposed project 
will pay mitigation fees to the City pursuant to the TUMF program. 

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Intersection and roadway 
functioning is often described by its level of service (LOS). LOS A constitutes light traffic 
conditions with no interruptions in service or delays at intersections, while LOS F represents 
congested and unstable conditions with slow moving traffic accompanied by significant delays at 
many intersections. The City General Plan establishes the following citywide goals for levels of 
service: LOS C along all City-maintained roads and conventional state highways. As an exception, 
LOS D may be allowed in Community Development areas, only at intersections of any 
combination of Secondary Highways, Major Highways, Arterials, Urban Arterials, Expressways, 
conventional state highways, or freeway ramp intersections. 

Future development associated with the proposed project would result in additional vehicle trips 
on the citywide road network. The number of trips generated would be dependent upon the 
types of commercial uses proposed. The TIA (Appendix I) makes trip generation assumptions 
based on the Institute of Transportation Engineers, Trip Generation, 8th Edition (2008). Trip 
generation rates were determined for daily traffic, morning peak-hour inbound and outbound 
traffic, and evening peak-hour inbound and outbound traffic for the proposed land uses. The 
traffic volumes were determined by multiplying the traffic generation rates by the land use 
quantities. The proposed development is projected to generate a total of approximately 1,672 
daily vehicle trips on a weekday, 128 of which will occur during the morning peak hour and 125 of 
which will occur during the evening peak hour. 

Development of site improvements, along with construction of retail uses, will eventually lead to 
more traffic in the area. The TIA (Appendix I) evaluated the proposed project along with growth 
throughout the region and determined that the study area intersections are projected to operate 
at acceptable levels of service during the peak hours. In addition, the TIA (Appendix I) 
recommended that improvements be made to Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street to 
accommodate the anticipated increase in daily vehicle trips that will result from the completed, 
built-out proposed project. These improvements are included in mitigation measures TRA-01 and 
TRA-02. With implementation of mitigation measures TRA-01 and TRA-02, any impacts would be 
less than significant.   

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Bundy Canyon Road is not 
designated as part of the Riverside County Congestion Management Program (CMP). Only state 
highways are designated as part of the CMP. (Riverside County, 2011) Every county in California 
is required to develop a congestion management program that looks at the links between land 
use, transportation, and air quality. In its role as Riverside County’s Congestion Management 
Agency, the Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) prepares and periodically 
updates the county’s CMP to meet federal Congestion Management System guidelines as well as 
state CMP legislation. The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is required 
under federal planning regulations to determine that CMPs within its region are consistent with 
the Regional Transportation Plan. The RCTC’s current CMP was adopted in December 2011. In 
Riverside County, the Enhanced Traffic Monitoring System within the CMP consists of the 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 100 

installation of traffic counters at call box and Caltrans traffic monitoring sites. This enables the 
RCTC to have immediate access to traffic count data to effectively monitor the highway system 
for deficiencies. The count information can also be used for project evaluations and planning 
activities. The RCTC does not require traffic impact assessments for development proposals. 
However, local agencies are required to maintain minimum level of service (LOS) thresholds 
included in their respective general plans. The City of Wildomar General Plan has adopted LOS C 
along all City-maintained roads and conventional state highways. 

However, it is possible that some of the vehicle trips generated by future commercial 
development on the project site may connect to the CMP network at Interstate 15 (I-15). Future 
development associated with the proposed project could add an additional increment of traffic 
to the designated CMP network. The increment of potential impact associated with this project 
would be mitigated through the implementation of mitigation measure TRA-03 that will require 
payment of existing roadway network fees (e.g., development impact fees and the 
Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee). Income from the fees is used by the RCTC to fund 
improvements necessary to ensure that roadways within the CMP remain at acceptable levels of 
service. For example, the TUMF has been used to improve the Clinton Keith interchange in the 
City, as well as expand the number of lanes on I-215 east of the City. Following implementation 
of mitigation measure TRA-03, the proposed project and associated future development would 
pay its pro-rata share of future roadway improvement costs for roads subject to the CMP. With 
implementation of mitigation measure TRA-03, this impact would be less than significant.  

c) No Impact. The proposed project and associated future commercial development would not 
result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in 
location that results in substantial safety risks. The maximum allowable height of the project at 
50 feet is significantly less than the height of the terrain in the vicinity of the project site. Since 
the location and height of the project would not affect air traffic patterns or aircraft operations 
from any private or public airport, no impacts are foreseen.  

d) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project includes dedication of right-to-way to the 
City to accommodate anticipated vehicle movement as a result of future commercial 
development on the project site. This dedication of right-of-way would expand the southeast 
corner of the Orange Street/Bundy Canyon Road intersection. The City has site design criteria 
that govern the placement of driveways to allow for adequate sight distance and turning 
movements. These provisions would become effective at the time of plot plan consideration and 
approval. As the proposed project will widen existing roadways and install improvements along 
its frontage, and existing City ordinances will review the placement of driveways for sight 
distance and turning movements, this impact is considered less than significant.  

e) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Future development associated with 
the proposed project would likely include access from Bundy Canyon Road in the vicinity of the 
I-15 southbound onramp. Mitigation measures TRA-01 and TRA-02 and the dedication of the 
right-of-way along Bundy Canyon Road will allow for adequate area-wide and on-site emergency 
access and the implementation of local emergency response plans. Following the implementation 
of mitigation measures TRA-01 and TRA-02, any impacts would be less than significant.   

f) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project will construct sidewalk improvements along 
Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road for the frontage of the property consistent with City 
requirements. All roadway and driveway improvements within the City’s right-of-way will be 
designed to comply with design criteria contained in Chapter 16.24 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, including the construction of sidewalks, curbs, and gutters along the property frontage. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 101 

The proposed project site is not located on a current Riverside Transit Authority transit line, bike 
lane, or pedestrian path and does not impact any trail plan. Impacts are less than significant.   

MITIGATION MEASURES 

TRA-01 Construct Orange Street from Bundy Canyon Road along the project frontage to the ultimate 
half-section width as a Secondary Highway Standard (100-foot right-of-way), including 
landscaping and parkway improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

TRA-02 Construct Bundy Canyon Road from Orange Street to the I-15 freeway southbound onramp at 
its ultimate half-section width as a Urban Arterial Standard, including landscaping and parkway 
improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

TRA-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall pay 
the appropriate Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee to the Western Riverside County 
Council of Governments. The required Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee as of January, 
2013 required by the WRCOG is $6.66 per square foot of retail space. (Note that the fee 
amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the current 
fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 102 

17. Utilities and Service Systems 

Issues: Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of 
the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? 

    

b) Require or result in the construction of new 
water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction 
of which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

    

c) Require or result in the construction of new 
stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental effects? 

    

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve 
the project from existing entitlements and 
resources or are new or expanded entitlements 
needed? 

    

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider, which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to 
serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

    

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted 
capacity to accommodate the project’s solid 
waste disposal needs? 

    

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes 
and regulations related to solid waste?     

The Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) will provide sewer services for the proposed 
project. The EVMWD has an adopted Water Distribution Master Plan, 2008, and Wastewater Master 
Plan, 2008, that are designed to meet the service needs of future growth. The EVMWD considered the 
impacts of the master water and sewer plans in the Draft Program Environmental Impact Report for the 
Water Distribution Master Plan and Wastewater Master Plan (SCH 2008111100). The EIR was circulated 
for public review and certified by the EVMWD in July 2010. The EVMWD also maintains separate 
construction standards and requirements for connection to their facilities.  

Estimated Water and Wastewater Demand 

The EVMWD does not provide water or wastewater generation rates for nonresidential development. 
The determination of water and wastewater demand is based on plumbing “fixtures” provided in the 
building plans during the building permit process. As the proposed project has no building plans, 
estimates of water and wastewater demand are based on similar development in the area. The City of 
Corona to the north of Wildomar uses an estimate of 1,050 gallons per day per acre for commercial uses 
in their Sewer Master Plan. The City of Murrieta to the south of Wildomar uses 0.402 gallons per day of 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 103 

water demand per square foot of commercial space in their General Plan Update Water Supply 
Assessment. Assuming a floor area ratio of between 0.25 and 0.50 for the proposed project, the 9.50 
acres of developable land remaining after roadway improvements on the Bundy Canyon Road and 
Orange Street site could result in a water demand of between 4,200 and 8,300 gallons of water per day. 
Using the 1,050 gallons per day per acre for wastewater demand, the 9.50 acres would have a need of 
9,975 gallons per day. As the wastewater demand is seldom more than the water usage for commercial 
property, and both water and wastewater demand is based on area estimates outside of EVMWD, 10,000 
gallons per day for both water demand and wastewater generation will be used as a conservative figure 
in this analysis. 

To determine future water demands within its service area, the EVMWD based the predictions contained 
within the 2011 UWMP on the existing year (2010) demands calculated as a product of the 2010 
population and the 10-year baseline per capita water use. Starting from 2020, future demands were 
calculated as the product of the population and the target water use was established for the EVMWD 
using the summation of three performance standards: indoor residential use, outdoor residential use, 
and commercial, industrial use, and institutional (CII) use. Water demand for 2015 was calculated as 
halfway between the usage in 2010 and 2020. Water use projections for years 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 
and 2035 are presented in Table 17-1.  

Table 17-1 
EVMWD Demand Assumptions and Predictions 

Projections 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Population of service area 136,133 149,852 162,626 174,579 185,102 

Employment 24,699 27,458 32,272 37,086 41,900 

Housing 46,388 51,297 55,774 59,921 63,888 

EVMWD Water Deliveries  (acre-feet per year) 37,292 40,338 43,777 46,995 49,827 

Source: EVWMD 2011 

The projections provided in Table 17-1 include the demand projections of the area served by the Farm 
Mutual Water Company. The 2011 EVWMD Urban Water Management Plan states that it is assumed that 
demand within the District will increase proportionally to the water demand increase within the EVMWD 
service area. 

Sewer service will be provided through connection to an existing 12-inch sewer line in Bundy Canyon 
Road. The existing sewer line connects to the Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant located on 14980 
Strickland Avenue, in the City of Lake Elsinore. Although only Parcels 1 and 2 of the proposed project 
front onto Bundy Canyon Road, sewer connection for other parcels on the project site will be through 
mutual access and utility easements under the parking and driveway areas shown on the Parcel Map (see 
Figure 3a). According to the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Order No. R8-2005-0003, 
the treatment plant has a capacity of 8 million gallons per day (mgd) with an average flow of 
approximately 4.66 mgd resulting in a treatment capacity of approximately 3.34 mgd.  

Water services will also be provided by the EVMWD, which obtains potable water supplies from imported 
water from the Metropolitan Water District, local surface water from Canyon Lake, and local 
groundwater from the Elsinore Basin. The EVMWD has access to groundwater from the Elsinore Basin, 
Coldwater Basin, San Bernardino Bunker Hill Basin, Rialto-Colton Basin, and Riverside-North Basin. Almost 
all of the groundwater production for potable use occurs in the Elsinore Basin. Imported water supply is 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 104 

purchased from Metropolitan via the Eastern Municipal Water District and Western Municipal Water 
District. The EVMWD plans to expand its recycled water system to provide recycled water for irrigation 
users and to maintain water levels in Lake Elsinore during normal and dry years (EVMWD UWMP 2011). 
Per Metropolitan’s Regional Water Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP), Metropolitan indicates 
that its existing supplies are adequate to meet the projected demands in all hydrologic conditions 
through 2035 (Metropolitan Water District 2010). Implementation of planned supplies by Metropolitan 
increases reliability and maintains an adequate reserve. Based on Metropolitan’s 2010 RUWMP, it is 
assumed that imported water is fully reliable during average, dry, and wet years. The EVMWD Urban 
Water Management Plan projects a 2035 water demand of 65,258 acre-feet per year, with a projected 
supply of 70,581 acre-feet per year. With an estimated water demand of 10,000 gallons per day, the 
proposed project represents 11.2 acre-feet per year. As the project is consistent with the General Plan 
land use designation and the zoning for the site, the water demand is included in the 2011 Urban Water 
Management Plan. The project will connect to an existing 12-inch water line in Orange Street. 
Development of the project was considered in the Urban Water Master Plan as part of the City of 
Wildomar General Plan.  

Electric, gas, cable, and telephone services would be extended onto the site from existing lines in Orange 
Street (see Figure 3a). Electricity would be provided by Southern California Edison. The site is located 
within the boundaries of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District. Local government services are 
provided by the City of Wildomar. Fire and security services are provided by the City of Wildomar through 
contracts with the Riverside County Fire Department and the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. 

DISCUSSION 

a) Less Than Significant Impact. The San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board regulates 
wastewater discharges within the portion of the City of Wildomar encompassing the project site.5 
Future development on the project site would receive wastewater services from the Elsinore 
Valley Municipal Water District. As the EVMWD has an estimated available treatment capacity of 
3.34 mgd, and the proposed project is estimated to use 10,000 gallons of wastewater per day, 
future development will not require or will not result in the construction of new wastewater 
treatment facilities, including septic systems, or expansion of existing facilities, the construction 
of which would cause significant environmental effects. As a result, no significant impacts are 
anticipated and no additional mitigation measures are required. Urban runoff-related water 
quality impacts associated with construction and operation of future commercial development 
on the project site are discussed in Subsection 9, Hydrology and Water Quality, of this IS/MND.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The EVMWD sewer line is sized to 
accommodate development of the proposed project and based on the Master Sewer Plan. While 
no buildings are proposed with this application, future development would result in a need for 
both water and wastewater services. The 10,000 gallons per day estimate is considered 

                                                            
5 The city lies within two different watersheds and therefore is subject to the jurisdiction of two different regional 
boards: Santa Ana (Lake Elsinore) and San Diego (Santa Margarita River). This would require the City to administer 
two separate MS4 permits, which would add considerably to the cost and burden of development. The City 
requested to be governed by one MS4 permit to reduce costs. The City and the Regional Boards agreed that the City 
would be governed by the MS4 permit issued by the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board for the Santa 
Margarita River watershed. So, no matter where a project is located within the city, it must comply with the MS4 
permit issued by the San Diego Regional Board for the Santa Margarita River watershed. 

 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 105 

conservative, as most retail commercial uses generate very little in the way of wastewater. Water 
demand varies depending on the land use, with gas stations requiring very little and restaurants 
requiring more because of dishwashers. The 10,000 gallons per day estimate of wastewater 
demand is approximately 0.01 mgd, which is well below the 3.34 mgd remaining capacity in the 
Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility. The existing 12-inch sewer line is sized to accommodate 
development as shown in the General Plan, as well as development farther north on Bundy 
Canyon Road. Connection to the existing sewer line will require trenching in Bundy Canyon Road, 
and one or more of the future uses may require filtration devices to remove grease from the 
sewer; however, these issues would be determined at the time of building permit consideration 
in consultation with the EVMWD and the Riverside County Environmental Health, and will be the 
responsibility of the building owner/operator to install and operate (see mitigation measure 
UTL-01). No other wastewater improvements will be necessary to serve the proposed project.  
The 10,000 gallons per day water demand represents approximately 11.2 acre-feet per year, 
which is approximately 0.02 percent of the demand anticipated in 2035 by the EVMWD Urban 
Water Management Plan. Similar to wastewater, water demand is based on plumbing fixture 
units and is calculated at the time of building permit issuance. The existing water lines in Orange 
Street are 12 inches in diameter and designed for commercial development. There is also a 
parallel 8-inch water line in Orange Street west of the 12-inch line. City improvement standards 
require installation of fire hydrants, and the California Building Code will require fire sprinklers. A 
12-inch water line provides sufficient water supply for fire sprinklers, hydrants, and potable use 
on the site. The project will be required to install backflow prevention devices as well as water 
meters within the property. Other than trenching in Orange Street to connect to the existing 
water line, no other off-site improvements are necessary. There is adequate capacity for both 
wastewater collection and treatment as well as water demand for the site. Construction to 
connect to the existing water and sewer line(s) will involve trenching in city streets that will 
require traffic plans and dust control which is required as part of the encroachment permit 
process. The EVMWD also has construction standards that must be followed before connection 
to their facilities. Impacts to water and wastewater from the proposed project are considered 
incremental and less than significant with implementation of mitigation measure UTL-01.  

c) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project includes an on-site storm drainage basin with 
sand infiltration designed to meet the demand of full development of the project site. (see 
Appendix F) The basin will be connected to an existing, but only partially constructed, MS4 line 
that will eventually connect to Lake Elsinore, the receiving water body. On-site runoff would be 
incorporated into the existing drainage system along Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street after 
treatment by the best management practices identified in the required water quality 
management plan (and discussed in Subsection 9, Hydrology and Water Quality, of this IS/MND). 
Because the proposed basin is designed to accommodate full construction on the project site and 
the project will connect to the MS4 facility, no new or expansion of existing stormwater drainage 
facilities would be necessary. No significant impacts associated with new or expanded 
stormwater drainage facilities are anticipated. 

d) Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is within the service boundary for the EVMWD, and 
future development on the project site would be connecting to the EVMWD’s water service 
infrastructure. The projected 10,000 gallons per day equals approximately 11.2 acre feet per 
year. A calculated 11.2 acre feet per year represents approximately 0.02 percent of the 
anticipated water demand throughout the EVWMD in 2035. (See Table 17-1) The development of 
the proposed project as commercial use was anticipated in the UWMP for the District and is 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 106 

reflected in the projected 2035 water delivery estimates. As the demand was projected, and 
there is adequate water in the District, this impact is considered less than significant.  

e) Less Than Significant Impact. As described above, future commercial development on the project 
site would connect to water and sewer service infrastructure. The projected 10,000 gallons of 
water per day represents 0.01 mgd and is less than the 3.34 mgd remaining treatment capacity. 
Impacts on the sewer treatment plant from the proposed project are considered less than 
significant. 

f) Less Than Significant Impact. The main disposal site in the vicinity of the project site is the El 
Sobrante Landfill in Corona. The El Sobrante Landfill (Cal Recycle Solid Waste Information System 
Number 33-AA-0217) is projected to reach full capacity of 184,930,000 tons in 2045. (Cal Recycle) 
The landfill covers approximately 1,322 acres and receives approximately 16,054 tons per day. 
Commercial development is required by AB 32 to have recycling which will reduce the amount of 
solid waste going to the landfill. In a 2006 study, commission by the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board (CIWMB) conducted under the California Environmental Protection Agency 
(CEPA) titled, Targeted Statewide Waste Characterization Study: Waste Disposal and Diversion 
Findings for Selected Industry Groups, solid waste generation was measured for select land uses 
including retail and restaurant uses. The study estimates solid waste generation primarily by 
employee, but also provides pounds per 1,000 square feet for shopping malls and larger office 
buildings. Since the number of employees cannot be known at this time, the shopping mall rate 
of 1,000 pounds per square foot per year is assumed. With this generation rate, and an assumed 
total square foot of building area of between 103,455 and 206,910 square feet for buildout of the 
entire project site, the project could generate between 142 and 283 tons of solid waste per day 
at full buildout. These rates do not take into account mandatory recycling or other diversion that 
might occur as part of the businesses and is likely an overestimate of solid waste generation. 
(Floor area ratio of 0.25 and 0.50 for the 9.5 acres of the property remaining after roadway 
improvements.) Using this generation rate, the proposed project could result in an increase 
between 0.88 and 1.77 percent to the existing solid waste disposal at the El Sobrante Landfill. 
This impact is considered less than significant. 

g) Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. Future commercial development on 
the project site would be subject to the Solid Waste Reuse and Recycling Access Act of 1991. The 
act requires that adequate areas be provided for collecting and loading recyclable materials such 
as paper products, glass, and other recyclables. Mitigation measures are proposed by the 
Riverside County Waste Management Division to ensure compliance with the act. Through the 
implementation of mitigation measure UTL-02, solid waste impacts resulting from the future 
commercial development on the project site would result in a less than significant impact.  

MITIGATION MEASURES 

ULT-01  The project applicant(s) for future development on the project site shall obtain approval from 
the Riverside County Department of Environmental Health before receiving water and 
wastewater service from the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District.  

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department; Riverside County 
Department of Environmental Health 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 107 

UTL-02 Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development on the project site, the 
project applicant(s) shall submit a recycling collection and loading area plan to the Riverside 
County Waste Management Division for approval. 

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department; Riverside County Waste 
Management Division 

 

  



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 108 

VI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE  

Issues: Does the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant Impact 
With Mitigation 

Incorporated  

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact

a) Have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the habitat 
of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or 
wildlife population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant 
or animal community, reduce the number or 
restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant 
or animal or eliminate important examples of 
the major periods of California history or 
prehistory? 

    

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively 
considerable" means that the incremental 
effects of a project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current projects, 
and the effects of probable future projects.) 

    

c) Have environmental effects, which will cause 
substantial adverse effects on human beings, 
either directly or indirectly? 

    

DISCUSSION 

The following are Mandatory Findings of Significance in accordance with Section 15065 of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  

a) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Based on evaluations and discussions 
contained in this IS/MND, the proposed project and associated future commercial development 
on the project site have a very limited potential to incrementally degrade the quality of the 
environment because the site was previously disturbed according to the Riverside County Land 
Information System (2012), is not in an environmentally sensitive location, and is consistent with 
the City of Wildomar General Plan. As a result, the proposed project would not significantly affect 
the environment with implementation of the mitigation measures contained in this IS/MND.  

b) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated  

Aesthetics 

Implementation of the proposed project and associated future commercial development on the 
project site would not contribute to cumulative visual resource or aesthetic impacts. The City’s 
plot plan application process will ensure future commercial development is in compliance with 
City zoning and design standards regulating building design, mass, bulk, height, color, etc. Thus, 
less than cumulatively considerable impacts to aesthetic resources are anticipated under 
cumulative conditions. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 109 

Agricultural Resources 

Implementation of the proposed project and associated future commercial development on the 
project site would not contribute to cumulative impacts to agricultural resources or forestland 
impacts. Thus, less than cumulatively considerable impacts to agricultural resources and 
forestland resources are anticipated under cumulative conditions. 

Air Quality 

The SCAQMD’s approach for assessing cumulative impacts is based on the AQMP forecasts of 
attainment of ambient air quality standards in accordance with the requirements of the federal 
and State Clean Air Acts. As discussed earlier, the proposed project would be consistent with the 
AQMP, which is intended to bring the Basin into attainment for all criteria pollutants.  In addition, 
the construction and operations emissions calculated for the proposed project (see Table 3-1, 3-2 
and Table 3-5) are less than the applicable SCAQMD daily significance thresholds that are 
designed to assist the region in attaining the applicable State and national ambient air quality 
standards. As such, cumulative impacts would be less than significant. 

Biological Resources 

The potential for impacts to raptors and migratory birds is addressed through mitigation. The 
cumulative biological impacts associated with the project have been mitigated through payment 
of mitigation fees required by the MSHCP and the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat Conservation 
Plan.  

Cultural Resources 

Future commercial development on the project site could contribute to an increase in cultural 
resource impacts. However, mitigation measures identified in Subsection 5, Cultural Resources, 
of this IS/MND would reduce the potential impacts associated with future development on the 
project site. Thus, the project would have a less than cumulatively considerable impact.  

Geology and Soils 

Project-related impacts on geology and soils associated with future commercial development on 
the project site would be site-specific, and development on the site would not contribute to 
seismic hazards or water quality impacts associated with soil erosion. Therefore, the proposed 
project is anticipated to have no impact on cumulative geophysical conditions in the region. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

The greenhouse gas analysis provided in Subsection 7, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, evaluated the 
proposed project’s cumulative contribution to global climate change and determined that the 
project would not create a cumulatively considerable environmental impact resulting from 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

The proposed project might lead to the construction of a gas station on Parcel 1 of the site. Gas 
stations are regulated by the City through zoning, which is either permitted in a C-P-S district 
without concurrent sales of alcohol or requires a conditional use permit if alcohol will be sold. 
The operation of the gas station is also regulated by the California Department of Toxic 
Substances Control, which would monitor the underground storage tank(s) and possible spills on 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 110 

the site. The Riverside County Department of Environmental Health also regulates underground 
storage tanks and requires preparation of a hazard materials plan for any business using such 
materials. Finally, the South Coast Air Quality Management District regulates fumes and vapor 
from operation of gas pumps and machinery. While none of the other uses on the site would be 
anticipated to use, store, or sell hazardous materials similar to those of a gasoline station, the 
Department of Environmental Health regulates hazardous materials through its Business 
Emergency Plan/Handler Program. The State of California requires an owner or operator of a 
facility to complete and submit a Hazardous Materials Business Plan if the facility handles a 
hazardous material or mixture containing a hazardous material that has a quantity at any one 
time during the reporting year equal to or greater than: 

• 55 gallons, 500 pounds, or 200 cubic feet at standard temperature and pressure for a 
compressed gas 

•  The applicable federal threshold planning quantity (TPQ) for an extremely hazardous 
substance (EHS) listed in Appendix A, Part 355, Title 40, of the Code of Federal Regulations 

•  Amounts of radioactive materials requiring an emergency plan pursuant to Parts 30, 40, or 70 
of Chapter 1 of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations  

The proposed project and associated future commercial development on the project site are not 
expected to utilize or contribute to hazards associated with the accidental release of hazardous 
materials. However, even if hazardous materials are used on the site, compliance with federal, 
state, and Riverside County regulations will ensure that cumulative hazard conditions are less 
than cumulatively considerable. 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

Future commercial development on the project site has the potential to result in cumulative 
hydrology and water quality impacts; however, the mitigation measures identified in Subsection 
9, Hydrology and Water Quality, would reduce the project’s potential cumulative impacts on 
hydrology and water quality to less than cumulatively considerable. Further, the on-site 
stormwater detention system has been oversized because the existing 60-inch stormwater drain 
that traverses the project site is not complete. Once the line is complete, the storm drainage 
system will have both on-site detention and a method to discharge to the receiving waters. As 
proposed, the project has both short-term stormwater detention and a long-term connection to 
planned regional drainage. 

Land Use and Planning 

The proposed project and associated future commercial development on the project site are 
consistent with the existing land use designation of the General Plan and the zoning district. The 
proposed division of the site is consistent with other commercial development in the project 
area. Future development of Parcels 3 through 7 will require completion of a plot planning 
process that also requires additional environmental review. As the proposed project area is 
surrounded by urban development, and the project is consistent with both the zoning and 
General Plan designations for the site, the project would result in no cumulative impacts to land 
uses. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 111 

Mineral Resources 

The proposed project and associated future commercial development on the project site would 
not result in any site-specific significant impacts to mineral resources. Less than cumulatively 
considerable impacts under cumulative conditions are anticipated. 

Noise 

Future commercial development on the project site would result in temporary and permanent 
changes in the ambient noise levels in the vicinity; however, the mitigation measures in identified 
in Subsection 12, Noise, of this IS/MND would mitigate cumulative noise impacts to less than 
cumulatively considerable. 

Population and Housing 

The proposed project and associated future commercial development on the project site would 
not result in any impacts to population and housing. Less than cumulatively considerable impacts 
under cumulative conditions are anticipated. 

Public Services 

The proposed project is not expected to contribute to cumulative public service impacts. Future 
commercial development may result in impacts to fire and police protection. However, these 
activities would be offset through the implementation of development impact fees. Future 
development would not result in a cumulative increase in the severity of public service impacts. 
Thus, less than cumulatively considerable public services impacts are anticipated. 

Recreation 

The project and associated future commercial development would not contribute to park and 
recreation impacts. Therefore, the proposed project would not contribute to cumulative parks 
and recreation impacts, and less than cumulatively considerable impacts are anticipated. 

Transportation/Traffic 

Future commercial development on the project site would contribute vehicle trips to the 
circulation network under cumulative conditions. The project applicant(s) would be responsible 
to implement and pay their fair-share contribution toward necessary improvements. Through the 
payment of fair-share contributions, future development’s impacts to cumulative traffic 
conditions would be reduced to less than cumulatively considerable. Payment of the fair share 
contribution is made through payment of TUMF as required by mitigation measure TRA-03.  

Utilities and Service Systems 

Construction activities related to the future development on the project may result in temporary 
impacts to utilities and service systems, including solid waste. Mitigation measures proposed in 
Subsection 17, Utilities and Service Systems, of this IS/MND would reduce the cumulative impacts 
to less than cumulatively considerable. 

c)  Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated. The proposed project and associated 
future commercial development do not have the potential to significantly adversely affect 
humans, either directly or indirectly. While a number of the future development impacts were 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 112 

identified as having a potential to significantly impact humans, with the identified mitigation 
measures and standard requirements, these impacts are expected to be less than significant. 
With implementation of the identified measures, the proposed project and associated future 
development are not expected to cause significant adverse impacts to humans. All significant 
impacts are avoidable, and the City of Wildomar will ensure that measures imposed to protect 
human beings are implemented. 

 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 113 

REFERENCES 

Caltrans (California Department of Transportation). 2002. Transportation Related Earthborne Vibrations. 
Sacramento. 

———. 2011. Traffic and Vehicle Data Systems Unit – 2010 All Traffic Volumes on California State 
Highway System. http://traffic-counts.dot.ca.gov/2010all/index.html. 

———. 2012. California Scenic Highway Mapping System. Accessed March 21, 2012. 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/scenic_highways/index.htm. 

Cal Recycle. California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery: Facility/Site Summary Details: 
El Sobrante Landfill (33-AA-0217)  http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/SWFacilities/Directory/33-AA-
0217/Detail/ . Accessed March 24, 2013 

CARB (California Air Resources Board). 2005. Land Use and Air Quality Handbook: A Community Health 
Perspective. 

———. 2010. Staff Report: Proposed Amendments to the Regulation for IN-Use Off Road Diesel-Fueled 
Fleets and the OFFROAD Large-Spark Ignition Fleet Requirements. October 2010. 

City of Corona. 2005. Sewer Master Plan. 

City of Wildomar. 2003. Wildomar General Plan. 

CIWMB (California Integrated Waste Management Board). 2006. Targeted Statewide Waste 
Characterization Study: Waste Disposal and Diversion Findings for Selected Industry Groups. 

County of Riverside. 2003. County of Riverside General Plan.  

———. 2004. Countywide Design Standards and Guidelines.  

———. 2006. Riverside County Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook. 

———. 2012. RCTLMA GIS. Riverside County Land Information System v.120118 Accessed March 21, 
2012. http://www3.tlma.co.riverside.ca.us/pa/rclis/index.html. 

DOF (California Department of Finance). 2012. Demographic Research Unit, E-5 Report, January 1. 

EDD (California Employment Development Department). 2012. News Release 12-65, November 16. 

EVMWD (Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District). 2010. Draft Environmental Impact Report for the 
Water Distribution Master Plan and Wastewater Master Plan. 

———. 2011. Urban Water Management Plan. 

———.  2008. Wastewater Master Plan. 

———. 2008. Water Distribution Master Plan. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 114 

FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency). 2008. Flood Map Numbers 06065C2682G and 
06065C2044G.  

FTA (Federal Transit Administration). 2006. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. Washington, 
DC. 

GBA (Gordon Bricken & Associates). 2012. Acoustical Analysis Bundy Canyon Site, City of Wildomar.  

Kunzman (Kunzman and Associates). 2012. Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 Traffic Impact Analysis. 
Orange, CA. 

LDDC (Land Development Design Company, LLC). 2012. Project Specific Water Quality Management Plan 
(Preliminary) for Orange Bundy Partners, LTD – Bundy Canyon Road & Orange Street – Wildomar, 
CA. San Clemente, CA. 

LSA (LSA Associates, Inc.). 2007. Riparian/Riverine and Vernal Pool Habitat Suitability Assessment for 
MSHCP Compliance for a 10-Acre Site in the unincorporated Wildomar Area of Riverside County, 
California. Riverside, CA. 

———. 2012. Biological Resources Assessment and MSHCP Consistency Analysis for the Orange 
Street/Bundy Canyon Road Development Project in the City of Wildomar, Riverside County. 
Riverside, CA. 

Metropolitan 2010. The Regional Water Management Plan. The Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California. 

RCFC & WCD (Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District). 1978. Hydrology Manual.  

———. 2006. Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook. 

Riverside County (Riverside County, 2011). 2011 Riverside County Congestion Management Program.  

SCAQMD (South Coast Air Quality Management District). 1993. CEQA Air Quality Handbook. 

———. 2006. Localized Significance Thresholds.  

———. 2008. Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodolgy 

———. 2011a. Website: Air Quality Management Plan. July 2011.  

———. 2011b. California Emissions Estimator Model.  

———. 2011c. SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds. Revised March 2011.  

SMAQMD (Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District). 2011. Recommended Protocol for 
Evaluating the Location of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major Roadways. 

Soil Conservation Service. 1971. Soil Survey of Western Riverside Area, California. Washington, DC: USDA. 



 

Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (PA No.10-0301)     Page 115 

Terra Geosciences. 2007. Geologic/Fault Investigation Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 – Wildomar, 
Riverside County, California. San Clemente, CA. 

USDA-NRCS (US Department of Agriculture, National Resource Conservation Service). 2012. Web Soil 
Survey. Accessed March 26, 2012. http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/. 



 



EXHIBIT 2 
 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 19 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 

This document is the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Bundy Canyon Road and Orange 
Street Subdivision (Planning Application No. 10-0301) project. This MMRP has been prepared pursuant to Section 
21081.6 of the California Public Resources Code, which requires public agencies to “adopt a reporting and monitoring 
program for the changes made to the project or conditions of project approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid 
significant effects on the environment.” An MMRP is required for the proposed project because the EIR has identified 
significant adverse impacts, and measures have been identified to mitigate those impacts. 

2 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

As the lead agency, the City of Wildomar will be responsible for monitoring compliance with all mitigation measures. 
Different departments within the City are responsible for aspects of the project. The MMRP identifies the department with 
the responsibility for ensuring the measure is completed; however, it is expected that one or more departments will 
coordinate efforts to ensure compliance. 

The MMRP is presented in tabular form on the following pages. The components of the MMRP are described briefly 
below: 

• Mitigation Measure: The mitigation measures are taken from the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND), in the same order that they appear in the IS/MND.  

• Timing: Identifies at which stage of the project the mitigation must be completed. 

• Monitoring Responsibility: Identifies the department within the City with responsibility for mitigation monitoring. 

• Verification (Date and Initials): Provides a contact who reviewed the mitigation measure and the date the 
measure was determined complete. 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 20 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

3.1  Aesthetics 

AES-01 Per Section 8.64.060 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
exterior lighting above 4050 lumens is restricted. In 
addition, all lighting must be fully shielded if feasible and 
partially shielded in all other cases, and must be 
focused to minimize spill of light into the night sky and 
onto adjacent properties.  

Upon submittal of development 
plans for the proposed project 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments  

AES-02 The precise lighting plan shall be submitted to the City 
of Wildomar at the time any future development 
application is proposed for the project site and will be 
evaluated by the City of Wildomar Planning Department 
as part of the plot plan process to ensure compliance 
with City ordinances. 

 

Upon submittal of development 
plans for the proposed project 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 

 

3.2  Agricultural Resources – none required N/A N/A N/A 

3.3  Air Quality – none required N/A N/A N/A 

3.4  Biological Resources 

BIO-01 The project applicant shall conduct construction and 
clearing activities outside of the avian nesting season 
(January 15–August 31), where feasible. If clearing 
and/or construction activities occur during nesting 
season, preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors and 
migratory birds shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist, up to 14 days before initiation of construction 
activities. The qualified biologist shall survey the 
construction zone, and a 250-foot radius surrounding 
the construction zone, to determine whether the 
activities taking place have the potential to disturb or 
otherwise harm nesting birds. If the biologist determines 
after consultation with wildlife agencies that there is 
potential harm to nesting birds, construction within the 

The project applicant shall 
incorporate requirements into the 
contract plans. The project 
applicant’s construction inspector 
shall monitor to ensure that 
measures are implemented 
during construction. 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 21 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

250-foot setback area shall be prohibited until it is 
determined that construction activities will not harm the 
nesting birds. 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee area and will 
be subject to the SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County 
Ordinance 336 (as amended through 663.10). This fee 
is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels proposed 
for development and must be paid upon issuance of a 
grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for 
any impacts to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note 
that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current 
fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

The fee must be paid prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside 
MSHCP area and will be subject to the MSHCP 
development mitigation fee, per Riverside County 
Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently $9,492 per gross 
acre of the parcels proposed for development and must 
be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment 
of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the MSHCP 
planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of 
this document; however, the fee may change over time 
and the current fee must be paid at the time of 
issuance.)  

The fee must be paid prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

3.5  Cultural Resources 

CUL-01  Prior to future development approval on the project site 
and issuance of any grading, building, or other permit 
authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the following 
wording shall be included in all construction contract 
documentation: 
If during grading or construction activities cultural 
resources are discovered on the project site, work shall 

As a condition of future 
development approval, and 
implemented during ground-
disturbing construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 22 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

be halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery 
and the resources shall be evaluated by a qualified 
archeologist. Any unanticipated cultural resources that 
are discovered shall be evaluated and a final report 
prepared. The report shall include a list of the resources 
recovered, documentation of each site/locality, and 
interpretation of resources recovered. In the event the 
significant resources are recovered and if the qualified 
archaeologist determines the resources to be historic or 
unique, mitigation would be required pursuant to and 
consistent with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 
15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2. 

CUL-02 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the 
project applicant(s) for future development shall contact 
the appropriate Tribe1 to notify the Tribe of grading, 
excavation, and the monitoring program, and to 
coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to 
develop a Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring 
Agreement. The agreement shall address the treatment 
of known cultural resources; the designation, 
responsibilities, and participation of Native American 
Tribal monitors during grading, excavation, and ground-
disturbing activities; project grading and development 
scheduling; terms of compensation; and treatment and 
final disposition of any cultural resources, sacred sites, 
and human remains discovered on the site. 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

CUL-03 Prior to future development approval on the project site 
and issuance of any grading, building or other permit 
authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project 
applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all 

As a condition of future 
development approval, and 
implemented during ground-
disturbing construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  

1 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive coordination with the surrounding cities 
in determining potentially significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures. 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 23 

                                            



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

construction contract documentation: 
If human remains are encountered, California Health 
and Safety Code Section 7050.5 requires that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County 
Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin. 
Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code 
Section 5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the 
treatment and disposition has been made. If the 
Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be 
Native American, the Native American Heritage 
Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable time 
frame. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage 
Commission shall identify the “most likely descendant.” 
The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations 
concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in 
Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

CUL-04 The landowner shall relinquish ownership of all cultural 
resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all 
archaeological artifacts that are found on the project 
site, to the appropriate Tribe for proper treatment and 
disposition. 

As a condition of project 
approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing 
construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  

CUL-05 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the 
project area, shall be avoided and preserved as the 
preferred mitigation, if feasible as determined by a 
qualified professional in consultation with the 
appropriate culturally affiliated Native American Tribe. 
To the extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly 
preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, 
mitigation measures shall be required pursuant to and 
consistent with Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2.  

As a condition of project 
approval, and implemented 
during ground-disturbing 
construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 24 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

CUL-06 Prior to future development approval on the project site 
and issuance of any grading, building or other permit 
authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the project 
applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all 
construction contract documentation: 
If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological 
resources are discovered during grading, work shall be 
halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and 
the developer and Tribe shall meet and confer regarding 
the significance of and mitigation for such resources. If 
the developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the 
significance of or the mitigation for such resources, 
these issues will be presented to the City of Wildomar 
Planning Director for decision. The Planning Director 
shall make the determination based on the provisions of 
CEQA with respect to archaeological resources and 
shall take into account the religious beliefs, customs, 
and practices of the appropriate Tribe. Notwithstanding 
any other rights available under the law, the decision of 
the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of 
Wildomar. In the event the significant resources are 
recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would 
be required pursuant to and consistent with CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public 
Resources Code Section 21083.2. 

As a condition of future 
development approval, and 
implemented during ground-
disturbing construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

CUL-07 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the project 
applicant(s) for future development shall identify to the 
City of Wildomar the qualified paleontologist who has 
been retained to evaluate the significance of any 
inadvertently discovery paleontological resources. If 
paleontological resources are encountered during 
grading or project construction, all work in the area of 
the find shall cease. The project applicant shall notify 
the City of Wildomar and retain a qualified 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 25 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

paleontologist to investigate the find. The qualified 
paleontologist shall make recommendations as to the 
disposition of the paleontological resources to the City 
of Wildomar Planning Director. The developer shall pay 
for all required treatment and storage of the discovered 
resources. 

CUL-08 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 
encountered during future grading or construction, a 
qualified professional shall initially monitor all 
construction activities that could potentially impact 
archaeological and/or paleontological deposits (e.g., 
grading, excavation, and/or trenching). However, 
monitoring should be discontinued as soon the qualified 
professional is satisfied that construction will not disturb 
cultural resources. 

As a condition of future 
development approval, and 
implemented during ground-
disturbing construction activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

3.6  Geology and Soils 

GEO-01 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer 
shall submit a geotechnical soils reports to the City 
Engineer for review and approval. All grading shall be in 
conformance with the recommendations of the 
geotechnical/soils reports as approved by the City of 
Wildomar. 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  

GEO-02 All grading shall conform to the California Building 
Code, Ordinance 457, and all other relevant laws, rules, 
and regulations governing grading in the City of 
Wildomar. Prior to commencing any grading which 
includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall 
obtain a grading permit from the Building Department.  

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  

GEO-03 Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer 
shall provide the Engineering Department evidence of 
compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) and obtain a construction 
permit from the State Water Resources Control Board 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 26 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

(SWRCB). 

GEO-04 Erosion control-landscape plans, required for 
manufactured slopes greater than 3 feet in vertical 
height, are to be signed by a registered landscape 
architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 
457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur 
within 30 days of meeting final grades to minimize 
erosion and to ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy 
season. The developer shall plant and irrigate all 
manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to 
vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with 
grass or ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in 
vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs or 
trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

3.7  Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

GHG-01  Prior to building permit approval, the City of Wildomar 
Planning Department will evaluate the provisions of 
CARB’s “Climate Change Proposed Scoping Plan: A 
Framework for Change” to determine which of the 
provisions are applicable to the building and occupancy 
anticipated and shall require that the project applicant 
implement measures to reduce short-term and long-
term emissions of GHG’s associated with construction 
and operation of the proposed project. Examples of 
measures that might be implemented include, but are 
not limited to the following: 
Construction 
• Reuse and recycle construction and demolition 

waste (including, but not limited to, soil, vegetation, 
concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard) to the 
extent practical. 

Operation 
• Bicycle parking facilities and preferential parking for 

Prior to issuance of a building 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 27 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

carpooling and alternative-fueled vehicles shall be 
provided at locations determined by City of 
Wildomar Planning Department staff. This measure 
encourages use of alternative transportation by 
employees and helps to reduce the amount of 
vehicle miles traveled as a result of the project.  

• Proposed commercial uses shall provide interior 
and exterior storage areas for recyclables and green 
waste and adequate recycling containers located in 
public areas. 

• Indoor water conservation measures shall be 
incorporated, such as use of low-flow toilets and 
faucets. 

• Future development of the annexation area shall 
ensure that low-water-use landscaping (i.e., 
drought-tolerant plants and drip irrigation) is 
installed. At least 75 percent of all landscaping 
plants shall be drought-tolerant as determined by a 
licensed landscape architect or contractor. 

3.8  Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

HAZ-01  As required by existing City of Wildomar Ordinance 
8.56, subsequent development on the site will need to 
demonstrate compliance with the Riverside County 
Department of Environmental Health, Local 
Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities related to 
potential hazardous materials prior to occupancy or 
delivery of hazardous materials to the site.  

As a condition of future 
development approval, and 
implemented prior to occupancy 
and delivery of hazardous 
materials to the site 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 

 

3.9  Hydrology and Water Quality 

HYD-01 Prior to the approval of the grading permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) 
shall be required to prepare a stormwater pollution 
prevention plan (SWPPP) consistent with the NPDES 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 28 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated 
with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities 
(Order No. 2010-0014-DWQ), which is to be 
administered through all phases of grading and project 
construction. The SWPPP shall incorporate best 
management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential 
water quality impacts during construction phases are 
minimized. The SWPPP shall be submitted to the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board and to the City of 
Wildomar for review. A copy of the SWPPP must be 
kept accessible on the project site at all times. In 
addition, the project applicant(s) will be required to 
submit, and obtain City approval of, a water quality 
management plan prior to the issuance of any building 
or grading permit for future development on the project 
site in order to comply with the Area-Wide Urban Runoff 
Management Program. The project shall implement site 
design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment 
control BMPs as identified in the water quality 
management plan. Site design BMPs shall include, but 
are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site 
ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to 
vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source control 
BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, education, 
landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot 
sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and 
covered trash storage. Treatment control BMPs shall 
include vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an 
infiltration device. 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 29 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

HYD-02 The project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and 
obtain City Engineering approval of, a water quality 
management plan (WQMP) prior to the issuance of any 
building or grading permit for future development on the 
project site in order to comply with the Area-Wide Urban 
Runoff Management Program. The project shall 
implement site design BMPs, source control BMPs, and 
treatment control BMPs as identified in the water quality 
management plan. Site design BMPs shall include, but 
are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site 
ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to 
vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source control 
BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, education, 
landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot 
sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and 
covered trash storage. Treatment control BMPs shall 
include vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an 
infiltration device. The intent of the BMPs shall be to 
ensure that development on the project site does not 
contribute to the degradation of water quality. 

Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

HYD-03 To manage stormwater runoff flows prior to and after the 
full implementation of the site’s underground infiltration 
pipe system, a sand filter basin will be constructed 
within Parcel 7 of the proposed project. The sand filter 
basin will provide the required storage, per the design 
guidelines in the Riverside County Low Impact 
Development BMP Design Handbook. The treated 
stormwater from the sand filter basin will be collected by 
an underdrain system. The sand filter basin will have 
two concrete drop inlets that will be constructed to 
collect the overflows. The concrete drop inlets will be set 
at different invert elevations and opening sizes to control 
and limit the outflow of the developed site to 
undeveloped levels. Additionally, the concrete drop 
inlets will have 3-inch-diameter orifices to control the 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 30 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

outflow. The orifices will be installed above the dead 
storage depth of 1.5 feet, which was determined by the 
preliminary WQMP prepared for the proposed project.  

 The completed sand filter basin will provide 21,112 
cubic feet (CF) of dead storage and the required Vbmp 
is 19,519 CF of dead storage. A 0.83-inch per hour 
filtration rate has been assumed per the specifications in 
the Riverside County Low Impact Development BMP 
Design Handbook.  

3.10  Land Use and Planning 

BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKR) fee area and will be 
subject to the SKR fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 
336 (as amended through 663.10). This fee is $500 per 
gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and 
must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The 
payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to 
Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee 
amount is current as of this document; however, the fee 
may change over time and the current fee must be paid 
at the time of issuance.)  

 

The fee must be paid prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside 
MSHCP area and will be subject to the MSHCP 
development mitigation fee, per Riverside County 
Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently $6,597 per gross 
acre of the parcels proposed for development and must 
be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment 
of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the MSHCP 
planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of 
this document; however, the fee may change over time 
and the current fee must be paid at the time of 
issuance.) 

The fee must be paid prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 31 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

3.11  Mineral Resources – none required N/A N/A N/A 

3.12  Noise 

NOI-01 Future development on the project site shall implement 
the following construction noise mitigation measures to 
reduce potential construction noise impacts to a less 
than significant level: 
 All construction and general maintenance activities 

(except in an emergency) shall be limited to the 
hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (June through 
September) and 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (October 
through May). 

 Construction equipment staging and storage areas 
shall be located as far from the residential land uses 
as possible.  

 All construction equipment shall be properly 
maintained with operating mufflers and air intake 
silencers as effective as those installed by the 
original manufacturer. 

 Residents living up to 1,000 feet from the property 
line shall be provided with a construction schedule 
and contact information to file a complaint. Timely 
notification shall accompany any major changes to 
this schedule. 

During construction City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

NOI-02 On-site noise shall not exceed 65 dBA during the hours 
of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. or 55 dBA during the hours of 
10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. This can be achieved by 
implementing the following policies: 
 In order to reach the City’s daytime noise threshold 

of 65 dBA Leq (10 minutes), the developer/builder 
shall use screens, shields, or enclosures for all 
project HVAC units that provide at least 10 dBA of 
attenuation. 

Prior to the issuance of 
occupancy permits and during 
project operations 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 32 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

 The use of HVAC systems shall be limited to the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. to protect residents 
from nighttime noise. The contact information for the 
City of Wildomar Code Compliance Officer should 
be given to nearby residents in case this measure is 
routinely violated. 

 HVAC units shall be placed as far away as possible 
from neighbors’ windows and outdoor areas. 

 Ensure that air conditioners are well fastened to the 
façade/roof, as poor attachment can result in an 
increase in the noise level. Where vibration of the 
unit results in an increased noise level, isolation 
springs or feet can be used to reduce vibration.  

 Ensure that all equipment is regularly serviced to 
ensure all fixtures and fittings are safe, secure, and 
do not rattle or vibrate excessively.  

 Truck deliveries to future commercial uses shall be 
limited to between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 
p.m. on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays. No deliveries shall occur on Sundays or 
as otherwise specified by the City. 

 The owners or operators of commercial uses shall 
post a sign at each loading area that states the 
idling time for delivery truck engines shall be limited 
to no more than 3 minutes. 

NOI-03 The proposed project shall comply with the development 
Noise Regulations as expressed in Chapter 9.48 of the 
City of Wildomar Zoning Code that regulates both 
construction activities and operational activities on the 
project site.  

During all phases of construction 
and project operations 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments  

3.13  Population and Housing – none required N/A N/A N/A 

3.14  Public Services 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 33 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

PUB-01 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) 
shall pay the required development impact fees for fire 
services pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code and in effect at the time of building 
permit issuance. The required development impact fees 
as of January 2013 required by the Riverside County 
Fire Department are $1,063.00 for the approval of a 
commercial/industrial tentative parcel map and $321.82 
per commercial/office unit approved by the department. 
(Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current 
fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

PUB-02 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) 
shall pay the required development impact fees for 
police services pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of 
building permit issuance. The required development 
impact fees as of January 2013 required by the 
Riverside County Sheriff’s Department are $157.07 per 
commercial/office unit approved by the department. 
(Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current 
fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

PUB-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) 
shall pay the required development impact fees for the 
Lake Elsinore Unified School District pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in 
effect at the time of building permit issuance. The 
required development impact fees as of January 2013 
required by the Lake Elsinore Unified School District are 
$0.47 per square foot of commercial/office space 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 34 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

approved by the district. (Note that the fee amount is 
current as of this document; however, the fee may 
change over time and the current fee must be paid at 
the time of issuance.)  

3.15  Recreation – none required    

3.16  Transportation/Traffic  

TRA-01 Construct Orange Street from Bundy Canyon Road 
along the project frontage to the ultimate half‐section 
width as a Secondary Highway Standard (100-foot 
right‐of‐way), including landscaping and parkway 
improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

TRA-02 Construct Bundy Canyon Road from Orange Street to 
the I‐15 freeway southbound onramp at its ultimate 
half‐section width as an Urban Arterial Standard, 
including landscaping and parkway improvements, in 
conjunction with development. 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

TRA-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit on the project 
site, the project applicant(s) shall pay the appropriate 
Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee to the Western 
Riverside County Council of Governments. The required 
Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee as of January 
2013 required by the WRCOG is $10.49 per square foot 
of retail space. (Note that the fee amount is current as of 
this document; however, the fee may change over time 
and the current fee must be paid at the time of 
issuance.) 

 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

3.17  Utilities and Service Systems 

ULT-01  The project applicant(s) for future development on the 
project site shall obtain approval from the Riverside 
County Department of Environmental Health and attend 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department; 
Riverside County 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 35 



Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street Subdivision (Project No. 10-0301) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 
 

Mitigation Measure Timing Monitoring 
Responsibility 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

a meeting with the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District (EVMWD) before receiving requesting water and 
wastewater service from the Elsinore Valley Municipal 
Water District. The meeting with the sponsor of future 
development on the site and the EVMWD will include a 
thorough review of the proposed water and sewer 
system design details. 

Department of 
Environmental Health 

UTL-02 Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) 
shall submit a recycling collection and loading area plan 
to the Riverside County Waste Management Division for 
approval. 

Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department; 
Riverside County 
Waste Management 
Division 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 36 



 

EXHIBIT 3 
 

Responses to Comments on Draft MND 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 37 



 

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
 
LIST OF COMMENTERS 

The following individuals and representatives of organizations and agencies submitted 
written comments on the Draft MND.  

Letter Agency, Organization, or Individual Date 

A Western Riverside County Regional Conservation 
Authority April 25, 2013 

B California Department of Fish and Wildlife April 29, 2013 

C Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District May 2, 2013 

D California Department of Transportation May 6, 2013 

 

COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 

Written comments on the Draft MND are reproduced on the following pages, along with 
responses to those comments.  

Where changes to the Draft MND text or mitigation measures result from responding to 
comments, those changes are included in the response and demarcated with revision 
marks (underline for new text, strikeout for deleted text). The responses to comments 
were prepared by City staff, PMC and LSA Associates (on behalf of the applicant). 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 38 



 

 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 39 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 40 



 

Staff Response 

A-1 The correction recommended by the commenter will be included in the final 
version of the document. Mitigation measure BIO-03 will read as follows: The 
proposed project is within the Western Riverside MSHCP area and will be 
subject to the MSHCP development mitigation fee, per Riverside County 
Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently $9,492 6,597 per gross acre of the parcels 
proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. 
The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the MSHCP planning 
area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee 
may change over time and the current fee must be paid at time of issuance.)  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 41 



 

 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 42 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 43 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 44 



 

Staff Response in coordination with LSA Associates 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 45 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 46 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 47 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 48 



 

Staff Responses 

 

C-1 The correction recommended by the commenter will be included in the final 
version of the document. 

Page 10: Water and Wastewater Demand Assumption: 

As the proposed project has no building plans, estimates of water and 
wastewater demand are based on the Water Duty Factor from the Elsinore 
Valley Water District’s (EVMWD) Water Master Plan. similar development in 
the area. The City of Corona to the north of Wildomar uses an estimate of 
1,050 gallons per day per acre for commercial uses in their Sewer Master 
Plan. The City of Murrieta to the south of Wildomar uses 0.402 gallons per 
day of water demand per square foot of commercial space in their General 
Plan Update Water Supply Assessment. The EVMWD Water Duty Factor for 
general commercial land uses is 2,500 gallons per day per acre. Based on 
the 9.5 acres of developable land remaining after roadway improvements are 
completed, the proposed project would have an estimated water demand of 
22,500 gallons per day. The EVMWD estimates wastewater demand by 
calculating 80 percent of the water demand. For the proposed project, 
projected wastewater demand would equal 18,000 gallons per day (22,500 x 
0.8).   

Assuming a floor area ratio of between 0.25 and 0.50 for the proposed 
project, the 9.50 acres of developable land remaining after roadway 
improvements on the Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street site could 
result in a water demand of between 4,200 and 8,300 gallons of water per 
day. Wastewater demand would be approximately 10,000 gallons per day. As 
the wastewater demand is seldom more than the water usage for commercial 
property, 10,000 gallons per day for both water demand and wastewater 
generation will be used in the analysis. 

Page 21:  

With an estimated water demand of 22,500 10,000 gallons per day, the 
proposed project represents 25.2 11.2 acre-feet per year.  

Page 102 and 103:  

The EVMWD does not provide water or wastewater generation rates for 
nonresidential development. The determination of water and wastewater 
demand is based on plumbing “fixtures” provided in the building plans during 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 49 



 

the building permit process. As the proposed project has no building plans, 
estimates of water and wastewater demand are based on similar 
development in the area. The City of Corona to the north of Wildomar uses an 
estimate of 1,050 gallons per day per acre for commercial uses in their Sewer 
Master Plan. The City of Murrieta to the south of Wildomar uses 0.402 gallons 
per day of water demand per square foot of commercial space in their 
General Plan Update Water Supply Assessment. Assuming a floor area ratio 
of between 0.25 and 0.50 for the proposed project, the 9.50 acres of 
developable land remaining after roadway improvements on the Bundy 
Canyon Road and Orange Street site could result in a water demand of 
between 4,200 and 8,300 gallons of water per day. Using the 1,050 gallons 
per day per acre for wastewater demand, the 9.50 acres would have a need 
of 9,975 gallons per day. As the wastewater demand is seldom more than the 
water usage for commercial property, and both water and wastewater 
demand is based on area estimates outside of EVMWD, 10,000 gallons per 
day for both water demand and wastewater generation will be used as a 
conservative figure in this analysis.  

As the proposed project has no building plans, estimates of water and 
wastewater demand are based on the Water Duty Factor from the Elsinore 
Valley Water District’s (EVMWD) Water Master Plan. The EVMWD Water 
Duty Factor for general commercial land uses is 2,500 gallons per day per 
acre. Based on the 9.5 acres of developable land remaining after roadway 
improvements are completed, the proposed project would have an estimated 
water demand of 22,500 gallons per day. The EVMWD estimates wastewater 
demand by calculating 80 percent of the water demand. For the proposed 
project, projected wastewater demand would equal 18,000 gallons per day 
(22,500 x 0.8).  

Page 104, Impact a:  

As the EVMWD has an estimated available treatment capacity of 3.34 mgd, 
and the proposed project is estimated to use generate 10,000 18,000 gallons 
of wastewater per day, future development will not require or will not result in 
the construction of new wastewater treatment facilities, including septic 
systems, or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which would 
cause significant environmental effects.  

Page 105, Impact b:  

The 10,000 18,000 gallons per day estimate is considered conservative, as 
most retail commercial uses generate very little in the way of wastewater. The 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 50 



 

10,000 18,000 gallons per day estimate of wastewater demand is 
approximately 0.01 mgd, which is well below the 3.34 mgd remaining capacity 
in the Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility. The 10,000 18,000 gallons 
per day water demand represents approximately 11.2 20.16 acre-feet per 
year, which is approximately 0.02 percent of the demand anticipated in 2035 
by the EVMWD Urban Water Management Plan. 

Page 105, Impact d:  

The projected 10,000 22,500 gallons per day equals approximately 11.2 25.2 
acre-feet per year. The calculated 11.2 25.2 acre-feet per year represents 
approximately 0.02 percent of the anticipated water demand throughout the 
EVWMD in 2035. 

Page 106, Impact e:  

The projected 10,000 22,500 gallons of water per day represents 0.01 0.02 
mgd and is less than the 3.34 mgd remaining treatment capacity.   

C-2, C-3 The correction recommended by the commenter will be included in the 
final version of the document. Mitigation measure ULT-01 will read:  

The project applicant(s) for future development on the project site shall obtain 
approval from the Riverside County Department of Environmental Health and 
attend a meeting with the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) 
before receiving requesting water and wastewater service from the Elsinore 
Valley Municipal Water District. The meeting with the sponsor of future 
development on the site and the EVMWD will include a thorough review of the 
proposed water and sewer system design details.   

Timing/Implementation: Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development 

Enforcement/Monitoring: City of Wildomar Planning Department; Riverside 
County Department of Environmental Health 

C-4 The correction recommended by the commenter will be included in the final 
version of the document. Page 103 will read:  

Sewer service will be provided through connection to an existing 12-inch PVC 
sewer line in Bundy Canyon Road.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 51 



 

Page 105 will read:  

The existing 12-inch PVC sewer line is sized to accommodate development 
as shown in the General Plan, as well as development farther north on Bundy 
Canyon Road. Connection to the existing sewer line will require trenching in 
Bundy Canyon Road, and one or more of the future uses may require filtration 
devices to remove grease from the sewer; however, these issues would be 
determined at the time of building permit consideration in consultation with the 
EVMWD and the Riverside County Environmental Health, and will be the 
responsibility of the building owner/operator to install and operate (see 
mitigation measure UTL-01). No other wastewater improvements will be 
necessary to serve the proposed project. The 10,000 gallons per day water 
demand represents approximately 11.2 acre-feet per year, which is 
approximately 0.02 percent of the demand anticipated in 2035 by the 
EVMWD Urban Water Management Plan. 

C-5 The correction recommended by the commenter will be included in the final 
version of the document. Page 105 will read:  

The project site is within the service boundary for the EVMWD, and future 
development on the project site would be connecting to the EVMWD’s water 
service infrastructure, an existing 20-inch PVC water line at the 1746 
pressure zone. 

The note by the commenter that a water line extension will be required will be 
included in the meeting between the sponsor of future development and the 
EVMWD required by mitigation measure UTL-01.   

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 52 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 53 



 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 54 



 

Staff Response 

D-1, D-2 The Traffic Impact Analysis (Appendix I) was completed under the 
guidelines established by the Riverside County Public Works Department’s Traffic 
Impact Analysis Preparation Guide. The Riverside County Traffic Impact Analysis 
Preparation Guide does not require passenger car equivalents (PCE) or percentages of 
truck travel to be included in traffic volume counts or level of service (LOS) calculations.  

 

D-3 though D-6 The Traffic Impact Analysis (Appendix I) included directional 
distributions of the project trips for the proposed land use, trip generation details, and 
fair share traffic contributions. A complete version of the Traffic Impact Analysis 
(Appendix I) for the proposed project was sent to the California Department of 
Transportation District 8 Planning Office on May 24, 2013.  

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 55 



 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-12 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 56 



 

PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-12 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE 
PARCEL MAP NO. 30522 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 10-
0301) TO SUBDIVIDE A 10.26 ACRE SITE INTO SEVEN (7) 
LOTS FOR FUTURE COMMERCIAL/RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ORANGE 
STREET AND BUNDY CANYON ROAD (APN: 367-100-024 & 
026), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
WHEREAS, an application for a Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 30522) for the 

subdivision of 10.26 acres into seven (7) parcels for future commercial/retail 
development located on the SEC of Orange Street and Bundy Canyon Road (APN: 367-
100-024 & 026). has been filed by:  

 
Applicant / Owner:  Orange/Bundy Partners, LTD 
Authorized Agent:  Mr. Joseph Lacko, JL Management 
Project Location:  SEC Corner of Orange Street & Bundy Canyon Road 
APN Number:  367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Lot Area:   10.26 acres 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Government Code Section 66452 

– 66452.22 (Subdivision Map Act) and the City of Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance 
(Title 16), and the City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17) the Planning 
Commission of the City of Wildomar, California, has the authority and has reviewed the 
proposed Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy Parcel Map project; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 66452.3, the City has 

provided the applicant with a copy of the Planning Department staff report and 
resolutions for Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 containing staff’s recommendation to 
the Planning Commission at least three (3) days prior to the below referenced noticed 
public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy 

Parcel Map is considered a “Project” as defined by the California Environmental Quality 
Act, Public Resources Code §21000 et seq. (“CEQA”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director determined that there was substantial 

evidence that Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy Parcel Map may 
have one or more significant effects on the environment and that preparation of an 
Mitigated Negative Declaration was therefore warranted under Public Resources Code 
§ 21080(d) and § 21082.2(d); and 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 57 



 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 
65090, the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 21, 2013, gave public notice 
by mailing a public hearing notice to all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the 
project boundaries notifying said property owners of the date and time of the public 
hearing for Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy Parcel Map 
(Planning Application No. 10-0301) that would be considered by the City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 

65090 the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 21, 2013, published a legal 
notice in the “Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, in compliance 
with State law notifying the public of the holding of a public hearing for Tentative Parcel 
Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy Parcel Map (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
that would be considered by the City of Wildomar Planning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 65353, the City of 

Wildomar Planning Commission conducted the duly noticed public hearing on July 3, 
2013, at which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or 
opposition to, Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 for the Orange/Bundy Parcel Map 
(Planning Application No. 10-0301), and at which time the Planning Commission 
received public testimony concerning the proposed tentative Parcel Map. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Wildomar does 

hereby resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. CEQA:   
 

The approval of this Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 30522) is in compliance with 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on July 3, 
2013, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program reflecting its 
independent judgment and analysis and documenting the environmental impacts and 
mitigation measures related to the project.  The documents comprising the City’s 
environmental review for the project are on file and available for public review at 
Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 92595. 
 
 
SECTION 2. TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FINDINGS. 
 

In accordance with Title 16 and Title 17 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and 
Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the 
Planning Department’s staff report and all documents incorporated by reference therein, 
the City’s General Plan, Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, standards for public 
streets and facilities, and any other evidence within the record or provided at the public 
hearing of this matter, find and determine as follows: 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 58 



 

A. The proposed parcel map is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any 
applicable specific plan as specified in Government Code Section 65451. 

 
Evidence:  The proposed Parcel Map No. 30522 is consistent with the City’s 
General Plan in that the land use designation for the project site is Commercial 
Retail. The Commercial Retail designation is intended to allow for the development 
of commercial retail uses at a neighborhood, community and regional level, as well 
as for professional office and tourist-oriented commercial uses (Page LU-58). As 
the proposed project is designed as a commercial parcel map that can 
accommodate future commercial, retail and office development, the project is 
consistent with the General Plan.  In terms of specific land use policies related to 
this project, the proposed parcel map promotes (and is consistent with) the 
following commercially related land use policies: 
 
LU 3.1 (Community Design) – “Accommodate land use development in accordance 
with the patterns and distribution of uses and density depicted on the General Plan 
Land Use map.” 
 
LU 6.1 (Land Use Compatibility) – “Require land uses to develop in accordance 
with the General Plan and area plans to ensure compatibility and minimize 
impacts.” 
 
LU 7.1 (Economic Development) – “Accommodate the development of a balance 
of land uses that maintain and enhance the City’s fiscal viability, economic diversity 
and environmental integrity.” 
 
LU 23.1 (Commercial Land Use) – “Accommodate the development of commercial 
uses in areas appropriately designated by the General Plan and area plan land use 
maps.” 

 
B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the 

City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan. 
 

Evidence:  The proposed parcel map and future commercial development of the 
project site has been designed to meet all City standards applicable to commercial 
development which is intended to provide safe pedestrian and vehicular circulation, 
including emergency vehicle access and on-site and off-site public improvements. 
Further, all streets, utilities, and drainage facilities have been designed and are 
required to be constructed in conformance with City standards. 

 
C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development. 
 

Evidence:  The project site encompasses approximately 10.26 acres subdivided 
into seven (7) parcels for commercial development.  Each parcel has been 
designed and subdivided to adequately accommodate individual commercial retail 
uses, as well as provide for the opportunity to, in the future, consolidate parcels to 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 59 



 

accommodate larger commercial developments as the market dictates.  Therefore, 
the proposed project site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 
development. 

 
D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 

 
Evidence:  The City prepared an Initial Study for the proposed parcel map project 
that resulted in the preparation, processing and review of a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND).  The MND analyzed the environmental issues required by 
CEQA law, including potential impacts to fish and wildlife and their respective 
habitats. The MND was circulated to the State Clearinghouse for a 30 day public 
review period in accordance with state CEQA law, which began on April 3, 2013 
and concluded on May 2, 2013. In addition, a Notice of Intent (NOI) was filed with 
the Riverside County Clerk, and a legal advertisement was placed in the 
Californian newspaper notifying the general public of the 30 day review period.  A 
hard copy of the draft IS/MND document was placed at the Mission Trial Library, 
Planning Department public counter and on the City’s website for public review. 
During the review period, staff received five (5) comment letters from various 
agencies. The comments received on the draft IS/MND did not require any 
changes to the IS/MND, mitigation measures or require re-circulation of the 
document.  Therefore, the proposed parcel map meets this finding.  

 
E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious 

public health problems. 
 

Evidence:  The design of the proposed parcel map subdivision is in conformance 
with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance which 
provides minimum development standards. Further, the parcel map has been 
conditioned to construct all required public improvements to accommodate future 
commercial and retail development in accordance with all applicable City of 
Wildomar ordinances, codes, and standards including, but not limited to, the 
California Uniform Building Code, the City’s Ordinances relating to stormwater 
runoff management and adopted public works standards.  As the City’s 
ordinances, codes, and standards have been created based on currently accepted 
standards and practices for the preservation of the public health, safety and 
welfare, the proposed Parcel map project meets this finding. 

 
F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
Evidence:  No easements of record or easements established by judgment of a 
court of competent jurisdiction for public access across the site have been 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 60 



 

disclosed in a search of the title records for the site and the City does not 
otherwise have any constructive or actual knowledge of any such easements. 

 
SECTION 3. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 

The Planning Commission hereby adopts PC Resolution No. 13-12 approving 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) subject to 
conditions as provided herein and attached hereto to this Resolution as Exhibit 1. 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of July 2013, by the 
following vote: 

 
AYES.   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Stan Smith 

Planning Commission Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Eric Vega, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 61 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 

General Conditions 
1.  In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice of 

Determination (NOD) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
within five (5) days of project approval by the City Council.  The Notice 
shall include the required California Department of Fish and Game 
(Code Section 711.4.d.3) fee, and the Riverside County Clerk 
administrative fee.  The applicant shall submit to the Planning 
Department a check or money order made payable to the Riverside 
County Clerk in the amount of $2,206.25 no later than July 3, 2013.  
Failure to pay the required fee will result in the project being deemed 
null and void (California Fish and Game Code Section 711.4(c).  The 
above fee is broken down as follows: 

a. California Department of Fish & Game = $2,156.25; and 
b. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $50.00 

July 3, 2013 Planning Department  

2.  The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the 
Wildomar Planning Department no later than July 10, 2013. 
 
 
Applicant Signature:     Date: 

July 10, 2013 Planning Department  

3.  The applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 

On-Going Planning Department  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 62 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
procedures), (collectively "Actions"), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, agencies, 
and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek to modify, 
set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or approval 
issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof 
(including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivisions Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the applicant of any Action brought and 
request that applicant defend the City.  It is expressly agreed that 
applicant may select legal counsel providing the applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense.  The applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense.  Applicant agrees 
that City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 
and applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the invoice.  Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a 
cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of 
the defense in order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices.  
The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the 
City.  City shall cooperate with applicant in the defense of any Action. 

4.  Approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 
10-0301) shall expire on July 3, 2016 if the Parcel map has not been 
recorded.  The applicant may file with the Planning Department a 

May 3, 2016 Planning Department  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 63 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
request for a one-year time extension as permitted in the Wildomar 
Subdivision and Zoning Ordinance provided a written request is made 
with the required EOT application and fee no later than May 3, 2016 
(60 days prior to expiration). 

5.  Within 45 days of approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 (Project 
No. 10-0301) by the Planning Commission, the applicant shall pay all 
outstanding deposit account balances.  Failure to pay the outstanding 
balance by the due date may result in delays in the processing of the 
final parcel map. 

August 16, 2013 Planning Department  

6.  The project shall be subdivided and developed in accordance with the 
tentative Parcel map approved by the Planning Commission on July 3, 
2013. The applicant may request a modification/revision to the 
approved project as outlined in the Wildomar Subdivision and Zoning 
Ordinance. 

On-Going Planning Department  

7.  If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 
disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner 
determines the remains to be Native American, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable 
timeframe. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission 
shall identify the "most likely descendant."  The most likely descendant 
shall then make recommendations and engage in consultation 
concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. 
 

On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 64 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
8.  If during ground disturbance activities unique cultural resources are 

discovered, that were not assessed by the archaeological report(s) 
and/or environmental assessment conducted prior to project approval, 
the following procedures shall be followed.  Unique cultural resources 
are defined, for this condition, as being multiple artifacts in close 
association with each other, but may include fewer artifacts if the area 
of the find is determined to be of significance due to its sacred or 
cultural importance. (1) All ground disturbance activities within 100 feet 
of the discovered cultural resources shall be halted until a meeting is 
convened between the developer, the archaeologist, the Native 
American tribal representative and the planning director to discuss the 
significance of the find. (2) At the meeting, the significance of the 
discoveries shall be discussed and after consultation with the 
Pechanga and Soboba Band representatives and the archaeologist, a 
decision shall be made, with the concurrence of the planning director, 
as to the appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, 
etc.) for the cultural resources. (3) Grading of further ground 
disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until an 
agreement has been reached by all parties as to the appropriate 
mitigation. 
 

On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

CEQA/IS/MND Mitigation Measures 
9.  AES-01 Per Section 8.64.060 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 

exterior lighting above 4050 lumens is restricted. In addition, all lighting 
must be fully shielded if feasible and partially shielded in all other 
cases, and must be focused to minimize spill of light into the night sky 
and onto adjacent properties.  

Upon submittal of 
development plans 
for the proposed 

project 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 

 

10.  AES-02  The precise lighting plan shall be submitted to the City of 
Wildomar at the time any future development application is proposed 

Upon submittal of 
development plans 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 65 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
for the project site and will be evaluated by the City of Wildomar 
Planning Department as part of the plot plan process to ensure 
compliance with City ordinances. 

for the proposed 
project 

Works Departments 

11.  BIO-01  The project applicant shall conduct construction and clearing 
activities outside of the avian nesting season (January 15–August 31), 
where feasible. If clearing and/or construction activities occur during 
nesting season, preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors and 
migratory birds shall be conducted by a qualified biologist, up to 14 
days before initiation of construction activities. The qualified biologist 
shall survey the construction zone, and a 250-foot radius surrounding 
the construction zone, to determine whether the activities taking place 
have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds. If the 
biologist determines after consultation with wildlife agencies that there 
is potential harm to nesting birds, construction within the 250-foot 
setback area shall be prohibited until it is determined that construction 
activities will not harm the nesting birds. 

The project 
applicant shall 

incorporate 
requirements into 
the contract plans. 

The project 
applicant’s 

construction 
inspector shall 

monitor to ensure 
that measures are 

implemented 
during construction. 

City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 

 

12.  BIO-02  The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat 
Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee area and will be subject to the 
SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the 
parcels proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of 
a grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts 
to Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is current 
as of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the 
current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

13.  BIO-03  The proposed project is within the Western Riverside MSHCP 
area and will be subject to the MSHCP development mitigation fee, per 
Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is currently $6,597 per 
gross acre of the parcels proposed for development and must be paid 
upon issuance of a grading permit. The payment of this fee will 

The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 66 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
mitigate for any impacts to the MSHCP planning area. (Note that the 
fee amount is current as of this document; however, the fee may 
change over time and the current fee must be paid at the time of 
issuance.)  

14.  CUL-01  Prior to future development approval on the project site and 
issuance of any grading, building, or other permit authorizing ground-
disturbing activity, the following wording shall be included in all 
construction contract documentation: 
If during grading or construction activities cultural resources are 
discovered on the project site, work shall be halted immediately within 
50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be evaluated by a 
qualified archeologist. Any unanticipated cultural resources that are 
discovered shall be evaluated and a final report prepared. The report 
shall include a list of the resources recovered, documentation of each 
site/locality, and interpretation of resources recovered. In the event the 
significant resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist 
determines the resources to be historic or unique, mitigation would be 
required pursuant to and consistent with CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2. 

As a condition of 
future development 

approval, and 
implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

construction 
activities 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

15.  CUL-02  At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the project 
applicant(s) for future development shall contact the appropriate Tribe 
to notify the Tribe of grading, excavation, and the monitoring program, 
and to coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop a 
Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. The 
agreement shall address the treatment of known cultural resources; 
the designation, responsibilities, and participation of Native American 
Tribal monitors during grading, excavation, and ground-disturbing 
activities; project grading and development scheduling; terms of 
compensation; and treatment and final disposition of any cultural 
resources, sacred sites, and human remains discovered on the site. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 67 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
16.  CUL-03  Prior to future development approval on the project site and 

issuance of any grading, building or other permit authorizing ground-
disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the following 
wording on all construction contract documentation: 
If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 requires that no further disturbance shall occur until 
the Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to 
origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance 
until a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been 
made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be 
Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall identify the “most likely 
descendant.” The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code 
Section 5097.98. 

As a condition of 
future development 

approval, and 
implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

construction 
activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

17.  CUL-04  The landowner shall relinquish ownership of all cultural 
resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all archaeological 
artifacts that are found on the project site, to the appropriate Tribe for 
proper treatment and disposition. 

As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

construction 
activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 
 

18.  CUL-05  All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the 
project area, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred 
mitigation, if feasible as determined by a qualified professional in 
consultation with the appropriate culturally affiliated Native American 
Tribe. To the extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly preserved in 

As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 68 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation measures shall be 
required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources Code 
Section 21083.2.  

construction 
activities 

19.  CUL-06 Prior to future development approval on the project site and 
issuance of any grading, building or other permit authorizing ground-
disturbing activity, the project applicant(s) shall include the following 
wording on all construction contract documentation: 
If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are 
discovered during grading, work shall be halted immediately within 50 
feet of the discovery and the developer and Tribe shall meet and 
confer regarding the significance of and mitigation for such resources. 
If the developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance of or 
the mitigation for such resources, these issues will be presented to the 
City of Wildomar Planning Director for decision. The Planning Director 
shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the 
religious beliefs, customs, and practices of the appropriate Tribe. 
Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the decision 
of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar. In 
the event the significant resources are recovered and if the qualified 
archaeologist determines the resources to be historic or unique, 
mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent with CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public Resources Code 
Section 21083.2. 

As a condition of 
future development 

approval, and 
implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

construction 
activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

20.  CUL-07 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the project 
applicant(s) for future development shall identify to the City of 
Wildomar the qualified paleontologist who has been retained to 
evaluate the significance of any inadvertently discovery 
paleontological resources. If paleontological resources are 
encountered during grading or project construction, all work in the area 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 69 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
of the find shall cease. The project applicant shall notify the City of 
Wildomar and retain a qualified paleontologist to investigate the find. 
The qualified paleontologist shall make recommendations as to the 
disposition of the paleontological resources to the City of Wildomar 
Planning Director. The developer shall pay for all required treatment 
and storage of the discovered resources. 

21.  CUL-08 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 
encountered during future grading or construction, a qualified 
professional shall initially monitor all construction activities that could 
potentially impact archaeological and/or paleontological deposits (e.g., 
grading, excavation, and/or trenching). However, monitoring should be 
discontinued as soon the qualified professional is satisfied that 
construction will not disturb cultural resources. 

As a condition of 
future development 

approval, and 
implemented 

during ground-
disturbing 

construction 
activities 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

22.  GEO-01 Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall 
submit a geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and 
approval. All grading shall be in conformance with the 
recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved by the 
City of Wildomar. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments  

23.  GEO-02 All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, 
Ordinance 457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations 
governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing any 
grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall 
obtain a grading permit from the Building Department.  

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments  

24.  GEO-03 Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall 
provide the Engineering Department evidence of compliance with the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and obtain 
a construction permit from the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB). 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 70 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
25.  GEO-04 Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured 

slopes greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a 
registered landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of 
Ordinance 457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur within 
30 days of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure 
slope coverage prior to the rainy season. The developer shall plant 
and irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to 
vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or 
ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical height shall be 
planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved by the City 
Engineer. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

26.  GHG-01 Prior to building permit approval, the City of Wildomar 
Planning Department will evaluate the provisions of CARB’s “Climate 
Change Proposed Scoping Plan: A Framework for Change” to 
determine which of the provisions are applicable to the building and 
occupancy anticipated and shall require that the project applicant 
implement measures to reduce short-term and long-term emissions of 
GHG’s associated with construction and operation of the proposed 
project. Examples of measures that might be implemented include, but 
are not limited to the following: 
Construction 
• Reuse and recycle construction and demolition waste (including, 

but not limited to, soil, vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and 
cardboard) to the extent practical. 

Operation 
• Bicycle parking facilities and preferential parking for carpooling 

and alternative-fueled vehicles shall be provided at locations 
determined by City of Wildomar Planning Department staff. This 
measure encourages use of alternative transportation by 

Prior to issuance of 
a building permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 71 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
employees and helps to reduce the amount of vehicle miles 
traveled as a result of the project.  

• Proposed commercial uses shall provide interior and exterior 
storage areas for recyclables and green waste and adequate 
recycling containers located in public areas. 

• Indoor water conservation measures shall be incorporated, such 
as use of low-flow toilets and faucets. 

• Future development of the annexation area shall ensure that low-
water-use landscaping (i.e., drought-tolerant plants and drip 
irrigation) is installed. At least 75 percent of all landscaping plants 
shall be drought-tolerant as determined by a licensed landscape 
architect or contractor. 

27.  HAZ-01 As required by existing City of Wildomar Ordinance 8.56, 
subsequent development on the site will need to demonstrate 
compliance with the Riverside County Department of Environmental 
Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities related to 
potential hazardous materials prior to occupancy or delivery of 
hazardous materials to the site.  

As a condition of 
future development 

approval, and 
implemented prior 
to occupancy and 

delivery of 
hazardous 

materials to the site 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 

Planning Departments 

 

28.  HYD-01 Prior to the approval of the grading permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall be 
required to prepare a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) 
consistent with the NPDES General Permit for Storm Water 
Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance 
Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-DWQ), which is to be administered 
through all phases of grading and project construction. The SWPPP 
shall incorporate best management practices (BMPs) to ensure that 
potential water quality impacts during construction phases are 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 72 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
minimized. The SWPPP shall be submitted to the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board and to the City of Wildomar for review. A copy of 
the SWPPP must be kept accessible on the project site at all times. In 
addition, the project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain 
City approval of, a water quality management plan prior to the 
issuance of any building or grading permit for future development on 
the project site in order to comply with the Area-Wide Urban Runoff 
Management Program. The project shall implement site design BMPs, 
source control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as identified in the 
water quality management plan. Site design BMPs shall include, but 
are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site ponding areas, roof 
and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, and vegetated 
swales. Source control BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, 
education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot sweeping, 
irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash storage. 
Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a 
detention basin, or an infiltration device. 

29.  HYD-02 The project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain 
City Engineering approval of, a water quality management plan 
(WQMP) prior to the issuance of any building or grading permit for 
future development on the project site in order to comply with the 
Area-Wide Urban Runoff Management Program. The project shall 
implement site design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment 
control BMPs as identified in the water quality management plan. Site 
design BMPs shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer 
areas, on-site ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to 
vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs shall 
include, but are not limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter 
control, parking lot sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, 
and covered trash storage. Treatment control BMPs shall include 
vegetated swales and a detention basin, or an infiltration device. The 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 73 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
intent of the BMPs shall be to ensure that development on the project 
site does not contribute to the degradation of water quality. 

30.  HYD-03 To manage stormwater runoff flows prior to and after the full 
implementation of the site’s underground infiltration pipe system, a 
sand filter basin will be constructed within Parcel 7 of the proposed 
project. The sand filter basin will provide the required storage, per the 
design guidelines in the Riverside County Low Impact Development 
BMP Design Handbook. The treated stormwater from the sand filter 
basin will be collected by an underdrain system. The sand filter basin 
will have two concrete drop inlets that will be constructed to collect the 
overflows. The concrete drop inlets will be set at different invert 
elevations and opening sizes to control and limit the outflow of the 
developed site to undeveloped levels. Additionally, the concrete drop 
inlets will have 3-inch-diameter orifices to control the outflow. The 
orifices will be installed above the dead storage depth of 1.5 feet, 
which was determined by the preliminary WQMP prepared for the 
proposed project.  The completed sand filter basin will provide 21,112 
cubic feet (CF) of dead storage and the required Vbmp is 19,519 CF of 
dead storage. A 0.83-inch per hour filtration rate has been assumed 
per the specifications in the Riverside County Low Impact 
Development BMP Design Handbook.  

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit 

City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 

 

31.  LUP/BIO-02 The project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKRHCP) fee area and will be subject to 
the SKRHCP fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is $500 per gross acre of the parcels 
proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of a 
grading permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to 
Stephen’s kangaroo rat habitat. (Note that the fee amount is current as 
of this document; however, the fee may change over time and the 
current fee must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 74 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
32.  LUP/BIO-03 The proposed project is within the Western Riverside 

MSHCP area and will be subject to the MSHCP development 
mitigation fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 810.2. This fee is 
currently $6,597 per gross acre of the parcels proposed for 
development and must be paid upon issuance of a grading permit. The 
payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to the MSHCP 
planning area. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this 
document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee 
must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

33.  NOI-01 Future development on the project site shall implement the 
following construction noise mitigation measures to reduce potential 
construction noise impacts to a less than significant level: 
 All construction and general maintenance activities (except in an 

emergency) shall be limited to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
(June through September) and 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (October 
through May). 

 Construction equipment staging and storage areas shall be 
located as far from the residential land uses as possible.  

 All construction equipment shall be properly maintained with 
operating mufflers and air intake silencers as effective as those 
installed by the original manufacturer. 

 Residents living up to 1,000 feet from the property line shall be 
provided with a construction schedule and contact information to 
file a complaint. Timely notification shall accompany any major 
changes to this schedule. 
 

During construction City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

Departments 

 

34.  NOI-02 On-site noise shall not exceed 65 dBA during the hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. or 55 dBA during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 

Prior to the 
issuance of 

occupancy permits 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 75 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
a.m. This can be achieved by implementing the following policies: 
 In order to reach the City’s daytime noise threshold of 65 dBA Leq 

(10 minutes), the developer/builder shall use screens, shields, or 
enclosures for all project HVAC units that provide at least 10 dBA 
of attenuation. 

 The use of HVAC systems shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. to protect residents from nighttime noise. The 
contact information for the City of Wildomar Code Compliance 
Officer should be given to nearby residents in case this measure 
is routinely violated. 

 HVAC units shall be placed as far away as possible from 
neighbors’ windows and outdoor areas. 

 Ensure that air conditioners are well fastened to the façade/roof, 
as poor attachment can result in an increase in the noise level. 
Where vibration of the unit results in an increased noise level, 
isolation springs or feet can be used to reduce vibration.  

 Ensure that all equipment is regularly serviced to ensure all 
fixtures and fittings are safe, secure, and do not rattle or vibrate 
excessively.  

 Truck deliveries to future commercial uses shall be limited to 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and 
9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays. No deliveries shall occur on 
Sundays or as otherwise specified by the City. 

 The owners or operators of commercial uses shall post a sign at 
each loading area that states the idling time for delivery truck 
engines shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes. 
 

and during project 
operations 

Departments 

35.  NOI-03 The proposed project shall comply with the development Noise 
Regulations as expressed in Chapter 9.48 of the City of Wildomar 

During all phases 
of construction and 

City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 76 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
Zoning Code that regulates both construction activities and operational 
activities on the project site.  

project operations Departments 

36.  PUB-01 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall pay the 
required development impact fees for fire services pursuant to Chapter 
4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time of 
building permit issuance. The required development impact fees as of 
January 2013 required by the Riverside County Fire Department are 
$1,063.00 for the approval of a commercial/industrial tentative parcel 
map and $321.82 per commercial/office unit approved by the 
department. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be 
paid at the time of issuance.)  

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

37.  PUB-02 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall pay the 
required development impact fees for police services pursuant to 
Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect at the time 
of building permit issuance. The required development impact fees as 
of January 2013 required by the Riverside County Sheriff’s 
Department are $157.07 per commercial/office unit approved by the 
department. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be 
paid at the time of issuance.). 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

38.  PUB-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit for future development 
on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall pay the required 
development impact fees for the Lake Elsinore Unified School District 
pursuant to Chapter 4.60 of the Wildomar Municipal Code and in effect 
at the time of building permit issuance. The required development 
impact fees as of January 2013 required by the Lake Elsinore Unified 
School District are $0.47 per square foot of commercial/office space 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 77 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
approved by the district. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this 
document; however, the fee may change over time and the current fee 
must be paid at the time of issuance.)  

39.  TRA-01 Construct Orange Street from Bundy Canyon Road along the 
project frontage to the ultimate half‐section width as a Secondary 
Highway Standard (100-foot right‐of‐way), including landscaping and 
parkway improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit for 
future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department  

40.  TRA-02 Construct Bundy Canyon Road from Orange Street to the I‐15 
freeway southbound onramp at its ultimate half‐section width as an 
Urban Arterial Standard, including landscaping and parkway 
improvements, in conjunction with development. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit for 
future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department  

41.  TRA-03 Prior to issuance of any building permit on the project site, the 
project applicant(s) shall pay the appropriate Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee to the Western Riverside County Council of 
Governments. The required Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee as 
of January 2013 required by the WRCOG is $10.49 per square foot of 
retail space. (Note that the fee amount is current as of this document; 
however, the fee may change over time and the current fee must be 
paid at the time of issuance of building permits.) 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit for 
future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 

 

42.  ULT-01 The project applicant(s) for future development on the project 
site shall obtain approval from the Riverside County Department of 
Environmental Health before receiving water and wastewater service 
from the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District.  

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit for 
future development 

City of Wildomar 
Planning Department; 

Riverside County 
Department of 

Environmental Health 

 

43.  UTL-02 Prior to the issuance of a building permit for future 
development on the project site, the project applicant(s) shall submit a 
recycling collection and loading area plan to the Riverside County 
Waste Management Division for approval. 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 

building permit for 
future development 

Planning Department; 
Riverside County 

Waste Management 
Division 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 78 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit 

44.  Prior to the issuance of the 1st first grading permit for Tentative Parcel 
Map No. 30522, the” applicant shall enter into a Tribal Monitoring 
Agreement” with the Pechanga Band of Luiseno Indians. The 
agreement shall, include, but not  be limited to, outlining provisions 
and requirements for addressing the treatment of cultural resources 
and establishing on-site monitoring provisions/requirements during all 
on-site ground disturbing activities.  A copy of this signed agreement 
shall be provided to the Planning Director and Building Official prior to 
the issuance of the 1st grading permit. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Planning Department  

45.  The grading plan shall include the following information in the Notes 
Section of the Grading Plan:  "No grubbing/clearing of the site shall 
occur prior to scheduling the pre-grading meeting with Engineering. All 
project sites containing suitable habitat for burrowing owls, whether 
owls were found or not, require a 30-day preconstruction survey that 
shall be conducted within 30 days prior to ground disturbance to avoid 
direct take of burrowing owls. If the results of the survey indicate that 
no burrowing owls are present on-site, then the project may move 
forward with grading, upon Planning Department approval.  If 
burrowing owls are found to be present or nesting on-site during the 
preconstruction survey, then the following recommendations must be 
adhered to:  Exclusion and relocation activities may not occur during 
the breeding season, which is defined as March 1 through August 31, 
with the following exception: From March 1 through March 15 and from 
August 1 through August 31 exclusion and relocation activities may 
take place if it is proven to the City and appropriate regulatory 
agencies (if any) that egg laying or chick rearing is not taking place.  
This determination must be made by a qualified biologist." 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Planning Department  

46.  The grading plan shall include the following information in the Notes 
Section of the Grading Plan:  "If at any time during 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Planning Department  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 79 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
excavation/construction of the site, archaeological/cultural resources, 
or any artifacts or other objects which reasonably appears to be 
evidence of cultural or archaeological resource are discovered, the 
property owner shall immediately advise the City of such and the City 
shall cause all further excavation or other disturbance of the affected 
area to immediately cease.  The Planning Director at his/her sole 
discretion may require the property owner to deposit a sum of money it 
deems reasonably necessary to allow the City to consult and/or 
authorize an independent, fully qualified specialist to inspect the site at 
no cost to the City, in order to assess the significance of the find.  
Upon determining that the discovery is not an archaeological/cultural 
resource, the Planning Director shall notify the property owner of such 
determination and shall authorize the resumption of work.  Upon 
determining that the discovery is an archaeological/cultural resource, 
the Planning Director shall notify the property owner that no further 
excavation or development may take place until a mitigation plan or 
other corrective measures have been approved by the Planning 
Director.” 

47.  Prior to the issuance of a the 1st grading permit the applicant shall 
receive approval of a haul permit for any import of material to the site 
or export of material off-site.  The request for a haul permit shall 
include a haul route plan addressing the limitations of haul hours, 
number of loads per day and the posting of traffic control personnel at 
all approved entrances/exits onto public roads.  This haul permit shall 
be in place prior to the issuance of the grading permit and the 
mobilization of equipment on the project site.  If the proposed material 
source or disposal site was not previously evaluated by the mitigated 
negative declaration, a grading environmental assessment shall be 
approved by the planning director prior to the issuance of the haul 
permit. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 80 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
48.  Prior to the issuance of the 1st grading permit for each phase , the 

applicant shall provide a note on the grading plans that state the 
following:  "No ground disturbing or grubbing activities shall be allowed 
within the protected drip line of any preserved native, oak or riparian 
tree identified for preservation. Fencing shall be placed around these 
protected areas.” 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

 

Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

49.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit for any of the seven (7) 
vacant parcels, the applicant shall submit for review and approval by 
the Planning and Engineering Departments two sets of detailed 
landscape and irrigation plans for the public right-of-way and/or on-
site.  

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

 

Planning Department  

Prior to Final Map Approval / Recordation 
50.  Prior to the recordation of the final map for TTM 30522, a copy of the 

proposed Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&R’s) shall be 
submitted to the Planning Director and City Attorney for review.  The 
CC&R’s shall include liability insurance and methods of maintaining 
landscaping, parking areas, private roads, exterior of all buildings (if 
applicable), and all landscaped and open areas including parkways, as 
well as a provisions indicating that the homeowners association may 
not be terminated or dissolved with the permission of the City.  The 
CC&R’s shall be in the form and content approved by the planning 
director and city attorney and shall include such provisions as are 
required by this approval and as said officials deem necessary to 
protect the interests of the City and its residents.  

Prior to Final Map 
Approval 

Planning Department  

51.  Prior to recordation of the final parcel map, the applicant shall submit 
for Planning Department review and approval a comprehensive sign 
program for the proposed project area. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Planning Department  

52.  Prior to recordation of the final parcel map, the applicant shall submit 
for review and approval by the Planning Director and City Attorney, a 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Planning Department  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 81 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
reciprocal access and parking agreement that covers all seven (7) 
parcels of the project.   

Final Map 

53.  Prior to the recordation of the final Parcel map for TPM 30522, or any 
subsequent final maps within the project area, the Applicant shall pay 
all fees in accordance with Zone A of the Southwest Road and Bridge 
Benefit District. 

Prior to Final Map 
Approval 

Planning & Building 
Depts. 

 

54.  Prior to the recordation of the final Parcel map for TPM 30522, or any 
subsequent final maps within the project area, the applicant shall pay 
the appropriate impact mitigation fee to the Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District. 

Prior to Final Map 
Approval 

Planning & Building 
Depts. 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit 
55.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit for development of any of the 

seven (7) vacant parcels within the boundaries of Parcel Map No. 
30522, the applicant shall submit a Plot Plan application (or 
Conditional Use Permit if applicable) to the Planning Department. Said 
Plot Plan application (or Conditional Use Permit if applicable) shall 
comply with all applicable provisions of CEQA and require review and 
approval by the Planning Commission. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Planning Department  

56.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any of the seven (7) 
vacant parcels, the applicant shall pay all applicable Development 
Impact Fees and City Mitigation Fees in accordance with the City’s 
adopted Development Impact Fee Schedule at that time. 

Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 

Building and 
Engineering 
Departments 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
57.  Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for any building 

within the boundaries of Parcel Map No. 30522, all conditions of 
approval listed herein shall be satisfied. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Certificate of 

Occupancy 

Planning and Building 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 82 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Requirements/Conditions 
1.  The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 

revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 
need for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals 
may be necessary as a result. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

2.  No grading shall be performed without the prior issuance of a grading 
permit by the City. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

3.  Written permission shall be obtained from the affected property 
owners allowing the proposed grading and/or facilities to be installed 
outside of the project boundaries. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

4.  The developer’s contractor is required to submit for a haul route permit 
for the hauling of material to and from the project site.  Said permit will 
include limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day and the 
posting of traffic control personnel at all approved entrances/exits onto 
public roads.  This permit shall be in place prior to the issuance of the 
grading permit and the mobilization of equipment on the project site. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

5.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

6.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the 
eminent domain process, if necessary. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

7.  All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, including 
Appendix J, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 83 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing any 
grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall 
obtain a grading permit from the Building Department. 

8.  All necessary measures to control dust shall be implemented by the 
developer during grading to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A 
PM10 plan may be required at the time a grading permit is issued. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

9.  Graded slopes shall be limited to a maximum steepness ratio of 2:1 
(horizontal to vertical) unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

10.  Grading in excess of 199 cubic yards will require performance security 
to be posted with the City. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

11.  All retaining walls shall require a separate permit from the Building 
Department. 

On-Going Building Dept. ALL PHASES 

12.  Erosion control – landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 
457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur within 30 days of 
meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope 
coverage prior to the rainy season.  The Developer shall plant & 
irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to 
vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or 
ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical height shall be 
planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved by the City 
Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

13.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 
project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 84 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
14.  The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 

with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 
On-Going Engineering Dept.  

15.  The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a 
minimum of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and 
alignment as approved by the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

16.  All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by 
the developer in accordance with City requirements. The 
undergrounding of utilities shall be reflected on the project 
improvement plans. 
 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  

17.  All flood control plans to be reviewed shall be submitted through the 
City of Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept.  
 

Prior to the Issuance of Grading Permits 
18.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a 

geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and approval 
prior to issuance of grading permit.  The findings and 
recommendations shall reflect current conditions and the report shall 
be no older than one (1) year.  All grading shall be in conformance 
with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as 
approved by City of Wildomar. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

19.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, it shall be the sole 
responsibility of the developer to obtain any and all easements and/or 
permissions necessary to perform the grading required for the project. 
A notarized letter of permission from all affected property owners or 
easement holders, or encroachment permit, is required for all off-site 
grading. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 85 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
20.  Prior to issuance of grading permit, the developer shall provide a letter 

from the District or Quit Claim the right to sink wells, conveyed to 
South Elsinore Water Company recorded by deed recorded on July 
16, 1918 in Book 489, Page 165, prior to the issuance of any permit. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

21.  Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the project specific SWPPP 
shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

22.  Prior to issuance of grading permits the Developer shall provide the 
Engineering Department evidence of compliance with the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and obtain a 
construction permit from the State Water Resource Control Board 
(SWRRCB). 
 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

23.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall have 
obtained approval for the import/export location from the City of 
Wildomar. Additionally, if either location was not previously approved 
by an Environmental Assessment, prior to issuing a grading permit, a 
Grading Environmental Assessment shall be submitted to the Planning 
Director for review and comment and to the City Engineer for approval. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

24.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a 
Final Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), in conformance with 
the requirements of the San Diego and/or Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board.  Applicant shall confirm the watershed 
requirements relative to their project location.  All stormwater quality 
treatment devices shall be located outside of the ultimate public right 
of way.  The developer shall design the stormwater quality treatment 
devices to accommodate all project runoff, ensuring post-construction 
flows and volumes do not exceed pre-construction levels, in accordance 
with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Stormwater Quality Best 
Management Practice Design Handbook, Improvement Standards, 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 86 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  These BMPs shall be 
consistent with the Final WQMP and installed to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

25.  Prior to the issuance of grading permit, the developer shall prepare 
and submit a comprehensive drainage study and plan that includes, 
but is not limited to: definition with mapping of the existing watersheds; 
a detailed pre- and post-project hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of 
the project and project impacts; definition of the local controlling 100-
year frequency water levels existing and with project; the proposed 
method of flow conveyance to mitigate the potential project impacts 
with adequate supporting calculations; any proposed improvements to 
mitigate the impacts of increased runoff from the project and any 
change in runoff; including quality, quantity, volume, and duration in 
accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Improvement 
Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specifically, 
the study will: 
 

a. Analyze the detention basin drainage area for a project using the 
Rational Method 100-year storm event for the pre-project and 
post-project. 

b. Analyze 4 hydrographs for the detention basin drainage area for 
a project using the Unit Hydrograph 100-year storm event for the 
1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storm durations for post-
project condition. 

c. Using the Unit Hydrographs determine which duration provides 
the highest flow rate. Adjust parameters such as lag time, flow 
line roughness coefficient or other parameters to calibrate Unit 
Hydrograph model to provide results similar to the Rational 
Method. 

d. Using the calibrated Unit Hydrograph for the detention basin 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 87 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
drainage area perform basin routing analysis to demonstrate that 
the outflow is less than the pre-project Rational Method flow 
rate. 

26.  Prior to the 1st Improvement Plan submittal, the developer shall show 
all easements per the Title Report to the satisfaction of Public Works.  
Any conflicts with existing easements shall result in the site being 
redesigned and potentially going back to Planning Commission.. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Engineering Dept.  

Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 
27.  Prior to final map approval, improvement plans shall be prepared, 

processed, approved and complete the improvements; or execute an 
Improvement Agreement and Improvement Security.  This condition 
shall be in conformance with local regulations and the Subdivision 
Map Act. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

28.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct the southern half - 
section of Bundy Canyon Road, measured, 84’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a modified 152’ urban 
arterial, Standard No. 91, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  From centerline to face of curb is 63’ and from face of 
curb to back of landscaping is 29’.  The additional dedication will allow 
a continuous right turn pocket along the Bundy Canyon Road frontage. 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

29.  Access to Bundy Canyon Road is limited to right in/out with 
appropriate controls constructed to reinforce these turning 
movements.  Construction proposed within State right-of-way may only 
be only be performed upon issuance of a valid Encroachment Permit 
from State of California Department of Transportation, District 8.  State 
review and approval of grading, drainage and street construction plans 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 88 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
and traffic signal, signing and striping plans are required prior to permit 
issuance. 

30.  The Applicant shall provide a reciprocal access easement between the 
parcels of this development.  The location of the access point(s) shall 
be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and will be approved when 
these parcels are developed. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

31.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, all 
appropriate offsite transition on Bundy Canyon Road in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards & Specifications 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

32.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct Orange Street based 
on a 100’ secondary highway, Standard No. 94, in accordance with the 
City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specification to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Improvements shall consist of the 
easterly half of Orange Street, measured 50’ from approved centerline, 
including all appropriate slopes and off-site transitions. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

33.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct all appropriate offsite 
transition on Orange Street in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

34.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct the intersection of 
Bundy Canyon Road / Orange Street based on the expanded 
intersection Standard No. 91 and 94, , in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specification to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  The northbound left turn pocket from 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 89 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
Orange Street to Bundy Canyon Road is approved to be reduced from 
200’ to 175’ of stacking. 

35.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct streetlights in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

36.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate a public utility easement adjacent to all public 
and private streets for overhead and/or underground facilities and 
appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

37.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans within the 
public right-of-way to the Planning Department. These plans shall 
include water usage calculations, estimate of irrigation and the location 
of all existing trees that will remain. All plans and calculations shall be 
designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar Road Improvement 
Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and 
Guidelines, City Codes and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

38.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall submit and the City Engineer traffic control plans along 
Bundy Canyon Road and Orange Street to ensure the continued flow 
of traffic during construction. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

39.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall execute a maintenance agreement for the stormwater 
quality control treatment device to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 90 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit 

40.  Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the property owner shall 
obtain a grading permit and/or approval to construct from the City 
Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

41.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit Improvement plans shall be 
approved by the City Engineer and all improvements to be constructed 
shall be secured by the Developer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

42.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall provide will 
serve letters from the appropriate water and sewer agencies. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

43.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall install 
streetlights in accordance with the City of Wildomar Road 
Improvement Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines, City Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

44.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall install all 
street name signs at intersections adjacent to the project, public or 
private and/or replace street name signs in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

  

45.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall annex into all 
applicable Maintenance Districts, Community Service Areas and 
Landscaping Maintenance District for landscaping, lighting, drainage 
and maintenance to the satisfaction of the City Engineer or otherwise 
form a District where one is not currently in place. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

  

46.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay all fees in 
accordance with Zone A of the Southwest Road and Bridge Benefit 
District. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 91 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
47.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay the 

appropriate impact mitigation fee to the Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

48.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay all 
necessary impact and mitigation fees required.  These fees include, 
but are not limited to, fees associated with Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Quimby (parkland in-lieu) Fee, and City 
Development Impact Fees. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Building Dept.  

49.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall construct the 
stormwater quality treatment devices to accommodate all project 
runoff from in accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, 
Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook, 
Improvement Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
All stormwater quality treatment devices shall be constructed outside 
of the ultimate public right of way. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 92 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
 

RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
General Conditions 
1.  10.FIRE.999 MAP #50-BLUE DOT REFLECTORS: Blue retro-

reflective pavement markers shall be mounted on private streets, 
public streets and driveways to indicate location of fire hydrants. Prior 
to installation, placement of markers must be approved by the 
Riverside County Fire Dept. 

On-Going Fire Department  

2.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-15-POTENTIAL FIRE FLOW: The water mains 
shall be capable of providing a potential fire flow 4,000 GPM and an 
actual fire flow available from any one hydrant shall be 2,500 GPM for 
2 hours duration at 20 PSI residual operating pressure. 

On-Going Fire Department  

3.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-#14-COM/RES/HYD/SPACING: Approved super 
fire hydrants, (6” x  4” x 2 ½ ”) shall be located at each street not more 
than 1,000 feet apart in any direction. 

On-Going Fire Department  

Prior to Recordation of Final Map 
4.  50.FIRE.999 MAPS-#46-WATER PLANS: The applicant or 

developer shall furnish one copy of the water system plans to the Fire 
Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a registered civil 
engineer, containing a Fire Department approval signature block, and 
shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing and minimum fire flow.  
Once plans are signed by local water company, the originals shall be 
presented to the Fire Department for signature. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Fire Department  

5.  50.FIRE.999 MAP-#53-ECS-WTR PRIOR/COMBUSTION: ECS 
map must be stamped by Riverside County Surveyor with the following 
(Note: The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall be 
installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 

Fire Department  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 93 



ATTACHMENT B - EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – ORANGE/BUNDY PARCEL MAP PROJECT 

Project Application:  Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) 
APN No.: 367-100-026 & 367-100-032 
Original Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Original Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 

 
Conditions of Approval 

Timing/ 
Implementation 

Enforcement/ 
Monitoring 

Verification (Date 
and Signature) 

 
ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (EVMWD) 
General Conditions 
1.  Prior to submittal of water and sewer improvement plans, the applicant 

shall meet with EVMWD staff regarding the final requirements for 
providing water and sewer service for this project. 

Prior to 
Improvement Plan 

Submittal 

EVMWD  

2.  The applicant shall be required to provide a sewer connection to an 
existing 12-inch PVC sewer line on Bundy Canyon Road. 

On-Going EVMWD  

3.  The applicant shall be required to provide a water connection to an 
existing 20-inch PVC water line at the 1746 pressure zone, including 
any applicable water line extension in Bundy Canyon Road. 

On-Going EVMWD  

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 94 



 

ATTACHMENT C  
 

Tentative Parcel Map 30522 Plans - (Reductions) 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 95 











 

ATTACHMENT D  
 

Tentative Parcel Map 30522 Plans - (Full Size – under separate cover) 
 

 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 10-0301 Page 96 



CITY OF WILDOMAR – PLANNING COMMISSION 
Agenda Item No. 2.2 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2013 

 
 

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Change of Zone/Plot Plan 12-0364 & Tentative Tract Map 36497: 

Planning Commission consideration of a recommendation to the City 
Council for the Lennar Residential project consisting of the adoption of a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting 
Program, and approval of a Change of Zone, Tentative Tract Map and Plot 
Plan for the development of 67 single family residential units located at the 
SWC of Elizabeth Lane and Prielipp Road. (APN: 380-280-004 and 380-
280-09, 010, 011 & 012) 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Department recommends that this agenda item be tabled and re-noticed 
for a future Commission meeting. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff received a 24-page comment letter on June 21, 2013 from Mr. Ray Johnson 
regarding the proposed Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for this 
project.  His comment letter was received 10 days after the close of the public review 
period on the IS/MND, and after staff had mailed out the public hearing notices to 
adjacent residents.  As there was not adequate time to review the comment letter or 
prepare responses, staff needs additional time to evaluate the information contained in 
the letter. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Matthew C. Bassi     Erica L. Vega 
Planning Director     Assistant City Attorney 

 
 



CITY OF WILDOMAR – PLANNING COMMISSION 
Agenda Item No. 2.3 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2013 

 
 

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Alfredo Garcia, Assistant Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning Application No. 12-0392):   

Planning Commission consideration of Categorical Exemption per Section 
15332(b) (In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines and 
approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 for the subdivision of 4.8 acres 
into 10 lots for future single family residential development located at 
34915 Orange Street (APN: 367-170-029). 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Department recommends the Planning Commission take the following 
action: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 
PER SECTION 15332(B) (IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS) OF 
THE CEQA GUIDELINES AND APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT 
MAP NO. 36519 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 12-0392) FOR THE 
SUBDIVISION OF 4.8 ACRES INTO 10 LOTS FOR FUTURE SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 36519 
ORANGE STREET (APN: 367-170-029), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
Project Location/Vicinity: 
 
The project site encompasses 4.8 acres in size and is located between by Orange Street  
and Laguna Road.  The aerial photo below shows the project site and surrounding area. 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 1 



Vicinity/Location Map 
 

 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
 
The project site is surrounded by existing residential uses to the north, south, east and 
west.  The table below summarizes the current Land Use, General Plan and Zoning 
information related to the proposed project. Staff has also provided two exhibits (on the 
following pages) showing the general plan land use and zoning designations from our 
GIS data base. 
 

 

ADJACENT LAND USE, GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING 

Location Current Land 
Use 

General Plan Land Use 
Designation Zoning 

Subject 
Property Residential LDR R-R 

North Residential LDR R-R  

South Residential LDR R-R 

East Residential LDR R-R 

West Residential LDR R-R  

Oak Creek Canyon Project 
Area – General Boundaries 

Project 
Location 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 2 



General Plan Land Use Exhibit 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Zoning Designation Exhibit 

 
 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 3 



Tentative Tract Map No. 36519: 
 
The applicant is proposing the subdivision of approximately 4.8 acres into 10 lots for the 
future development of 10 single family residential dwelling units. The lots sizes proposed 
under Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 will be a minimum of 20,000 square feet in size. The 
applicant intends to sell individual lots rather than develop the site. The table below 
reflects the lot size breakdown.  

 
Lot Summary Table 

 
Parcel 

Number 
Proposed Lot Area (Per TM 36519) 

1 20,000 s.f. 

2 20,000 s.f. 

3 20,024 s.f. 

4 20,109 s.f. 

5 24,286 s.f. 

6 20,204 s.f. 

7 20,731 s.f. 

8 23,901 s.f.  

9 21,039 s.f.  

10 20,867 s.f.  

 
The design of the proposed subdivision is illustrated in the exhibit on the following page.  
A full size copy of Parcel Map No. 36519 is provided for Commission consideration 
(Refer to Attachment C - under separate cover). 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 4 



Tentative Parcel Map No. 36519 Exhibit 

 
Street Dedication/Circulation/Utilities 
 
As part of the tract map process, dedication of right-of-way will occur along both Orange 
Street and Laguna Road to enable future development of the lots fronting on these 
roads.  They will be improved as required in City Standard 94 for Orange Street and 
105C for Laguna Road.  
 
The division of the land will also necessitate the extension of municipal utilities to the 
project site. These utilities include water, sewer, power, cable television, and telephone. 
All utilities will be underground in accordance with city standards and located within the 
road right-of-way or public utility easements.  As part of the map, the project will provide 
a storm drainage system designed to accommodate build-out of all parcels. The entire 
site will be graded at one time.   
 
CEQA Description: 
 
Based on the proposed project, the Planning Department has determined that the 
proposed subdivision is Categorically Exempt from the state California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines in accordance with Section 15332(b) In-Fill Development 
Projects. “…In accordance with this section , the proposed development occurs within 
City limits, it is on a project site of no more than five acres, it is substantially surrounded 
by urban uses.” If the project is approved, a Notice of Exemption will be filed with the 
Riverside County Clerk within five (5) days from this hearing.  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 5 



The findings for supporting the exception is provided in the analysis action of the report.  
 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS:  
 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519: 
 
The applicant is proposing the subdivision of approximately 4.8 acres into 10 lots for the 
future development of 10 single family residential dwelling units. Staff has evaluated the 
proposed tract map to ensure compliance with the standards and guidelines of the 
Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances.  The lots sizes proposed under Tentative Tract Map 
No. 36519 will be a minimum of 20,000 square feet in size. This meets the minimum lot 
size requirements identified in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone and in Low Density 
residential (LDR) General Plan density requirements. .  
 
The table on the following page summarizes how the proposed tract map complies with 
the City Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances.  
 

Lot Summary Table 
 

Parcel 
Number 

Required 
Lot Area  

Proposed Lot 
Area (Per TM 

36519) 
Required Lot 
Width/Depth  

Proposed Lot 
Width/Depth 

(Per TM 36519 

Meets 
Standards 

1 20,000 s.f. 20,000 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 80’ / 250’ YES 

2 20,000 s.f. 20,000 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 80’ / 250’ YES 

3 20,000 s.f. 20,024 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 190 /105 YES 

4 20,000 s.f. 20,109 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 197/102 YES 

5 20,000 s.f. 24,286 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 93 / 246 YES 

6 20,000 s.f. 20,204 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 103 / 219 YES 

7 20,000 s.f. 20,731 s.f. 80’ / 100’ 94 / 240 YES 

8 20,000 s.f. 23,901 s.f.  80’ / 100’ 80 / 280 YES 

9 20,000 s.f. 21,039 s.f.  80’ / 100’ 80 / 260 YES 

10 20,000 s.f. 20,867 s.f.  80’ / 100’ 87 / 182 YES 

 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 6 



REQUIRED PROJECT FINDINGS 
 
CEQA Findings: 
 
In accordance with section 15332 (b) of CEQA, the following findings are offered for 
Planning Commission consideration in support of the CEQA Exemption.  
 
A. The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 

applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and 
regulations.  

 
Evidence: The current General Plan Land Use Designation for the site is Low 
Density Residential (LDR).  The LDR land use designation is intended for single 
family residential subdivisions with a density of two (2) units / acre. In reviewing the 
applicant’s request to subdivide into 10 single family residential lots on 4.8 acres, 
the overall density of 2 units/ acre and proposed lots of 20,000 square feet is 
consistent with the General Plan and Rural Residential (RR) zone. 

 
B. The propose development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than 

five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  
 

Evidence: The project site is 4.8 acres in size and is surrounded by other land use 
with the similar density and zone designations.  

 
C. The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened 

species.  
 
Evidence: The applicant did submit a Burrowing Owl Study and it was determined 
that the project site is not located in a criteria cell and will have not impacts and 
the MSHCP will not be affected.  

 
D. Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, 

noise, air quality, or water quality.  
 

Evidence: The project site proposes to grade approx. 4,000 cubic yards of earth 
and is conditioned to follow the City of Wildomar Noise Ordinance for proper 
operating times and all Air Quality district guidelines for dust control. The project is 
also designed to continue the use of the existing streets, Orange Street and 
Laguna Road for access to the parcels; therefore, not creating any traffic impacts.  

 
E. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.  
 

Evidence: The project site is located in an area that has been improved with 
streets and utilities. The project site is designed to connect to sewer and water 
provided by Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District. In addition the area is served 
by the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District with water and sewer and is 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 7 



provided with electrical power by Southern California Edison and the Gas 
Company.  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519: 
 
In accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16 and Title 17, and Government 
Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, the Planning department, in light of the whole 
record before it, including but not limited to the Planning Department’s staff report and 
all documents incorporated by reference therein, the City’s General Plan, Subdivision 
Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, standards for public streets and facilities, and any other 
evidence within the record or provided at the public hearing of this matter, recommends 
that the Planning Commission  hereby find and determine as follows: 
 
A. The proposed tract map is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any 

applicable specific plan as specified in Government Code Section 65451. 
 

Evidence:  The current General Plan Land Use Designation for the site is Low 
Density Residential (LDR). The LDR land use designation is intended for single 
family residential subdivisions with a density of 2 units / acre with 20,000 square-
foot minimum lot sizes. In reviewing the applicant’s request to subdivide into 10 
single family residential lots on 4.8 acres, the overall density proposed is 
consistent with the General Plan and minimum lot sizes. In terms of specific land 
use policies related to this project, the proposed tract map promotes (and is 
consistent with) the following residential related land use policies: 

 
LU 3.1 (Community Design) – “Accommodate land use development in accordance 
with the patterns and distribution of uses and density depicted on the General Plan 
Land Use map.” 
 
LU 6.1 (Land Use Compatibility) – “Require land uses to develop in accordance 
with the General Plan and area plans to ensure compatibility and minimize 
impacts.” 
 
LU12.6 (Circulation) - “Require that adequate and accessible circulation facilities 
exist to meet the demands of a proposed land use.”  
 
LU22.1 (Community Development) - “Accommodate the development of single and 
multi family residential units in areas appropriately designated by the General Plan 
and area plan land use maps. “ 
 
LU22.3 (Community Development) - “Require that adequate and available 
circulation facilities, water resources and sewer facilities exist to meet the demands 
of the proposed residential land use.” 

 
B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the 

City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan. 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 8 



Evidence:  The proposed subdivision has been designed to meet all City standards 
applicable to residential subdivisions which are designed to provide satisfactory 
pedestrian and vehicular circulation, including emergency vehicle access and on-
site and off-site public improvements.  Further, all streets, utilities, and drainage 
facilities have been designed and are required to be constructed in conformance 
with City standards. 

 
C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development. 
 

Evidence:  The project site encompasses 4.8 acres.  The tentative map proposes 
to subdivide the project area into 10 lots for single family residential development.  
The density allowed by the LDR allows for lots sizes of 20,000 square feet per 
dwelling. Therefore, the proposed project site is physically suitable for the type and 
proposed density of development. 

 
D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 

 
Evidence:  The Planning Department has determined that the proposed 
subdivision is Categorically Exempt from the state California Environmental Quality 
Act Guidelines (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15332(b) In-Fill Development 
Projects. The city of has made the finding required to utilize this Categorical 
Exemption that the site has no value as habitat for endangered , rare or threatened 
species.  

 
E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious 

public health problems. 
 

Evidence:  The design of the subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General 
Plan, Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance.  The design and construction of all 
improvements to accommodate the project have been conditioned in accordance 
with all applicable City of Wildomar ordinances, codes, and standards including, 
but not limited to, the California Uniform Building Code, the City’s Ordinances 
relating to stormwater runoff management and adopted public works standards.  
As the City’s ordinances, codes, and standards have been created based on 
currently accepted standards and practices for the preservation of the public 
health, safety and welfare, the proposed tract map project meets this finding. 

 
F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
Evidence:  No easements of record or easements established by judgment of a 
court of competent jurisdiction for public access across the site have been 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 9 



disclosed in a search of the title records for the site and the City does not 
otherwise have any constructive or actual knowledge of any such easements. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION / NOTICING 
 
In accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 65090, the Planning 
Department, on June 20, 2013, mailed a public hearing notice to all property owners 
within a 600-foot radius of the project boundaries notifying them of the July 3, 2013 
Planning Commission public hearing for the proposed project. In addition, on June 21, 
2013, a legal notice was published in The Press Enterprise, a local newspaper of 
general circulation, notifying the general public of the July 3, 2013 Planning Commission 
hearing for the proposed tentative tract map project. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director 
 
 
Prepared By,     Reviewed By, 
Alfredo Garcia    Erica L. Vega 
Assistant Planner    Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. PC Resolution No. 13-16 for Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 
Exhibit 1 - Conditions of Approval Matrix 

B. Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 Exhibits (reductions) 
C. Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 Full Size Plans (under separate cover) 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 10 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

PC Resolution No. 13-16 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 

 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 11 



PC RESOLUTION NO. 13-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 
PER SECTION 15332(B) (IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS) OF 
THE CEQA GUIDELINES AND APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT 
MAP NO. 36519 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 12-0392) FOR THE 
SUBDIVISION OF 4.8 ACRES INTO 10 LOTS FOR FUTURE SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 36519 
ORANGE STREET (APN: 367-170-029), SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Department has received an application for Tentative 

Tract Map No. 36519) for the subdivision of approximately 4.8 acres into 10 lots for 
future single family residential development located at 34915 Orange Street by: 

 
Applicant/Owner: Mr. Mike Lesle 
Project Location: 34915 Orange Street 
APN(s):   367-170-029 
Project Area: 5.5. acres 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Government Code Section 66452 

– 66452.22 (Subdivision Map Act) and the City of Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance 
(Title 16), and the City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17) the Planning 
Commission of the City of Wildomar, California, has the authority and has reviewed the 
proposed Tentative Tract Map No. 36519; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 66452.3, the City has 

provided the applicant with a copy of the Planning Department staff report and 
resolutions for Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 containing staff’s recommendation to the 
Planning Commission at least three (3) days prior to the below referenced noticed 
public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 for the subdivision 

Development is Categorically Exempt from the State California Environmental Act 
Guidelines (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15332(b) In-Fill Development Projects; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 

65090, the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 20, 2013, gave public notice 
by mailing a public hearing notice to all property owners within a 600-foot radius of the 
project boundaries notifying said property owners of the date and time of the public 
hearing for Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning Application No. 12-0392) that 
would be considered by the City of Wildomar Planning Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Sections 65353, 65355 and 

65090 the City of Wildomar Planning Department, on June 21, 2013, published a legal 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 12 



notice in “The Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the 
public of the holding of a public hearing for Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning 
Application No. 12-0392) that would be considered by the City of Wildomar Planning 
Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 65353, the City of 

Wildomar Planning Commission conducted the duly noticed public hearing on July 3, 
2013, at which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or 
opposition to, Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning Application No. 12-0392), and 
at which time the Planning Commission received public testimony concerning the 
proposed tentative tract map. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Wildomar does 

hereby resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. CEQA FINDINGS: 
 

The Planning Department has determined that the proposed subdivision is 
Categorically Exempt from the state California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
(CEQA) in accordance with Section 15332(b) In-Fill Development Projects 
 
A. The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 

applicable general plan policies as well as with applicant zoning designation and 
regulations.  

 
Evidence: The current General Plan Land Use Designation for the site is Low 
Density Residential (LDR).  The LDR land use designation is intended for single 
family residential subdivisions with a density of two (2) units / acre. In reviewing the 
applicant’s request to subdivide into 10 single family residential lots on 4.8 acres, the 
overall density of 2 units/ acre and proposed lots of 20,000 square feet is consistent 
with the General Plan and Rural Residential (RR) zone. 

 
B. The propose development occurs within city limits on a project sire of no more than 

five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  
 

Evidence: The project site is approx. 4.8 acres in size and is surrounded by other 
land use with the similar density and zone designations.  
 

C. The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.  
 

Evidence: The applicant did submit a Burrowing Owl Study and it was determined 
that the project site is not located in a criteria cell and will have not impacts and the 
MSHCP will not be affected.  
 

D. Approval of the project would not result in any significant effect relating to traffic, 
noise, air quality, or water quality.  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 13 



 
Evidence: The project site proposes to grade approx. 4,000 cubic yards of earth and 
is conditioned to follow the City of Wildomar Noise Ordinance for proper operating 
times and all Air Quality district guidelines for dust control. In addition, the project 
site is designed to connect to sewer and water provided by Elsinore Valley Municipal 
Water District.  

 
E. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.  

 
Evidence: The project site is located in an area that has been improved with streets 
and utilities. The project site is designed to connect to sewer and water provided by 
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District. In addition the area is served by the 
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District with water and sewer and is provided with 
electrical power by Southern California Edison and the Gas Company.  

 
 
SECTION 2. TENTATIVE TRACT MAP FINDINGS. 
 
In accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16 and Title 17, and Government 
Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, the Planning department, in light of the whole 
record before it, including but not limited to the Planning Department’s staff report and 
all documents incorporated by reference therein, the City’s General Plan, Subdivision 
Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, standards for public streets and facilities, and any other 
evidence within the record or provided at the public hearing of this matter, recommends 
that the Planning Commission  hereby find and determine as follows: 
 
A. The proposed tract map is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any 

applicable specific plan as specified in Government Code Section 65451. 
 

Evidence:  The current General Plan Land Use Designation for the site is Low 
Density Residential (LDR). The LDR land use designation is intended for single 
family residential subdivisions with a density of 2 units / acre with 20,000 square-
foot minimum lot sizes. In reviewing the applicant’s request to subdivide into 10 
single family residential lots on 4.8 acres, the overall density proposed is 
consistent with the General Plan and minimum lot sizes. In terms of specific land 
use policies related to this project, the proposed tract map promotes (and is 
consistent with) the following residential related land use policies: 

 
LU 3.1 (Community Design) – “Accommodate land use development in 
accordance with the patterns and distribution of uses and density depicted on the 
General Plan Land Use map.” 
 
LU 6.1 (Land Use Compatibility) – “Require land uses to develop in accordance 
with the General Plan and area plans to ensure compatibility and minimize 
impacts.” 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 14 



LU12.6 (Circulation) - “Require that adequate and accessible circulation facilities 
exist to meet the demands of a proposed land use.”  
 
LU22.1 (Community Development) - “Accommodate the development of single 
and multi family residential units in areas appropriately designated by the 
General Plan and area plan land use maps. “ 
 
LU22.3 (Community Development) - “Require that adequate and available 
circulation facilities , water resources and sewer facilities exist to meet the 
demands of the proposed residential land use.” 

 
B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the 

City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan. 
 

Evidence:  The proposed subdivision has been designed to meet all City standards 
applicable to residential subdivisions which are designed to provide satisfactory 
pedestrian and vehicular circulation, including emergency vehicle access and on-
site and off-site public improvements.  Further, all streets, utilities, and drainage 
facilities have been designed and are required to be constructed in conformance 
with City standards. 

 
C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development. 
 

Evidence:  The project site encompasses 4.8 acres.  The tentative map proposes 
to subdivide the project area into 10 lots for single family residential development.  
The density allowed by the LDR allows for lots sizes of 20,000 square feet per 
dwelling. Therefore, the proposed project site is physically suitable for the type and 
proposed density of development. 

 
D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 

 
Evidence:  The Planning Department has determined that the proposed 
subdivision is Categorically Exempt from the state California Environmental Quality 
Act Guidelines (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15332(b) In-Fill Development 
Projects. The city of has made the finding required to utilize this Categorical 
Exemption that the site has no value as habitat for endangered , rare or threatened 
species.  

 
E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious 

public health problems. 
 

Evidence:  The design of the subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General 
Plan, Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance.  The design and construction of all 
improvements to accommodate the project have been conditioned to in 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 15 



accordance with all applicable City of Wildomar ordinances, codes, and standards 
including, but not limited to, the California Uniform Building Code, the City’s 
Ordinances relating to stormwater runoff management and adopted public works 
standards.  As the City’s ordinances, codes, and standards have been created 
based on currently accepted standards and practices for the preservation of the 
public health, safety and welfare, the proposed tract map project meets this finding. 

 
F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
Evidence:  No easements of record or easements established by judgment of a court 
of competent jurisdiction for public access across the site have been disclosed in a 
search of the title records for the site and the City does not otherwise have any 
constructive or actual knowledge of any such easements. 

 
SECTION 3. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 

The Planning Commission hereby adopts PC Resolution No. 13-16 adopting a 
categorical exemption for and approving Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning 
Application No. 12-0392) subject to conditions as provided herein and attached hereto 
to this Resolution as Exhibit 1. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of July 2013, by the 
following vote: 

 
AYES.   
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Stan Smith 

Planning Commission Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director/Minutes Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Eric L. Vega, Assistant City Attorney 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 16 



 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 17 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Conditions 
1.  In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice of 

Exemption (NOE) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk within 
five (5) days of project approval by the City Council.  The Notice shall 
include the required California Department of Fish and Game (Code 
Section 711.4.d.3) fee, and the Riverside County Clerk administrative 
fee.  The applicant shall submit to the Planning Department a check or 
money order made payable to the Riverside County Clerk in the 
amount of $50.00 no later than July 3, 2013.  Failure to pay the 
required fee will result in the project being deemed null and void 
(California Fish and Game Code Section 711.4(c).  The above fee is 
broken down as follows: 

a. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $50.00 

July 3, 2013 Planning Department 

 

2.  The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the 
Wildomar Planning Department no later than July 10, 2013. 
 
 
 
Applicant Signature:     Date: 

July 10, 2013 Planning Department 

 

3.  The applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 

On-Going Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 18 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

procedures), (collectively "Actions"), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, agencies, 
and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek to modify, 
set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or approval 
issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof 
(including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivisions Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the applicant of any Action brought and 
request that applicant defend the City.  It is expressly agreed that 
applicant may select legal counsel providing the applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense.  The applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense.  Applicant agrees 
that City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 
and applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the invoice.  Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a 
cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of 
the defense in order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices.  
The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the 
City.  City shall cooperate with applicant in the defense of any Action. 
 

4.  Approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 (Planning Application No. 
12-0392) shall expire on July 3, 2016 if the tract map has not been 

July 3, 2016 Planning Department  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 19 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

recorded.  The applicant may file with the Planning Department a 
request for a one-year time extension as permitted in the Wildomar 
Subdivision and Zoning Ordinance provided a written request is made 
with the required EOT application and fee no later than May 3, 2016 
(60 days prior to expiration). 

5.  Within 45 days of approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36519 (Project 
No. 12-0392) by the Planning Commission, the applicant shall pay all 
outstanding deposit account balances.  Failure to pay the outstanding 
balance by the due date may result in delays in the processing of the 
final tract map. 

August 16, 2013 Planning Department 

 

6.  The project shall be subdivided and developed in accordance with the 
tentative tract map approved by the Planning Commission on July 3, 
2013. The applicant may request a modification/revision to the 
approved project as outlined in the Wildomar Subdivision and Zoning 
Ordinance. 

On-Going Planning Department 

 

7.  If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 
disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner 
determines the remains to be Native American, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable 
timeframe. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission 
shall identify the "most likely descendant."  The most likely descendant 
shall then make recommendations and engage in consultation 
concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. 

On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 20 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

8.  If during ground disturbance activities unique cultural resources are 
discovered, that were not assessed by the archaeological report(s) 
and/or environmental assessment conducted prior to project approval, 
the following procedures shall be followed.  Unique cultural resources 
are defined, for this condition, as being multiple artifacts in close 
association with each other, but may include fewer artifacts if the area 
of the find is determined to be of significance due to its sacred or 
cultural importance. (1) All ground disturbance activities within 100 feet 
of the discovered cultural resources shall be halted until a meeting is 
convened between the developer, the archaeologist, the Native 
American tribal representative and the planning director to discuss the 
significance of the find. (2) At the meeting, the significance of the 
discoveries shall be discussed and after consultation with the 
Pechanga and Soboba Band representatives and the archaeologist, a 
decision shall be made, with the concurrence of the planning director, 
as to the appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, 
etc.) for the cultural resources. (3) Grading of further ground 
disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until an 
agreement has been reached by all parties as to the appropriate 
mitigation. 

On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit 
9.  Prior to the issuance of the 1st first grading permit for Tentative tract 

Map No. 36519, the” applicant shall enter into a Tribal Monitoring 
Agreement” with the Pechanga Band of Luiseno Indians. The 
agreement shall, include, but not  be limited to, outlining provisions 
and requirements for addressing the treatment of cultural resources 
and establishing on-site monitoring provisions/requirements during all 
on-site ground disturbing activities.  A copy of this signed agreement 
shall be provided to the Planning Director and Building Official prior to 
the issuance of the 1st grading permit. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 21 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
10.  Thirty (30) days prior to grading any of the 10 lots within Tentative 

Tract Map No. 36519, the applicant shall prepare and submit a 
Burrowing Owl Survey to demonstrate that there are no burrowing 
owls on the lots.  The survey shall be prepared by a registered 
biologist. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 

 

11.  The grading plan shall include the following information in the Notes 
Section of the Grading Plan:  "No grubbing/clearing of the site shall 
occur prior to scheduling the pre-grading meeting with Engineering. All 
project sites containing suitable habitat for burrowing owls, whether 
owls were found or not, require a 30-day preconstruction survey that 
shall be conducted within 30 days prior to ground disturbance to avoid 
direct take of burrowing owls. If the results of the survey indicate that 
no burrowing owls are present on-site, then the project may move 
forward with grading, upon Planning Department approval.  If 
burrowing owls are found to be present or nesting on-site during the 
preconstruction survey, then the following recommendations must be 
adhered to:  Exclusion and relocation activities may not occur during 
the breeding season, which is defined as March 1 through August 31, 
with the following exception: From March 1 through March 15 and from 
August 1 through August 31 exclusion and relocation activities may 
take place if it is proven to the City and appropriate regulatory 
agencies (if any) that egg laying or chick rearing is not taking place.  
This determination must be made by a qualified biologist." 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 

 

12.  The grading plan shall include the following information in the Notes 
Section of the Grading Plan: "If at any time during 
excavation/construction of the site, archaeological/cultural resources, 
or any artifacts or other objects which reasonably appears to be 
evidence of cultural or archaeological resource are discovered, the 
property owner shall immediately advise the City of such and the City 
shall cause all further excavation or other disturbance of the affected 
area to immediately cease.  The Planning Director at his/her sole 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 22 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

discretion may require the property owner to deposit a sum of money it 
deems reasonably necessary to allow the City to consult and/or 
authorize an independent, fully qualified specialist to inspect the site at 
no cost to the City, in order to assess the significance of the find.  
Upon determining that the discovery is not an archaeological/cultural 
resource, the Planning Director shall notify the property owner of such 
determination and shall authorize the resumption of work.  Upon 
determining that the discovery is an archaeological/cultural resource, 
the Planning Director shall notify the property owner that no further 
excavation or development may take place until a mitigation plan or 
other corrective measures have been approved by the Planning 
Director.” 

13.  Prior to the issuance of a the 1st grading permit the applicant shall 
receive approval of a haul permit for any import of material to the site 
or export of material off-site.  The request for a haul permit shall 
include a haul route plan addressing the limitations of haul hours, 
number of loads per day and the posting of traffic control personnel at 
all approved entrances/exits onto public roads.  This haul permit shall 
be in place prior to the issuance of the grading permit and the 
mobilization of equipment on the project site.  If the proposed material 
source or disposal site was not previously evaluated by the mitigated 
negative declaration, a grading environmental assessment shall be 
approved by the planning director prior to the issuance of the haul 
permit. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 

 

14.  Prior to the issuance of the 1st grading permit, the applicant shall 
submit for review and approval by the Planning Department two sets 
of detailed landscape and irrigation plans for the right-of-way 
landscaping. 
 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 

 
Planning Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 23 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
Prior to Final Map Approval / Recordation 

15.  Prior to the recordation of the final tract map for TPM 36519, or any 
subsequent final maps within the project area, the Applicant shall pay 
all fees in accordance with Zone A of the Southwest Road and Bridge 
Benefit District. 

Prior to Final Map 
Approval 

Planning & Building 
Depts. 

 

16.  Prior to the recordation of the final tract map for TPM 36519, or any 
subsequent final maps within the project area, the applicant shall pay 
the appropriate impact mitigation fee to the Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District. 

Prior to Final Map 
Approval 

Planning & Building 
Depts. 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit 
17.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit for development of any of the 

10 vacant parcels within the boundaries of Parcel Map No. 36519, the 
applicant shall submit a Minor Plot Plan application to the Building 
Department for review and approval as part of the plan check process.  
Further, the applicant hereby agrees that no modular or mobile home 
units will be allowed to be developed on any of the 10 lots.  All 
proposed dwelling units shall be designed to be consistent with the 
design of the existing neighborhood. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Department 

 

18.  Prior to the issuance of building permits for development of each lot, 
the applicant shall pay all applicable Development Impact Fees and 
City Mitigation Fees as determined by the Building and Engineering 
departments. 

Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 

Building and 
Engineering 
Departments 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
19.  Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for any dwelling unit 

within each phase/planning area, all conditions of approval for that 
phase/planning area shall be satisfied. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Certificate of 

Occupancy 

Planning and Building 
Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 24 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Requirements/Conditions 
1.  The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 

revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 
need for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals 
may be necessary as a result. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

2.  No grading shall be performed without the prior issuance of a grading 
permit by the City. On-Going Engineering Dept.  

3.  Written permission shall be obtained from the affected property 
owners allowing the proposed grading and/or facilities to be installed 
outside of the project boundaries. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

4.  The developer’s contractor is required to submit for a haul route permit 
for the hauling of material to and from the project site.  Said permit will 
include limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day and the 
posting of traffic control personnel at all approved entrances/exits onto 
public roads.  This permit shall be in place prior to the issuance of the 
grading permit and the mobilization of equipment on the project site. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

5.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

6.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the 
eminent domain process, if necessary. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

7.  All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, including 
Appendix J, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations 
governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing any 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 25 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall 
obtain a grading permit from the Building Department. 

8.  All necessary measures to control dust shall be implemented by the 
developer during grading to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A 
PM10 plan may be required at the time a grading permit is issued. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

9.  Graded slopes shall be limited to a maximum steepness ratio of 2:1 
(horizontal to vertical) unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. On-Going Engineering Dept.  

10.  Grading in excess of 199 cubic yards will require performance security 
to be posted with the City. On-Going Engineering Dept.  

11.  All retaining walls shall require a separate permit from the Building 
Department. On-Going Building Dept.  

12.  Erosion control – landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 
457 (refer to dept. form 284-47). Planting shall occur within 30 days of 
meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope 
coverage prior to the rainy season.  The Developer shall plant & 
irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to 
vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or 
ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical height shall be 
planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved by the City 
Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

13.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 
project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred. 
 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 26 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
14.  The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 

with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. On-Going Engineering Dept.  

15.  The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a 
minimum of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and 
alignment as approved by the City Engineer. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

16.  All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by 
the developer in accordance with City requirements. The 
undergrounding of utilities shall be reflected on the project 
improvement plans. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

17.  All flood control plans to be reviewed shall be submitted through the 
City of Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer. On-Going Engineering Dept.  

18.  Proposed outlets from “V” ditches (section D-D on TTM) to street right 
of way shall discharge through either a curb outlet (Std. 308) or by 
pipe to an existing catch basin.  Minimum storm drain pipe diameter 
shall be 18 inches within the public right of way. 
 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 

 

19.  Cross lot drainage easements shall be recorded by separate 
instrument.  The instrument shall clarify maintenance, cleaning and 
repair of the drainage facility is the responsibility of the property owner. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

20.  Landscape and irrigation improvements on down slopes and within the 
right of way shall be maintained by the property owner.  A 
maintenance agreement shall be recorded by separate instrument. 

On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 

Prior to the Issuance of Grading Permits 
21.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a 

geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and approval 
prior to issuance of grading permit.  The findings and 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 27 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

recommendations shall reflect current conditions and the report shall 
be no older than one (1) year.  All grading shall be in conformance 
with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as 
approved by City of Wildomar. 

22.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, it shall be the sole 
responsibility of the developer to obtain any and all easements and/or 
permissions necessary to perform the grading required for the project. 
A notarized letter of permission from all affected property owners or 
easement holders, or encroachment permit, is required for all off-site 
grading. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

23.  Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the project specific SWPPP 
shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept.  

24.  Prior to issuance of grading permits the Developer shall provide the 
Engineering Department evidence of compliance with the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and obtain a 
construction permit from the State Water Resource Control Board 
(SWRRCB). 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

25.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall have 
obtained approval for the import/export location from the City of 
Wildomar. Additionally, if either location was not previously approved 
by an Environmental Assessment, prior to issuing a grading permit, a 
Grading Environmental Assessment shall be submitted to the Planning 
Director for review and comment and to the City Engineer for approval. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

26.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a 
Final Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), in conformance with 
the requirements of the San Diego and/or Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board.  Applicant shall confirm the watershed 
requirements relative to their project location.  All stormwater quality 
treatment devices shall be located outside of the ultimate public right 
of way.  The developer shall design the stormwater quality treatment 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 28 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

devices to accommodate all project runoff, ensuring post-construction 
flows and volumes do not exceed pre-construction levels, in accordance 
with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Stormwater Quality Best 
Management Practice Design Handbook, Improvement Standards, 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  These BMPs shall be 
consistent with the Final WQMP and installed to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

27.  If the project location is within the Santa Ana River Watershed:  Prior to 
the issuance of a grading permit, the developer is to provide the 
appropriate documentation that will allow this project a waiver for 
mitigation volume related to the Lake Elsinore sub watershed of the 
Santa Ana Watershed.  Please note the City is not a permittee in the 
MS4 permit for the Santa Ana River Watershed (Lake Elsinore) and is 
governed only by the MS4 permit for the Santa Margarita Watershed, 
therefore the Applicant needs to provide evidence that this waiver has 
been approved by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.  Otherwise volume has to be addressed. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Public Works Dept. 

 

28.  Prior to the issuance of grading permit, the developer shall prepare 
and submit a comprehensive drainage study and plan that includes, 
but is not limited to: definition with mapping of the existing watersheds; 
a detailed pre- and post-project hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of 
the project and project impacts; definition of the local controlling 100-
year frequency water levels existing and with project; the proposed 
method of flow conveyance to mitigate the potential project impacts 
with adequate supporting calculations; any proposed improvements to 
mitigate the impacts of increased runoff from the project and any 
change in runoff; including quality, quantity, volume, and duration in 
accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Improvement 
Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specifically, 
the study will: 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 29 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

a. Analyze the detention basin drainage area for a project using the 
Rational Method 100-year storm event for the pre-project and 
post-project. 

b. Analyze 4 hydrographs for the detention basin drainage area for 
a project using the Unit Hydrograph 100-year storm event for the 
1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storm durations for post-
project condition. 

c. Using the Unit Hydrographs determine which duration provides 
the highest flow rate. Adjust parameters such as lag time, flow 
line roughness coefficient or other parameters to calibrate Unit 
Hydrograph model to provide results similar to the Rational 
Method. 

d. Using the calibrated Unit Hydrograph for the detention basin 
drainage area perform basin routing analysis to demonstrate that 
the outflow is less than the pre-project Rational Method flow 
rate. 

29.  Prior to the 1st Improvement Plan submittal, the developer shall show 
all easements per the Title Report to the satisfaction of Public Works.  
Any conflicts with existing easements shall result in the site being 
redesigned and potentially going back to Planning Commission. 
 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Engineering Dept. 

 

Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 
30.  Prior to final map approval, improvement plans shall be prepared, 

processed, approved and complete the improvements; or execute an 
Improvement Agreement and Improvement Security.  This condition 
shall be in conformance with local regulations and the Subdivision 
Map Act. 

Prior to Final Map 
Approval Public Works Dept. 

 

31.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct the westerly half - 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Engineering Dept.  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 30 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

section of Orange Street, measured, 50’ from the approved centerline. 
Right of way will be based on a 100’ secondary, Standard No. 94, in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards & 
Specifications and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.   

Final Map 

32.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct Laguna Road based on 
a 60’ local street, Standard No. 105 C, in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specification to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Improvements shall consist of the 
north-easterly half of Laguna Road, measured 30’ from approved 
centerline, including all appropriate slopes and off-site transitions. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

33.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct all appropriate offsite 
transition on Laguna Road in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

34.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate, design and construct streetlights in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

35.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall dedicate a public utility easement adjacent to all public 
and private streets for overhead and/or underground facilities and 
appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

36.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans within the 
public right-of-way to the Planning Department. These plans shall 
include water usage calculations, estimate of irrigation and the location 
of all existing trees that will remain. All plans and calculations shall be 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 31 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar Road Improvement 
Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and 
Guidelines, City Codes and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  

37.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall submit to the City Engineer traffic control plans along 
Laguna Road and Orange Street to ensure the continued flow of traffic 
during construction. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

38.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall execute a maintenance agreement for the stormwater 
quality control treatment device to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

39.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall record by separate instrument:  cross lot drainage 
easement(s); landscape and irrigation maintenance; and, private 
sewer easement(s). 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

40.  Prior to Final Map or first building permit, whichever comes first, the 
developer shall record by separate instrument: vacation of Laguna 
Road across Lots 5 through 10, inclusive; and, the utility easement. 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Engineering Dept. 

 

Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit 
41.  Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the property owner shall 

obtain a grading permit and/or approval to construct from the City 
Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

42.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit Improvement plans shall be 
approved by the City Engineer and all improvements to be constructed 
shall be secured by the Developer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

43.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall provide will 
serve letters from the appropriate water and sewer agencies. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept.  

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 32 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
44.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall install 

streetlights in accordance with the City of Wildomar Road 
Improvement Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines, City Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

45.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall install all 
street name signs at intersections adjacent to the project, public or 
private and/or replace street name signs in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

46.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall annex into all 
applicable Maintenance Districts, Community Service Areas and 
Landscaping Maintenance District for landscaping, lighting, drainage 
and maintenance to the satisfaction of the City Engineer or otherwise 
form a District where one is not currently in place. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

47.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay all fees in 
accordance with Zone A of the Southwest Road and Bridge Benefit 
District. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

48.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay the 
appropriate impact mitigation fee to the Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

49.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall pay all 
necessary impact and mitigation fees required.  These fees include, 
but are not limited to, fees associated with Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Quimby (parkland in-lieu) Fee, and City 
Development Impact Fees. 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit Building Dept. 

 

50.  Prior to issuance of a building permit the developer shall construct the 
stormwater quality treatment devices to accommodate all project 
runoff from in accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, 
Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook, 

Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 

Engineering /Building 
Dept. 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 33 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

Improvement Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
All stormwater quality treatment devices shall be constructed outside 
of the ultimate public right of way. 

RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
General Conditions 
1.  10.FIRE.999 MAP #50-BLUE DOT REFLECTORS  

Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be mounted on private 
streets, public streets and driveways to indicate location of fire 
hydrants. Prior to installation, placement of markers must be approved 
by the Riverside County Fire Dept. 
 

On-Going Fire Department 

 

2.  10. FIRE.999 MAP-#16-HYDRANT/SPACING: 
Schedule B fire protection approved standard fire hydrants, (6”x 4”x 2 
½”) locate one at each street intersection and space no more than 500 
feet apart in any direction, with no portion of any lot frontage more 
than 250 feet from hydrant. Minimum fire flow shall be 1000 GPM for 2 
hours duration at 20 PSI. Shall include perimeter streets at each 
intersection and spaced 660 feet apart. 
 

On-Going Fire Department 

 

Prior to Recordation of Final Map 
3.  50.FIRE.999 MAP-#64-ECS-DRIVEWAY ACCESS: 

ECS map must be stamped by the Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following Note: Driveways exceeding 150’ in length, but less than 800’ 
in length, shall provide a turnout near the midpoint of the driveway. 
Where the driveway exceeds 800’, turnouts shall be provided no more 
than 400’apart. Turnouts shall be a minimum of 10’wide and 30’on 
length, with a minimum 25’ taper on each end. An approved 
turnaround shall be provided at all building sites on driveways over 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Fire Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 34 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 

150 feet in length and shall be within 50’ of the building. 

4.  50.FIRE.999 MAP-#73-ECS-DRIVEWAY REQUIREMENTS: 
ECS map must be stamped by the Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following note: Access will not have an up, or downgrade of more 
than15%. Access will not be less than 20 feet in width per the 2010 
CFC and will have a vertical clearance of 15’. Access will be designed 
to withstand the weight of 75 thousand pounds over 2 axles. Access 
will have a turning radius of 38 feet capable of accommodating fire 
apparatus. 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Fire Department 

 

5.  50.FIRE.999 MAP-#46-WATER PLANS: 
The applicant or developer shall furnish one copy of the water system 
plans to the Fire Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a 
registered civil engineer, containing a Fire Department approval 
signature block, and shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing 
and minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed by local water 
company, the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department for 
signature. 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Fire Department 

 

6.  50.FIRE.999 MAP-#53-ECS-WTR PRIOR/COMBUSTION: 
ECS map must be stamped by Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following Note: 
“The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall be installed 
and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot.” 
 

Prior to 
Recordation of 

Final Map 
Fire Department 

 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 35 



EXHIBIT 1 - ATTACHMENT A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Project Application:  Tentative Tract Map No. 36519  (Planning Application No. 12-0392) 
APN: 367-170-029 

Planning Commission Approval Date:  July 3, 2013 Expiration Date:  July 3, 2016 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 

Implementation 
Enforcement / 

Monitoring 
Verification (Date 

and Signature) 
 
Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit 
7.  80. FIRE.999 MAP-#50-TRACT WATER VERIFICATION: 

The required water system, including all fire hydrant(s), shall be 
installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency and the 
Riverside County Fire Department prior to any combustible building 
material placed on an individual lot. Contact the Riverside County Fire 
Department to inspect the required fire flow, street signs, all weather 
surface, and all access and/or secondary. Approved water plans must 
be at the job site. 

Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits Fire Department 

 

Prior to Final Inspection 
8.  90. FIRE.999 MAP – RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER: 

Residential fire sprinklers are required in all one and two family 
dwellings per the California Residential code, California Building Code 
and the California Fire Code. Install Fire Sprinkler Systems per NFPA 
13D, 2010 Edition. Plans must be submitted to the Fire Dept. for 
review and approval prior to installation. 

Prior to Final 
Inspection Fire Department 

 

 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 36 



 

ATTACHMENT B  
 

Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 Exhibit 
 
 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 37 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 38 



 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

Full Size Tentative Tract Map Plans - (under separate cover) 
 

 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36519 July 3, 2013 
Planning Application No. 12-0392 Page 39 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA SECTION 3.0 
 

GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There are no General Business Items for the 
July 3, 2013 Planning Commission meeting 


	Item 2.1 Orange-Bundy PM 30522 (Proj 10-0301).pdf
	Parcel 1
	Parcel 2
	Parcel 3
	Parcels 4 through 6
	Tentative Parcel Map No. 30522:
	In accordance with Title 16 and Title 17 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, staff recommends the Planning Commission, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the Planning ...
	B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan. [this finding is a repeat of the previous finding. ]
	C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development.
	Evidence:  The project site encompasses approximately 10.26 acres subdivided into seven (7) parcels for commercial development.  Each parcel has been designed and subdivided to adequately accommodate individual commercial retail uses, as well as provi...
	D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat.
	Evidence:  The City prepared an Initial Study for the proposed parcel map project that resulted in the preparation, processing and review of a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).  The MND analyzed the environmental issues required by CEQA law, inclu...
	E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious public health problems.
	Evidence:  The design of the proposed parcel map subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance which provides minimum development standards. Further, the parcel map has been conditioned to cons...
	F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed subdivision.

	SECTION 1. CEQA FINDINGS.
	SECTION 2. MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN (MSHCP).
	The project is found to be consistent with the MSHCP.  The project is located outside of any MSHCP criteria area and mitigation is provided through payment of the MSHCP Mitigation Fee.
	SECTION 3. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS.
	1. Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration:  The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program for Parcel Map No. 30522 (Planning Application No. 10-0301) is hereby approved and adopted as provided herein as...
	2. Notice of Determination:  In compliance with Public Resources Code § 21152 and CEQA Guidelines § 15075, the Planning Director shall prepare a Notice of Determination concerning the approval and adoption of the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Decla...
	3. Location:  The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program for Parcel Map No. 30522, and all documents incorporated therein or forming the record of decision therefore, shall be filed with the Wildomar...

	Response to Comments
	List of Commenters
	Comments and Responses
	SECTION 1. CEQA:
	The approval of this Tentative Parcel Map (TPM No. 30522) is in compliance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on July 3, 2013, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted a Mitigated N...

	In accordance with Title 16 and Title 17 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, staff recommends the Planning Commission, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the Planning ...
	B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan.
	C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development.
	Evidence:  The project site encompasses approximately 10.26 acres subdivided into seven (7) parcels for commercial development.  Each parcel has been designed and subdivided to adequately accommodate individual commercial retail uses, as well as provi...
	D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat.
	E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious public health problems.
	Evidence:  The design of the proposed parcel map subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance which provides minimum development standards. Further, the parcel map has been conditioned to cons...
	F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed subdivision.


	Item 2.3 Mike Lesle TM 36519 (Proj 12-0392).pdf
	Tentative Tract Map No. 36519:
	In accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16 and Title 17, and Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, the Planning department, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the Planning Department’s staff repor...
	B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan.
	C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development.
	Evidence:  The project site encompasses 4.8 acres.  The tentative map proposes to subdivide the project area into 10 lots for single family residential development.  The density allowed by the LDR allows for lots sizes of 20,000 square feet per dwelli...
	D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat.
	E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious public health problems.
	Evidence:  The design of the subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance.  The design and construction of all improvements to accommodate the project have been conditioned in accordance with all ap...
	F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed subdivision.
	SECTION 1. CEQA FINDINGS:

	In accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16 and Title 17, and Government Code § 66473.1, § 66473.5 and § 66474, the Planning department, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to the Planning Department’s staff repor...
	B. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the City’s General Plan and any applicable specific plan.
	C. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development.
	Evidence:  The project site encompasses 4.8 acres.  The tentative map proposes to subdivide the project area into 10 lots for single family residential development.  The density allowed by the LDR allows for lots sizes of 20,000 square feet per dwelli...
	D. The design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat.
	E. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements is not likely to cause serious public health problems.
	Evidence:  The design of the subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General Plan, Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance.  The design and construction of all improvements to accommodate the project have been conditioned to in accordance with all...
	F. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed subdivision.





